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September 04, 2019 ChOice

Nurturing Financial Excellence

To,

The Department of Corporate Services,

The BSE Limited

PJ. Towers,

Dalal Street,

Mumbai — 400 001

Ref: Scrip Code:531358

Subject: Compliance under Regulation 30 and 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Respected Sir/Madam,

With reference to the above captioned subject and in continuation of our letter dated August 30,

2019 intimating the date of 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company, please find

enclosed herewith the following:

1. Notice of 26th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on Friday, September 27,

2019 at 12:30 PM at Hotel Kohinoor Continental, Andheri - Kurla Rd, J B Nagar, Andheri

East, Mumbai, 400059.

2. The Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

Member’s holding shares either in physical or demat mode as on the cut—off date, i.e. 20th

September, 2019 may cast their votes electronically on the businesses set out in the Notice of

Annual General Meeting. The evoting shall commence from 9.00 am on 24th September, 2019 and

shall end at 6.00 pm on 26th September, 2019.

The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from

September 21, 2019 to September 27, 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM.

Request you to kindly take the above on record.

Thanking You,

Yours Truly,

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Choice International Limited

Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park, Plot No 156-158, LB. Nagar, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400 099.

Tel.: +91-22- 6707 9999 Email lD: info@choiceindia.com Website: www.choicelndia.com CIN No. L67190MH1993PLCO71117
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Nurturing

Financial

ExceHence  
At Choice, we are always on the lookout for the NEXT.

Technology leads the way for us as we make businesses

financially robust, scalable and agile in a hyper-

competitive world. 26 years on, we are constantly pushing

the boundaries of possibilities and building a multifaceted

tech-focused financial services conglomerate.

Broking - Mutual Funds — Wealth Management - Portfolio

Management Services -Techno|ogy- &everything in between,

CHOICEstrivesto steadfastly remain trueto its namesake.

We, as an Organization relentlessly pursues opportunities

which add value to the entrepreneurial journey of

Individuals while generating innovative ideas that facilitate

multiple facets of businesses

This issignified with ourAnnuaI Reporttheme! .
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Helping companies to navigate in

turbulent business environment.  
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Building integral solutions
for creating tomorrow's

milestones.
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Assisting in fund raising,
valuations and strategic planning
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One stop financial hub
for all your investment requirement
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Mr. Kamal POo --

M‘s “

LETI'ER
FROM
MANAGING
DIRECTOR

DearStake Holders,

Before I put forward my views for the Year passed by, I take this

opportunity to thank all our stakeholders for their faith rested in our

Company and hereby further appeal for their continued support in

ourvoyage with the vision of being'fiéfi'g"

As far as numbers are concerned to measure the Profitability, the

Financial Year 2018-19 did not lure to the expectations, on account of

various factors including the Capital Market conditions & the various

reformatory policies stipulated by the statutory authorities affecting

the operations of various segments of the Company at the

consolidated level, however your company managed to rheostat the

situation and en routed the best tactics of adopting the dynamics of

the situation.

Though the fortune did not play well for the company in terms of

Numbers, i am gratified to share the efforts taken by the Company in

enhancing digitalisation in its operations.The Company has come out

with a unique way of doing its business through its application

”Choice Connect ", where all the services provided by the Company is

just a click away.The ease & benefits ofdoing the business through the

"Choice Connect" app is further detailed in the Management

Discussion &Analysis Report.

In utmost support of the vision of our Honourable Prime Minister on

Digital India, our attempt of crafting new Business module of doing

the Business for our Equity Broking & Wealth segment through our

applications'Uiny" &"Investica" has truly turned out to be fruitful in

the best interest of the Company. The applications have done

wonders over a period oftime. There are around 3.8 lakhs download

ofourapplications within a span ofshorttime.

 

The Services provided by your Company is comprehensively detailed

in the Managementdiscussion and Analysis Report.The core business

activities ofthe group includes Broking & Distribution, NBFC Lending

Mutual Fund Distribution, Portfolio Management SeNices, Merchant

Banking, Debt Syndication, Management Consultancy including

Government Consultancy, Retail Loans, ITSolutions.

The struggle is to become India's Number one Financial Hub, providing

an array of Financial Sen/ices under one ridge. On the path of creating

value for our clients equal attention is given to the practises adopted to

achievethetargetswithout compromising on the moral values.

As mentioned above, I hereby request all our stakeholders to bestow

theirsupport.

I hereby thank all our clients, for their association with the Company

and giving usthe opportunityto stand byourwords:

AAP KIJIYE KAMYABI KI TAYAARI,

BAAKI HAMARI ZIMMEDARI

With bestwishes,

ThankingYou,

 

KAMAL PODDAR

Managing Director

DIN No:01518700
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While innovation influxes a CHANGE

in the system, It's the leadership that

distinguishes you from being a ME TOO

& become fifig

CA KAMAL PODDAR

Managing Director 
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CAAjay Kejriwal
Executive Director  

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar
Non - Executive Director

 

Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal
Independent Director  

Mr. Debkumar Goswami
Independent Director

 

‘2'";

Mr. Bharatkumar Shah
Independent Director

Mr. Ashok Kumar Thakur
Independent Director
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited

Choice Wealth Management Private Limited

Choice Portfolio Management Services Private Limited

Choice Corporate Services Private Limited

Choice Finserv Private Limited

Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited

Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited
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Director’s Report

The Company was incorporated in the year March 1993 "Reserve Bankoflndia”videits LetterdatedAugust20,2018.
thereafter the group "CHOICE" has evolved as on date as

one ofthe biggest" Financial Hub " in the country providing

an gamut of Financial Services under one ridge with the

only agenda to create wealth for its Clients by providing

best solutions to once '5 Financial needs.

On Cancellation of the Company's its NBFC License, by the

"Reserve Bank of India" the Company shall only stand as a

Listed Holding Companyto its Subsidiaries. As on the date of

the report the Company is still construed as having an "NBFC

Status” until its NBFC Registration is cancelled by the"

On transfer of the Company's entire NBFC Business to its Reserve Bankoflndia”.

subsidiary M/s. Choice Finserv Private Limited by Postal

Ballot Resolution passed by the Members of the Company

approving the said Transfer vide Postal Ballot Notice dated

February 12, 2018, the Company on complete execution of

the said transfer has surrender its NBFC License to the

As on March 31 , 2019 &the date ofthe Report,the Company

has 10 Subsidiaries catering in to Different type of Financial

Product & other services the details of which are

incorporated in the Report.

The Company's Financial Performance both on Standalone & Consolidated basis for the Financial Year ended

March 31, 2019 is summarised below: ( in Lakhs)

Year Year Year Year

ended ended ended ended
31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18

Revenue from Operations 1,277.05 2,264.03 12,705.89 14,292.82

Other Income 19.99 18.44 435.02 895.17

Total Income 1,297.04 2,282.47 13,140.91 15,187.99

Less : Expenses

a) Purchase - - 2,704.00 3083.06

b) Change in Inventories - 16.66 (748.65) (833.85)

c) Operating Expenses - - 2,182.56 2,977.28

d) Employee benefit expenses 118.22 300.19 4,364.14 4,015.99

e) Finance Cost 563.80 988.59 2,031.81 2,056.07

1‘) Depreciation &Amortisation Expenses 77.80 78.28 358.36 277.03

9) Other Expenses 357.61 597.88 1,796.56 2,036.64

Total Expenses 1,117.42 1,981.59 12,688.78 13,612.23

Profit before Tax & Exceptional Items 179.61 300.88 452.13 1,575.77

Net Profit before Tax 179.62 300.88 452.13 1,575.77

Net Profit After Tax 160.64 230.13 333.19 1,203.38

Share of Profit from Associate - - (12.12) 21.01

Loss on Sale of Associate - - 279.05 -

Net Profit after Taxes and Share of Profit from Associates 160.64 230.13 42.02 1224.39

Paid Up Equity Share Capital 2000.48 2000.48 2000.482 2000.48

Reserves excluding Revaluation Reserves 7700 7539.36 10489.72 10447.70

Earing Per Share

Basic 0.80 1.25 0.21 6.54

Diluted 0.80 1.15 0.21 6.02
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DIVIDEND

Your Director's do not recommend any Dividend for the year ended

March 31 , 201 9 in orderto conserve the Resources ofthe Company.

TRANSFERTO RESERVE

The Board of Directors has transferred Rs.39,54,000/— to statutory

reserve account out ofthe Profit& Loss account in the year2018-19.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31,

2019 stood at Rs. 2000.48 Lakhs. During the year under review the

Company has not issued anyfurtherShare or Convertible securities or

shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options

or Sweat EquityShares orWarrants.As on March 31 , 2019 none ofthe

Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible in to Equity

Shares ofthe Company.

DEBENTURES

During the Year the Company has redeemed 310 Secured

Redeemable, Unrated, Unlisted, Market Linked, Non - Convertible

Debentures, as on March 31, 2019 there are no outstanding

Debentures to be redeemed by the Company. The Company has duly

paid the Principal amountalong with interesttothe Debenture Holder,

except Payment for Seven Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 100,000/-

each bearing interest of57 % on redemption to one ofthe Debenture

Holder who has passed away & the Company is in process of

transferring the Funds to the Legal Claimants ofthe deceased holder

on dueverification.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

Your Company being in Possession of its ”NBFC" status as on March 31 ,

2019 has not accepted any Public Deposit During theYear under review.

INVESTOR EDUCATION &PROTECTION FUND

In accordancewiththe applicable provisions ofCompaniesAct,2013

read with Investor Education and protection Fund (Accounting,Audit,

Transfer and Refund ) Rules, 2016 ("IEPF Rules"), all unclaimed

dividends are required to be transferred bythe Companyto the IEPF

,after completion of seven (7)Years . Further according to IEPF Rules

the shares on which dividend has not been claimed by the

shareholders for seven (7) consecutive years or more shall be

transferred to the demat account of the IEPF authority. The details

relating to amount of dividend transferred to the IEPF and

corresponding shares on which dividend s were unclaimed for seven

(7) consecutive years, are provided in the General Shareholders

Information section ofthisAnnual Report.

FINANCIALACCOUNTING

As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Financial

Statements fortheYear ended on March 31,2019 has been prepared

in accordance with Provisions of the Sec 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended

from time to time. The estimates and judgements relating to the

Financial Statements are made on a prudent basis, so as to reflect in a

true and fair manner, the form and substance of transactions and

reasonably present the Company's state of affairs, Profit and cash flow

fortheYearended March 31,2019.

REVIEW OF SUBSIDIARIES ASSOCIATES & JOINT

VENTURES

Financial Performance:

Pursuant to Section 129 (3)01‘ the Companies Act, 2013 the

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its

 

Director's Report

subsidiaries , associates and Joint Ventures , prepared in accordance

with the relevant Accounting Standard specified underSection133 of

the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts) Rules, 2014,

forms a Part oftheAnnual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of the said section, a statement containing the

salient features of the financial statements of the Company's subsidiaries,

JointVentures &Associates in FormAOC-1 is given intheAnnuaI Report.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 the

Financial Statements of the Subsidiary Companies are available for

inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company

during Business Hours on all days except Saturdays , Sundays and

Public Holidays up to the date ofthe Annual General Meeting ”AGM".

Any member desirous of obtaining a copy of the said Financial

Statements may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered

Office ofthe Company.

The Financial Statements including the Consolidated Financial

Statements, Separate Audited Financial statements along with other

relevant documents required to be attached to this report have been

uploaded on the website ofthe Company www.choiceindia.com

The Company has revised the Policy for determining material

subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 16(1 )(C) ofthe Listing Regulations,

as amended from time to time.The approved policy may be accessed

on the Company's website under the tab "Corporate Governance" at
www.choiceindia.com

The detail of Material Changes in the Operations/ Natu re ofthe business

of the Subsidiaries during the Financial Year 2018-19 have been

highlighted down below. The impact of such changes, if any has been

adequately disclosed in the Financial Statements.As on March 31 , 2019

the Company has 10 Subsidiaries in its league each catering diverse
Financial & Other Services forming vital componentofgroup "Choice".

Details of Services Offered bythe Subsidiaries:

1) M/s. Choice Equity Broking Private Limited - Material Wholly

Owned Subsidiary

The Equity&Commodity Broking Business along with Distribution

Business is routed through our Wholly Owned Subsidiary M/s.

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited or ”Choice Broking".

”Choice Broking" is a Member of NSE, BSE, MSEI, ICEX, NCDEX,

MCXand a Depository Participant with CDSL& NSDL.

During the year under review, M/s. Choice Merchandise Broking

Private Limited the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company M/s.

Choice International Limited was Merged in to M/s. Choice Equity

Broking Private Limited pursuant to National Company Law

Tribunal" order dated September 06, 2018. Post—Merger the

Commodity Broking Business is carried out in the name of M/s.

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited.

During the Year M/s. Choice Equity Broking Private Limited has

acquired Broking Business of South based Company M/s.
Inditrade Capital Limited a well-known financial service provider

focusing on Micro Finance, having their registered office in

Kerala., the acquisition of Broking Business of M/.s lndi Trade

Capital Limited broughtover 1.5 Lakhs Client base to M/s. Choice

Equity Broking Private Limited along with its robust network of 27

branches and 440 Franchises & Business Associates along with

313employees.

Further during the year under review, the Company M/s. Choice

Equity Broking Private Limited has acquired the Depository

Participant Business of Pune based "NG Rathi Group" , the said

acquisition has broughtin 6,000 Clientto "Choice Broking".

2) M/s.Choice Finserv Private Limited- Subsidiary

M/s. Choice Finserv Private Limited (Choice Finserv) is now the
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3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

"NBFC” arm of the group, the Company ”Choice Finserv" had

secured its Registration as an ” Non- Deposit Taking Non- Banking

Financial Company" with effect from January 12,2018. On grant of

grant of License to the subsidiary , M/s. Choice International Limited

have transferred its entire NBFC Business to its subsidiary" Choice

Finserv” pursuant to approval of the said transfer of Business by the

Shareholders of the Company vide Postal Ballot Notice dated

February12,2018 with effectivefrom March 30,2018.

During the Year under review, 22.60 % stake of the Company

”Choice Finserv" has been transferred to M/s. Choice Equity

Broking Private Limited.

The said transfer of Stake of "Choice Finserv" to M/s. Choice Equity

Broking Private Limited does not in any instance constitute change

in control or Management as the Transferee Company M/s. Choice

Equity Bro king Private Limited itself is the Wholly owned

subsidiary of M/s. Choice International Limited.

M/s. Choice Portfolio Management Services Private Limited -

Subsidiary

The Portfolio Management Services ofthe group is catered to the

clients through our Subsidiary M/s. Choice Portfolio Management

Services Private Limited a SEBI Registered Portfolio Managers.

During the Year under review, 47.40 % stake of the Company M/s.

Choice Portfolio Management Services Private Limited has been

transferred to M/s. Choice Equity Broking Private Limited.

The said transfer of Stake of M/s. Choice Portfolio Management

Services Private Limited to M/s. Choice Equity Broking Private

Limited does not in any instance constitute change in control or

Management as the Transferee Company M/s. Choice Equity

Broking Private Limited itself is the Wholly owned subsidiary of

M/s. Choice International Limited.

M/s. Choice Wealth Management Services Private Limited -

WhollyOwned Subsidiary

The Company M/s. Choice Wealth Management Services Private

Limited (Choice Wealth) is registered with the ”Association of

Mutual Funds of India” (AMFI) as a Mutual Fund Distributor and is

empanelled with various Mutual Fund Houses to distribute their

services to the end clients.

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited - Wholly Owned

Subsidiary

The Investment Banking & Merchant Banking services are

delivered by our wholly owned Subsidiary M/s. Choice Capital

Advisors Private Limited (Choice Capital Advisors). Choice Capital

Advisors is a SEBI registered category-l merchant banker, offering

services such as IPO advisory, valuations, corporate finance etc.

The Subsidiary have advised numerous companies across

industries and concluded dozens oftransactions.

ChoiceCorporateServices Private limited -Who||yOwnedSubsidiary

The Retail Loan services are made available to the clients through

our wholly owned subsidiary M/s. Choice Corporate Services

Private Limited. Choice Retail loan services are in the forefront of

assisting its clients in fulfilling their dreams. The whole protocol is

crafted to make it convenient for the potential customer to receive

loan of his/her preference with a strong networkspread across the

nation atthe best Interest Rates with all the documentation ease.

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited - Wholly Owned

Subsidiary

"Infrastructure Consultancy" is the core area ofservice provided by

our wholly owned subsidiary M/s. Choice Consultancy Services

Director’s Report

Private Limited. The subsidiary is proficient in catering its

consultancy services to various segments like Roads, Highways &

Bridges, Affordable Housing,Water Management, Environment &

Solid Waste Management, Public Financial Reforms, Urban

Development & Sustainability, Public Utility & Welfare and

InformationTechnologyetc.

The subsidiary has entered in to various Joint Ventures as detailed

below as on March 31,2019:

i) Thoughts Consultants Jaipur PL in JV with Choice

ConsultancyServices PL

ii) VSC Consulting Private JV with Choice Consultancy Services

Private Limited

iii) Infra Dev Consultants in JV with Choice Consultancy Services

Pvt Ltd

8) Choice Peers International Private Limited - Wholly Owned

Subsidiary (Disposed ofthe entire holding on June 29, 2019)

Cross Border Consultancy was provided through our wholly owned

subsidiary M/s. Choice Peers International Private Limited (Choice

Peers). Choice Peers wasthe International arm ofthe group "Choice".

International Taxation, Audit & Assurance, Business Set Up and

expansions, Strategy & Technology Consulting were the services

provide across border by"Choice Peers”.

9) ChoiceTech LabSolutions Private limited -Who||yOwnedSubsidiary

Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited (Choice Tech Lab) is the

Technology arm of the group "Choice". The wholly owned

subsidiary offers a range ofTechnical aids such as Digital Services,

Cloud Services, Database Services, IT Security Services, Mobile

Application Development etc.

1 0) Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited -WhollyOwned Subsidiary

With a wide spread presence across various kind of services such

as Equity & Commodity Broking , NBFC activities, Mutual fund

Distribution, Retail Loans, Management Consulting, Investment

Banking, IT Solutions the group ” Choice" through its subsidiary

M/s. Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited has emanated online

platform known as " Choice Connect" to effortlessly get associated

with the group ” Choice" for any of our services by associating with

usthrough ouronline platform.

Associate Company
During the Year under review, the Company in trenches has sold its

entire stake consisting of 39.35% in the Company M/s. Paramone

Concepts Limited (Formerly known as M/s.Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures

Limited.As on March 31 , 201 9 the Company does not hold any shares

in the Company M/s. Paramone Concepts Limited.

As on March 31, 2019 the Company does not have any Associated

Companywho'sfinancial needsto be consolidated with the Company.

Material ChangesAffecting The Company
The Company ”Choice International Limited" as stated above in the

report has transferred its entire " NBFC” Business to its subsidiary M/s.

Choice Finserv Private Limited". The Company is now awaiting the

Cancellation of its "NBFC Status”from the ”Reserve Bankof India"

Post Surrender of License by the Company there are no "NBFC"

Operational activities undertaken by the Company . The Company

nowstands onlyas Holding Parent Companyto all its subsidiaries.

There are no other material Changes and commitments affecting the

financial position of the Company which have occurred between the

end ofthe FinancialYear2018-19 and the date ofthe report.
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In accordance with the Provisions of Section 152 & other Applicable

provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 (including

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time

being in force ) and the Articles of Association of the Company , Mr.

Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director(D|N No : 03051541 ) liableto retire by

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible

offered himselffor reappointment.

The Board recommends his re - appointment for consideration of

Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the

Company. Appropriate resolutions for his re - appointment is being

placed forthe approval ofthe Members along with his Brief Resume

and other related information has been placed in the Notice

convening the 26thAnnual General Meeting ofthe Company.

In accordance with the provisions oftheAct read with the Rules issued

thereunder, the Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of

the Company, Independent Directors and the Managing Director of

the Companyare not liable to retire by rotation.

The tenure of Mr. Kamal Poddar as a Managing Director of the

Company was extended for a Period of 3 Years effective from

November 01,2016 to October 31, 2019 by the Shareholders of the

Company attheAnnual General Meeting ofthe Company September

20,2016.

The Board at their Meeting held on August30, 2019 on the

recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

approved re— appointment of Mr. Kamal Poddarfor a furtherTenure of

5 Years starting from Nov 01, 2019 to Oct 30, 2024, subject to the

approval of the Shareholders. The approval of the Shareholders

relating to Mr. Kamal Poddar's reappointment and remuneration is

being sought at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held

on September27,2019

During the Year under review, Mr. Lalit Menghnani (DIN : 06614582) &

Mr. RaghuvirShrivastava (DIN No:01199531)theindependentDirector

of the Company resigned from the Directorship of the Company with

effect from May 25, 2018 & May 30, 2018 respectively due to their Pre

occupation -to pursuetheirother interests&Commitments.

Mr. L N .Nathuramka (DIN No : 0735408) the Independent Director of

the Company Resigned from the Directorship of the Company with

effectfrom October 24, 201 8 due to health constraints.

The Board Placed on record its appreciation for the Valuable services

& guidance rendered by the by the Resigning Directors during their

tenure as the Director's ofthe Company.

Director’s Report

The following are named personnel are the KMP'S ofthe Company as

on March 31 , 2019 as perSec 203 ofthe CompaniesAct,2013

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent

Director's confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as

prescribed underthe Provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with

the Schedules & rules issued there under, as well as clause (b) of sub

regulation (1) of Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. In terms of

Regulation 25(8) ofthe Listing Regulations,the Independent Directors

have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or

situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could

impairorimpacttheirabilityto dischargetheirduties.

Based on the confirmations / disclosures received from the Directors,

the following Non - Executive Directors are independent as on March

31,2019:

i) Mr.DebkumarGoswami

ii) Mr.Ashok KumarThakur

iii) Mr.Kanhaiya|a| Berwal

iv) Mr.BharatShah

Four Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the

Financial Year 2018-19. The details of the meetings of the Board of

Directors ofthe Company during the Financial Year 2018-19 are given

in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual

Report. The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial

Standards issued bythe Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Board of Directors hasthefollowing Committeesason March 31 , 2019:

i) Audit Committee

ii) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

iii) Stakeholder Relationship Committee

iv) Corporate Social ResponsibilityCommittee

The details of the above mentioned committee along with their

Composition, Number of Meetings, held and attendance at the

meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

For the lucid & competent working the Company had constituted

various Internal Committees consisting ofthe Executive, Independent

Director of the Companies along with the involvement of the Senior

Level Management in the Committee forthe smooth operations ofthe

Company , the details ofthe Committees constituted bythe Company

are asfollows:

i) Finance Committee

ii) lnvestmentCommittee

iii)SecuritiesAllotment Committee
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The meetings of the above mentioned Committees are held at

Regular Intervals for the smooth operations of the Company and

decisions undertaken are the set of collective people on the

consent of the majority of the members of the Committee. The

Pronouncements of the Committees are verified by the Board in

their subsequent Meetings.

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a

framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. The Policy

broadly lays down the guiding principles, philosophy and the basis of

paymentofremuneration.

The policy also provides the criteria for determining Qualifications,

positive attributes and Independence of Directors and criteria for

appointment of Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and

performance evaluation which are considered by the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors while making

selection ofthe candidates.

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N RC),

which is responsible for formulating the criteria for appointment of

Directors on the Board of the Company and persons holding Senior

Management positions in the Company including their remuneration

and other matters as provided under Section 178 of the Companies

Act,2013 and the Listing Regulations.The role ofthe NRC Committee

encompasses conducting a gap analysis to refresh the Board on a

periodic basis, including each time a Directors appointment or re-

appointment is required. The NRC Committee is also responsible for

reviewing the Profiles of Potential candidates the required,

competencies and due diligence and meeting of potential candidates

priorto making recommendations oftheir nomination to the Board.

Criteria for Determining Qualifications. Positive Attributes and

Independence of a Director:

In terms of the Provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, and Regulation

19 of the Listing Regulations, the NRC has formulated the criteria for

determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of

Directors, the keyfeatures ofwhich are as follows:

Qualifications: The Board Nomination process encourages diversity of

thought, experience, knowledge, age and gender. It also ensures that

the Board has an appropriate blend offunctional and industryexpertise.

Positive Attributes: Apartfrom the duties of Directors as prescribed in

the Act the Directors are expected to demonstrate high standards of

ethical behaviour, communications skills and independent

judgement. The Directors are expected to abide by the respective

code ofconductasapplicabletothem.

Independence: A director will be considered independent if / she

meets the criteria laid down in section 149 (6) of the Act, the Rules

framesthereunder and Regulation16(1)(b)ofthe Listing Regulations.

Choice International Limited believes in value for its stakeholders

through ethical process and integrity. The Board plays a very

important role in ensuring the Company's performance to monitor

and provide timely inputs to enhance the Company's Performance

Director's Report

and set right direction for growth. Hence it is important that every

individual Board Member effectively contributes in the Board

deliberations.

At "Choice" we follow annual evaluation for our Key Managerial

Persons and other eligible employees including the senior

management team. A process sculpted on this method has been

designed for evaluation of Directors underthis process, the company

managementwill:

— Formulate the processforevaluating and rating Directors

- Design the evaluation template /questionnaire and implementation

process

- Peer review of each Director

-Analyse feedback received from each Director

-Weighting the Evaluation summaryofeach Director.

0 AttendanceandcontributionatBoardandCommitteemeetings

0 His/her stature, appropriate mix of expertise, skills, behaviour,

experience,leadershipqualities,

0 Sense of sobriety and understanding of business, strategic

directiontoalign company'svalue and standards.

0 His/her knowledge of finance, accounts, legal, investment,

marketing, foreign exchange/ hedging, internal controls, risk

management, assessment and mitigation, business operations,

processes and Corporate Governance.

0 His/her ability to create a performance culture that drives value

creation and a high quality of debate with robust and probing

discussions.

0 Effective decisions making ability to respond positively and

constructively to implement the same to encourage more

transparency.

0 Openchannelsofcommunicationwithexecutivemanagementand

other colleague on Board to maintain high standards of integrity

and probity.

0 Recognize the role which he/she is expected to play, internal Board

Relationships to make decisions objectively and collectively in the

best interest of the Company to achieve organizational successes

and harmonizingthe Board.

- His/her global presence, rational, physical and metal fitness,

broaderthinking, vision on corporate social responsibility etc.

0 Quality of decision making & understanding financial statements

and business performance, raising of finance, best source of

finance, working capital requirement, forex dealings, geopolitics,

human resources etc.

0 His/her ability to monitor the performance of management and

satisfy himself with integrity of the financial controls and systems in

place by ensuring right level ofcontactwith external stakeholders.

I His/hercontributiontoenhanceoverallbrandimageoftheCompany.

Criteria for Determining Remuneration of Director's, Key Managerial

Personnel and Particulars of Employees:

The Remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the

Nomination & Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance with

section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations

(including any statutory Modification(s) or re- enactment(s)thereoffor

thetime beinginforce.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS BYTHE COMPANY

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the applicable
Rules of the Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements
forming partofthisAnnual Report.

RELATED PARTYTRANSACTION

During the year under review, the Company has not entered in to any
contracts/ arrangements / transaction with related parties which
qualify as material in accordance with the policy of the Company on
materiality of related partytransaction.

All related partytransactions that were entered during the financial year
201 8-1 9, were on arm's length basis and in ordinarycourse of business.

All related party transaction are reported to the Audit Committee.
Prior approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on yearly basis for
the transactions which are planned or repetitive in nature and
omnibus approvals are taken as per the policy laid down for
unforeseentransactions.

The details of the transactions with related parties during FY 2018—19
are provided in the accompanyingfinancial statements.

The details of Related Party transactions are set out in notes to the
Financial Statements. Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of

the CompaniesAct,2013 read with Rules is set out in theAnnexure to

this report&also forma a partofthe Financial Statements.

During the year under review there are no material related party
transactions with the Directors, Promoters & Key Managerial Persons
ofthe Company.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS

There were no instances of Fraud aroused during the year under review.

SIGNIFICANTAND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators,
courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's
operation '5 in future.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the operations of
the Company, as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligation &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (herein referred to as

"Listing Regulations") is provided in a separate section and forms a
Part of this report. The section covers the overall industry structure,
global and domestic economy, development in Business Operations
& performance ofvarious segments ofthe Company's Business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Regulation 34(3) read with scheduleVofthe Listing Regulations,
a separate section on Corporate Governance practices followed by the
Company together with a certificate from the Secretarial Auditor
confirming Compliance forms an integral partofthe Report.

EXTRACTS OFANNUALRETURN

The details forming partofthe extracts ofthe Annual Return in Form -
MGT—9 as required under section 92 of the Act, is annexed as
Annexure which forms an integral partofthis Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITYREPORT

Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 interalia
provides thattheAnnual Report ofthe top 500 listed entities based on
market capitalisation (calculated on March 31 everyfinancial yearshall
include Business Responsibility Report(BRR)as partofthe Report.

 

"' O 09 .7 V
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

Your Company does not fall within the purview of the above
mentioned Regulation, however in order to follow the best practices
and in the interest of the Shareholders your company has adopted its
Business Responsibility Report(BRR)which is enclosed as Annexure to
the Director's Report. CEO/CFO CERTFICATIONS

In terms of Regulations 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, a certificate as
prescribed in Part B of the said Regulations, from Mr. Kamal Poddar,

Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Manoj Singhania, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, for the Financial Year 2018-19 with
regards to Financial statements and other matters are required underthe
Listing Regulationsforms partofthe Reporton Corporate Governance.

POLICIESADOPTED BYTHE COMPANY

To follow the best practice of Good Corporate Governance &
Transparency in its operations, the Company has set rules for its
internal working and smooth functionality of its operations
embedded the Company's policy The policies adopted by the
Companyareasfollows:

I Whistle Blower Policy

I Policyon MaterialSubsidiary

0 Policy on Related Party

I Policyon Materialityovaents

I PolicyonArchivaloflnformation

I Nomination & Remuneration Policy

0 Code of Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Managerial
Employees

0 Code of Fair Disclosure ofUnpublished Price Sensitive Information

0 Codefor Employees

¢ Policy on prevention ofSexual HarassmentatWorkPlace

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns
or grievances &to provide adequate safeguards against victimization
of persons. The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on website of
the Company www.choiceindia.com

The Company'sVigil Mechanism allows the Directors and employees
to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the code of Conduct. The policy also
provides protection to the employees and business associates who
report unethical practices and irregularities.

The robust vigil mechanism of your Company is in compliance with
the provisions of Section 177(10) of the Companies Act 2013 and
Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations. During the Year under
review there are no Complains/ reporting's received bythe Company
in the said mechanism forthe Companyandforits subsidiaries.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT
AT WORKPLACE

The Company has formulated a policy on prevention, prohibition and
redressal of sexual harassment at work place in line with the provisions
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder

for prevention and redressal of Complains of Sexual Harassment at
workplace.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution
of the Internal Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)Act,2013.

During the Financial Year 2018-19, no cases in the nature of Sexual

harassment were reported at any work place ofthe Company or any of
its subsidiaries.
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Your company voluntarily has adopted CSR Policy to shoulder its

responsibility towards the society and also continued a CSR

Committee to ascertain the activities taken by the Company in the

best interest ofthe society although the companydoes notfall in the

mine ofapplicability ofSection 135 ofthe CompaniesAct,2013.

Within the ambit of the provisions of the Company Acts , 2013, the

company focuses in the following major areas for the ecological

development of the Society and environment and thus being

desirousto maketheworld a betterplacetosurvive and sustain:

Hunger, Poverty, Malnutrition & Health

Education

GenderEquality

Supporting Rural Development

Ensuring Environmental sustainability

Promoting Sports and healthy living

During the year your Company has spent an amount of Rs.

4,00,000/— in the field of Rural Development & Swatch Bharat

Abhyan. 
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them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fairview of the state
of affairs ofthe Company as at March 31,2019 and of the profits of
the Companyforthe FinancialYearended March 31 , 2019

c. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of
adequate accounting records with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d. TheAnnual accounts/financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.

e. Internal financial control were in place and thatthe financial control
were adequate and were operating effectively.

1‘. Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

Conservation of Energy

i) Stepstaken or impact on conservation of Energy

The Operations ofthe Company are not energy intensive. However
adequate measures have been initiated for conservation ofenergy.

ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate source of
energy

Though the operations of the Company are not energy intensive,
the Company promotes green energy and energy saving initiatives

among its employees. The Company has installed a roof top solar
power plants at its corporate office.

iii) The Capital Investments on energy conservation equipments by
the Company- Nil

i) The effortstowardstechnology absorption:

The minimum technology required for the business has been
absorbed, the Company has also adopted an online enterprise
wide Human Resource system which eliminates manual working,
encourages paperless working & easy availability of data on the
system.

ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,

product development or import substitution — encourages
paperless working & reduces manual working.

iii) In case of imported technology (imported during last three years
reckoned from the beginning ofthe FinancialYear): NA

iv) The expenditure incurred on Research & Development: Nil

Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

There are no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the Year
underreview.

Each organization works towards the realization of one vision. The
same is achieved byformulation of certain strategies and execution of
the same.Atthe base ofthis strategyformulation lie various processes
and the effectiveness of the former lies in the meticulous design of
these processes. The Very purpose of the Human Resource is to
provide the ”Training" needed to strengthen and grow the knowledge
, skill and abilities that an employee already has fortheirown growth
as an individual &the organisation's vision as a whole!

At Choice we believe that employees are the most vital resource for
the accomplishing the goals & objectives of the Company. At Choice
we nurture the skills ofan individual to out— perform fortheir individual
growth as well. The Company has structured induction process at all

Director’s Report

locations and management development programmes to upgrade
skills ofthe Manager. The Company has continued to conductvarious
employee benefit, recreational and team building programs to
enhance employee skills, motivation and in all to fosterteam spirit.The
Company truly believes in encouraging, shaping & retaining the top
talent ofthe Company.

The Board of Directors place their sincere appreciation, for the
contribution made by the employees at all levels because of whose
hard work and support, your Company's achievement would not have
been possible.

The Directors also place on record their earnest gratitude for the
continued support extended by the Bankers, Financial Institutions,
Lenders and Stakeholders fortheir conviction and faith rested with the
group"Choice".

Further the Directors express their sincere appreciation to the all the
Regulators of the Company namely the Reserve Bank of India , BSE
Limited ,Securities & Exchange Board of India , Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Registrar of Companies, Depositories, other Government &

Regulatory Authorities for their on-going support extended by them
towardsthe Company.

On behalfofthe Board of Directors

Sdl- Sd/—

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

(Managing Director) (Director)

DIN No:01518700 DIN No:03051841

Mumbai:August30,2019
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31 .03.201 9
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 1 2(1) of the Company
(Management &Administration) Rules, 2014.

| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L67190MH1993PLC071117
 
ii Registration Date 12-Mar-1993 
iii Name of the Company CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 
iv Category of the Company

Sub-category of the Company
Company limited by Shares
Non-govt company
 

CHOICE HOUSE, SHREE SHAKAMBHARI CORPORATE PARK,
PLOT NO. 156-158, J. B. NAGAR, ANDHERI (E), MUMBAI - 400 099

v "Address of the Registered office & contact details"

 
vi Whether listed company YES
 
vii Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar & "SHAREX DYNAMIC (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITEDUNIT NO. 1,

TransferAgent, if any. LUTHRA INDUSTRIAL PREMISES, ANDHERl-KURLA ROAD,

SAFED POOL,ANDHER| (EAST), MUMBAI - 400072"
 

|| PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated.

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name & Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products/services Product /service of the company

1 NBFC&Other 74 12.18%

2 Broking & Distribution 74 57.29%

3 Investment Banking 74 4.46%

4 Consulting 74 21.62%

5 Technical services 74 3.81%

6 Other unallocable 74 0.64%
 

||I PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

NAME & ADDRESS OF
THE COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited U65999MH2010PTC198714 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

2 Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited U65990MH2010PTC198262 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

3 Choice Wealth Management Private Limited U65999MH2010PTC198598 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

4 Choice Portfolio Management Services Private Limited U74140MH2007PTC177075 Subsidiary 52.61 2(87)

5 Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited U72900MH2010PTC198603 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

6 Choice Peers International Private Limited* U74999MH2011PTC214759 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

7 Choice Corporate Services Private Limited U67190MH2011PTC214515 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

8 Choice Finserv Private Limited U74999MH2016PTC281908 Subsidiary 77.40 2(87)

9 Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited U74999MH2016PTC286302 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

10 Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited U74999MH2015PTC268856 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
 

 

*Note:

1)The Company has Disposed of the entire holding in M/s. Choice Peers International Private Limited on June 29,2019.
2) During the year the company has disposed of all the stack held in its Associate Company M/s. Paramone Concepts Limited (Formely
know as Aqua pumps Infra Ventures Limited)
3) During the year the company has disposed off its partial holding in its Wholly on owned subsidiaries namely M/s. Choice Finserv Pvt.
Ltd. & M/s. Portfolio Management services Pvt. Ltd., to its Wholly owned subsidiary M/s. Choice Equity Broking Pvt. Ltd.,
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATI'ERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

-fiPhYSical
A. Promoters

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

wPhYSical

  

 
(1) Indian 
a) IndividuallHUF 1430001 1 14300011 71.48 14300011 - 14300011 71.48 
b) Central Govt.or State Govt. 
c) Bodies Corporates 386527 - 386527 1.93 386527 - 386527 1.93
 
d) Bank/FI
 
e) Any other
 

SUBTOTAL: (A) (1 ) 1 4686538 - 1 4686538 73.41 507 1 4686538 - 1 4686538
 
(2) Foreign 
a) NRI- Individuals 
b) Other Individuals 
c) Bodies Corp. 
d) Banks/FI 
e)Any other...
 
SUBTOTAL (A) (2)
 
"Total Shareholding of

Promoter (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)" 14686538 - 14686538 73.41507 14686538 - 14686538
 
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
 
(1 ) Institutions 
a) Mutual Funds 
b) Banks/FI 
c) Cenntral govt
 
d) State Govt. 
e)Venture Capital Fund
 
f) Insurance Companies 
g) FIIS 
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 
|) Others (specify) 
SUBTOTAL(B)(1):
 
(2) Non Institutions 
a) Bodies corporates 
i) Indian 3042379 2000 3044379 15.22 2860730 2000 2862730 14.31 -0.91 
ii) Overseas 
b) Individuals 
i) Individual shareholders

holding nominalshare

capital upto Rs.1 lakhs 949843 73002 1022845 5.11 1089382 1089382 5.45 0.33 
ii) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share

capital in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs 782638 - 782638 3.91 1015193 - 1015193 5.07 1.16 
c) Others (specify) 
Clearing Member 11666 - 11666 0.06 2619 - 2619 0.00 -0.06 
OCB 
NRI 184076 - 184076 0.92 57219 - 57219 0.29 -0.63 
HUF 216658 - 216658 1.08 234969 - 234969 1.17 0.09 
IEPF 0 0 0.00 150 150 0.00 0.00 
Directors & Relatives 56000 - 56000 0.28 56000 - 56000 0.28 0.00 
SUBTOTAL (B)(2): 5243260 75002 5318262 26.58 316262 2000 5318262 26.57 -0.01 
"Total Public Shareholding

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)" 5243260 75002 5318262 26.58 5316262 2000 5318262 26.57 -0.01
 
"C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs" 
Promoter & Promoter
 
Group 
Public 
Grand Total (A+B+C) 19929798 75002 20004800 1 00.00 20002800 2000 20004800 100 0
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1 Mr. Kamal Poddar
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2018 25,00,011 12.50 25,00,011 12.50
Change during the Year - - - - -
At the end of the year 31 -03-201 9 25,00,011 12.50 25,00,011 12.50

2 Mrs. Hemalata Kamal Poddar
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2018 8.50.000 4.25 8.50.000 4.25

Change during the Year - - - - -
At the end of the year 31 -03-201 9 8.50.000 4.25 8.50.000 4.25

. . . . 3 Mr. A'a Ke'riwalMrs.VInIta Sunll Patodia 15,75,000 7.87 — 15,75,000 7.87 - 0.00 Am; gegilnning ofthe year 01-04-2018 52000 0.26 52,000 026
Mrs. Hemlata Kamal Poddar 8,50,000 4.25 - 8.50.000 4.25 - 0.00 Change during the Year _ _ _ _ _

Mr. Sunil Kumar Patodia 11,00,000 5.50 - 11,00,000 5.50 - 0.00 At the end Of the year 31 _03_201 9 52,000 0.26 52,000 0.26

Mr. Kamal Poddar 25,00,011 12.50 - 25,00,011 12.50 - 0.00

Kamal Poddar HUF 2,25,000 1.12 - 2,25,000 1.12 - 0.00

Arun Kumar Poddar 21,00,000 10.50 - 21,00,000 10.50 - 0.00 (Amount in a

Shree Shakambari Exims 3,86,527 1.93 - 3,86,527 1.93 - 0.00

Private Limited

Sonu Poddar 12,50,000 6.25 - 12,50,000 6.25 - 0.00

Arunkumar Poddar HUF 2,25,000 1.12 - 2,25,000 1.12 - 0.00

Anil Chotmal Patodia 11,00,000 5.50 - 11,00,000 5.50 - 0.00

Sunil Chotmal Patodia HUF 3,00,000 1.50 - 3.00.000 1.50 - 0.00

Archana Anil Patodia 15,75,000 7.87 - 15,75,000 7.87 - 0.00

Anil Chotmal Patodia HUF 3.00.000 1.50 — 3.00.000 1.50 - 0.00 Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
Mr. Suyash Patodia 3,00,000 1.50 _ 3,00,000 1'50 _ 0.00 i) Principalfmobunt d 3,10,00,000 12,34,55,425 92,47,35,443 1.07.91.90.868

. _ _ ii) Interest ue ut not pai - - - -

Xasngfiirzij; 3:83:83: 123 _ 3:83:38 1:3 _ 8:83 iii) Interest accrued but not due 98,85,488 22,25,113 1,20,04,593 2,41,15,194

AaStha An” Pat°dia 3901000 1-50 ' 3301000 15° ' 0-00 Total (i+ii+iii) 4,08,85,488 12.56.80.538 93.67.40.036 1.10.33.06.062
Total 1 ,46,86,538 73.42 - 1,46,86,538 73.42 - -

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Additions - - 931 931

Reduction 4,08,85,488 11.66.44.917 93.67.40.036 1.09.42.70.441

Net Change (4,08,85,488) (11,66,44,917) (93,67,39,105) (1 ,09,42,69,51 0)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount - 45,30,083 931 45,31,014

ii) Interest clue but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - 45,05,538 - 45,05,538

Total (i+ii+iii) - 90,35,621 931 90,36,552

No change

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. 4,200,000 4,200,000
(b)Va|ue of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act. 1961 - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act.1961 - -

2 Stock option - -
Azura Projects Private Limited 1285026 6.42 - 1285026 6.42

Florence Securities Private Limited 935684 4.68 - -1 50000 785684 3.93 3 Sweat Equity - -
Chartered Capital Research Private Limited 508156 2.54 - -93944 414212 2.07

Fashions Brands (India) Private Limited 0 0.00 - 152000 152000 0.76 4 Commission - -
Smeaton Developers Private Limited 0 0.00 - 150000 150000 0.75 as % of profit

Vivek Bhimsariya 120000 0.60 - - 120000 0.60 others (specify) - -
Kirodi Mal Modi 98000 0.49 - - 98000 0.49

Sunita Modi 93000 0.46 — — 93000 0.46 5 Others. please Specify - -
Bhageria Basant Matadin 55871 0.28 - - 55871 0.28 Total (A) - -
Govind Patodia HUF 55046 0.28 — — 55046 0.28 Ceiling as perthe Act 4200.000 4.200.000
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B Remuneration to other directors:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar Non Executive Director
 

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director
 

SR Name of the Director Category a) Fees for b) Commission c) Others, Total amount

No. attending please specify Paid
Board

Meeting

1 Mr. D K Goswami Independent Director 2,00,000 - - 2.00.000

2 Mr. L. N. Nathuramka Independent Director 50,000 - - 50,000

3 Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal Independent Director 1,00,000 - - 1.00.000

4 Mr. Raghuveer Shrivatava Independent Director - - - -

5 Mr. Lalit Menghnanai Independent Director - - - -

6 Mr.Ashok KumarThakur Independent Director 2,00,000 - - 2.00.000

7

8

9 Mr. Bharatkumar Shah Independent Director
 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

SR Particulars of Remuneration

No.

1 Gross Salary

Key Managerial Personnel

Company Secretary CFO TOTAL
 

Karishma Shah Manoj Singhania
 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act,1961.

(b)Va|ue of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax
Act, 1 961

9,82,879 15,01,507 24,84,386

 

Stock Option
 

Sweat Equity
 

#
0
0
1
6

Commission
as % of profit
others. specify
 

5 Others. please specify
 

Total 9,82,879 1 5,01 .507 24,84,386
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section Brief Details of Authority Appeall made if
of the Description Penalty/ (RD/NCLT/Court) any (give details)

Companies Punishment/
Act Compounding

fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty NIL NlL NlL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NlL NlL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL NIL NlL NIL NlL

Punishment NIL NIL NlL NIL NlL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NIL NlL NlL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NlL NlL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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FORM NO. MR.3

SecretarialAudit Reportforthefinancial year ended on March 31 , 201 9

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule 9 of the companies (Appointment and remuneration of managerial
personnel) Rule, 201 4]

To,

The Members
Choice International Limited
[CIN: L671 90MH1993PLC071117]

Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park,
1561 ChakravortyAshokSociety,
J.B. Nagar, Andheri(E)

Mumbai -400099

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit ofthe compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices
by Choice International Limited (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing ouropinion thereon.

Based on our verification ofthe books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained bythe Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31 , 2019 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subjectto the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended on March 31 , 2019 according to the provisions of:
l. The CompaniesAct, 201 3 (the Act) and the Rules madethere-under;
II. The Securities Contracts(Regulation)Act, 1 956 ('SCRA') and the Rules madethere-under;
Ill. The DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there-under;
|V. Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations madethere-underto the extentapplicable.
V. Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed underthe Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act')to the extent

applicabletotheCompany;

i. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Substantial Acquisition ofShares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Prohibition of InsiderTrading) Regulations, 201 5;

VI. Otherlawapplicablespecificallytothe Company, as detailed below;
i. The Reserve BankoflndiaAct,1934
ii. Rules, regulation and guidelines issued bythe Reserve Bankoflndia as are applicabletothe Non-Banking Financial Company(NBFC)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following;
(i) Secretarial Standards issued byThe Institute of Company Secretaries of India related to the meetings of Board of Directors and General

Meetings;
(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and listing agreement entered into by the Company with

Stock Exchanges in India.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company and test
verification on random basis carried outforcompliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company

The compliance by the Company ofthe applicable directtax laws. indirect tax laws and otherfinancial laws has not been reviewed in this Audit,
since the same have been subject to review by the other designated professionals and being relied on the reports given by such designated
professionals.

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.
as mentioned above.

During thefinancial year under review, provisions ofthe following regulations were not applicable to the Company;
i. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Delisting of EquityShares) Regulations. 2009; and
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
iii. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Issue of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
iv. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Employee StockOption Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)Guidelines 1999
v. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Issue ofCapital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations. 2009;
vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations. 1993 regarding the

CompaniesAct and dealing with client;

Wefurther reportthat:

0 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions oftheAct.

0 Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance and there was noformal system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting for meaningful participation atthe meeting.

0 Decisions atthe meetings of Board of Directors ofthe Company and Committee thereofwere carried out with requisite majority.

We further report that based on the information provided and representation made by the Company and also on the review of compliance
reports ofthe respective departmentduly signed bythe department head and Compliance Certificate(s) ofthe Managing Director/Company

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED |ANNUAL REPORT 2019| 26



 

Annexure to Board Report Annexure to Board Report

 

Secretary/CFO taken on record by the Board of Directors ofthe Company. in our opinion system and process exists in the company required to
be strengthen to commensurate with the size and operations ofthe Companyto monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable laws. rules.
regulations and guidelines.

We further report during the financial year under review, following are the specific events/actions occurred, may have major bearing on the TO, _
affairs ofthe Company in pursuance ofany ofthe above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines standards etc.; The Board Of Dlrectors

. . . . . . . . Choice International Limited
0 The Company Vlde letter dated August 20, 2018 had requested for cancellation of Certificate of Registration (COR) of NBFC, which Is

pending forconfirmation with the Reserve Bankoflndia (RBI). RBI has had instructed the Companyto reduce its FinancialAssets below 50% (CIN: L67190MH1 993PLC07111 7)
of its total assets before March 31 , 2019 to proceed further in the matter. Accordingly,the Company has reduced its Financial Assets below Choice HOUSG S h ree Sh a kambha l'l Corporate Pa rk
50‘7 ofitstotal assets as ofMarch,2019. . I

° PlotNo.156-158,J.B.Nagar,AndherI (East),
ForRM MIMAN|&ASSOCIATES LLP Mumbai - 400099
[COMPANYSECRETARIES]

F' R 't t' N .l2001MH250300 . . . . . .[ Irm eglsralon o 1 We have been engaged by ChOIcelnternatlonal LImIted(hereInafter referred to as the
Company') whose equity shares are listed on BSE Limited (Security Code: 531358) to

:AthIMANI conduct an audit in terms of Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
(pARTNER, Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 as amended, read with SEBl's Circular No.
ACSNo:17083 CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 08. 2019 and to issue AnnualSecretarial
CPNo : 11601 Compliance Report thereon.

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 30th August.2019 It Is the responsnblllty of the management of the Company to maintain records, devnse
propersystems to ensure compliance of the provisions Securities and Exchange Board of

 

Note:Thisreportistobereadwithourletterofevendatewhichisannexedas"AnnexureA"andformsandintegralpartofthisreport. India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act"), the Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956(IISCRA"),

and allapplicable Rules, Regulations and circulars/ guidelinesissued there under from
Annexure-"A" time to time and to ensure that the systems are adequate and are operating

effectively.
To.

TheMembers Our responsibilityistoverifycompliances bythe Companywith provisions ofallSEBlAct,
Choice International Limited - - . . . .
[ClNzL67190MH1993PLC071117] SCRAand all applicable Rules, Regulations and Circularsl gUIdelInes Issued there under
ShreeShakambhariCorporate Park. from timeto time and Issue a reportthereon.
1561 ChakravortyAshokSociety. _ . _ _ .

J.B.Nagar.Andheri(E) Our audit was conducted In accordance With GUIdance Note on AnnualSecretarIal

Mumbai'400099 Compliance Report issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and in a
mannerwhich involved such examinations and verifications as considered necessaryand

OurSecretarial Audit Reportofeven date is to be read along with this letter; .
adequate forthe said purpose.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility ofthe management ofthe Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on An n ual Secreta rial Com pl iance Report in the format prescri bed is enclosed herewith.
these secretarial records based on ouraudit;

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents ofthe secreta rial records.The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correctfacts are reflected in secretarial records.We FOR R M M |MAN| &ASSOC|ATES LLP
believethatthe processes and practices.wefollowed provide a reasonable basisforouropinion;

3. We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness offinancial records and Books ofAccounts ofthe Company; COMPANIES SECRETARIES

4. Where ever required. we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws. rules and regulation and FIRM REGISTRATION N031 2001 MH250300
happening ofevents etc.;

5. The compliance ofthe provisions of corporate and other applicable laws. rules. regulations. standards is the responsibility of management.
Ourexamination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis;

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which Sdl- . . _

the management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company. Mano; Mimanl

(Partner)
For R M MIMANI &ASSOCIATES LLP

[COMPANYSECRETARIES] ACS : 1 7083
[Firm Registration No.|2001MH250300] CP NO 1 1 601

Sdl- .
MANOJMIMANI Place. Mumbai

(PARTNER) Dated: May 27, 2018
ACS No: 17083

CP No : 11601

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 30thAugust,2019

 

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED |ANNUAL REPORT 2019 I 27 CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED |ANNUAL REPORT 2019 I 28



   _ Annexure to Board Report Annexure to Board Report

Secretarial Compliance report (9) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible

0f and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations,2013; [Not applicable as there

Choice international Limited for the year ended March 31 , 201 9 W35 "0 reportable eventduring the review period)

(Under regulation 24A 0f the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of InsiderTrading) Regulations,
Regulations, 2015) 2015

We have examined. and circulars/ guidelines issued there-under; and based on the above examination, we

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by hereby reportthat,during the Review Period;
Choice International Limited ("the listed entity".)

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above
(b) thefilings/submissionsmadebythelistedentitytothestockexchanges,

Regulations and circulars/ guidelinesissuedthere-under
(c) website ofthe listed entity,

(d) any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make (b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions Of the
this certification, above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there—under insofar as it

for the year ended on March 31 , 2019("Review Period") in respect of compliance with appears from mylourexamination ofthose records.
the provisions of:

a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (”SEBI Act") and the

Regulations,circulars,guidelinesissuedthere-under;and

b. the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (”SCRA”), rules made there under

and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued there-under by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India ("SEBI")

(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity 1 its

promoters/directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock

Exchanges(including underthe Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI

through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/

guidelinesissued there-under:

 

 

       

Th: spficifichegulation‘s, Viéhosel péoyisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued there Sr. Action Details of Details of action Observations/ Remarks

un er, ave een examine ,Incu e.— No. taken by violation taken E.g.fines, ofthe Practicing

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure warning letter CompanySecretary
Requirements)Regulations,2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Nil
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable as there was no reportable

eventdurlngthe reVIewperIod). (cl) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and made in previous reports [Not applicable, as this is first review period for which

Takeovers)Regulations,2011; report is beingissued]

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations. 2018,
[Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the revuew period] FOR; R M MIMANI &ASSOCIATES LLP

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) (COMPANIESSECRETARIES)

Regulations, 2014; [Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the
review period] FIRM REGISTRATION NO.: 12001 MH250300

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the Sd/'
review period] Manoj Mimani

(partner)

ACS : 17083

CP NO. 1 1601

Place: Mumbai

Dated: May27, 2018
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORTS
As per Clause 34 (f) ofthe SEBI Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement Regulation, 201 5

Section A: General InformationAboutThe Company

1 Corporate Identification Number L67190MH1993PLC071117
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SECTION E: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE

1 Principle-Wise Performance Includedinthis report
 

Preface

As mandated bythe Securities and Exchange Board of India ( SEBI)w.eprril 01 , 201 6, India'stop 500 listed on BSE and NSE , are required to

submit a " Business Responsibility Report"( BRR) along with their Annual Report for the year 2018- 19. Although your Company is not in the

league of Top 500 Listed Companies. Your Company voluntarily aspires to adopt the guidelines issued by SEBI with respect to Business

Responsibility statement to adhere to best philosophies of ethical principles to run a company and to abide to the Corporate Governance

practises in true letter & spirit.

"Choice International Limited" or "Choice” your Company voluntarily for the Financial Year 2018 -19 presents its first BRR in line with National

Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) and the BRR Requirements of SEBI. The

Business Responsibility Performance ofthe Company is assessed annually bythe Board of Directors ofthe Company.

The Company is at a very nascent stage to adhere to the regulations stipulated for addressing the Business Responsibility Report; the Company

is in the process of adopting the policies to adhere to the Principles of Business Responsibility Reporting. However your company is following

the guiding Principles for embracing the responsibilities shouldered on your company in true letter and spirit by motivating itself to set up a

 

 

 

Nameofthe Company Choicelnternational Limited

3 Registered Address Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park,

Plot No 156 —158,J.B.Nagar,Andheri(East),Mumbai - 400099

4 Website www.choiceindia.com

5 EmailAddress info@choiceindia.com

6 FinancialYearreported April01,2018to March 31,2019

7 Sector(s)that the companyisengaged in FinancialServices

8 Three key products/services manufactured/ - Broking & Distribution

provided bythe company -ManagementConsultancy

- Investment Banking

9 Total Number of locations where business activity

is undertaken bythecompany 22

10 Markets served bythe company Domestic.

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OFTHECOMPANY

1 Paid up Capital Rs.20,00,48,000
 

TotalTurnover Rs.1,314,091,412
 

Rs.3,33,18,719
 

Totalspending on CSR as percentage of PAT(%) 2%
 

2

3 Total Profit afterTax

4

5 Listthe activities in which expenditure in 4

above has been incurred

Educational Programmes, Rural Development,

EnvironmentSustainability
 

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1 Doesthe Companyhasanysubsidiary

Company/Companies?

Yes

The Company has Ten wholly owned subsidiaries as on March 31 , 2019
 

2 DotheSubsidiaryCompany/Companies

pa rticipate in the BR Initiatives ofthe parent Company?

If Yes ,then indicate the numberofsuch

subsidiarycompany(s).

Yes

 

3 Do any other entity/ entities ( eg. Suppliers,

distributoretc.)thatthe companydoes business

with , participate in the BR initiatives ofthe

Company? |fyes,then indicatethe percentage

of such entity/ entities(Less than 30%,

30-60%, More than 60 %)

Not applicable

 

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION
 

 

 

 

 

1 Details of Director(s) responsiblefor BR

a Details ofthe Directorresponsiblefor

implementation ofthe BR Policy

DlNNo 01518700

Name Kamal Poddar

Designation Managing Director
 

b Details ofthe BRhead
 

DIN Number(lfapplicable)
 

Name ManojSinghania 
Designation Chief Financial Officer
 

Telephone Number 022-67079999 
EmailAddress manoj.singhania@choiceindia.com
 

2 Priniciple—wise BR Policy/Policies Included in the Report
 

3 Governance related to BR Included in the Report
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PRINCIPLE PRINCIPLE

Ethics, Transperancy
&Accountability Sustanability

Product Lifecycle

 

PRINCIPLE

Employees
Well Being

  

PRINCIPLE PRINCIPLE

Stakeholder
Enagaement

Human Rights

 

PRINCIPLE

Environment

  

PRINCIPLE PRINCIPLE

Policy Advocacy

 

 

 ETHICS, TRANSPERANCY&ACCOUNTABILITY /
 

Business should conduct and Govern themselves with ethics,
transparencyand accountability

Choice Group considers Corpora Governance as an integral part
of good management and is committed to acting professionally.
fairly and with integrityin all its dealings.

The Standard on ethics. transparency and accountability are
stated under the Company policy on Code of Conduct. Code of
Conduct is the statement of values and represents the standard
conduct on which everyone associated with your company is
expected to observe in all business endeavours. Your Company
also has a Whistle Blower Policy which allows employees to bring
to the attention of the Management . promptly and directly any
unethical behaviour suspected fraud or irregularity in the
company practises which is not in line with the Code of Conduct
of the Company. Adequate measures are in place to ensure
safeguards against victimization for employees who report any
unethical behaviour.

There is a robust system to protect the confidentiality of
unpublished price sensitive information. The system works
through processes that not only ensures compliance with the

Inclusive Growth

 

 

PRINCIPLE

Customer Value

requirements prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations. 2015. as
amended from time to time, by making timely disclosures to
stock exchanges. declarations by designated persons. but also
moves ahead with the help of the Company's Code of Practices
and Procedures forfair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information. The Code is applicable to those employees of the
Company. its subsidiaries and joint ventures. who may be
deemed to have access to unpublished price sensitive
information.

No Stake holders complaints with respectto the Company's code
of conduct and whistle Blower Policy were received in the
reportingyear.

 

 

 PRODUCT LIFECYCLE SUSTANABILITY /
 

Business should provide goods and services that are safe and
contribute to sustainabilitythroughouttheir life cycle.

ChoiceGroupis entirelyin catering financialservicesincludingits
subsidiaries and is not engaged in any kind of manufacturing
activityorservices underthe purviewofBRR.
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The Core businessarea of the groupis financial services divided
in to four reportable segments comprising of Equity Broking &
Distribution, Commodity Broking, Wealth Management,Portfolio

Management, Investment Banking and Advisory including Retail
Loans, Management Consultancy ,Cross Border Consultancy,

Non- Banking Financial Services & IT Solutions.

The group directly is not engagedin any kind of manufacturing

activity at work place.
 

 

 EMPLOYEES WELL BEING J)
 

Business should promotethe well -being of all employees

Our folks are our assets and are of primary importance to our
business. Their health and safety are of paramount importanceto
the Company. As a responsible organisation, we are committed
to conducting operations that ensure the health & safety of our
employees and protect the environment and maintain the
integrity of our assets.

Your Company'sthriving strategy on well- being aims to create a
working environmentthat is supportive of employees personal
lives while meeting our Company's business needs, your
companytruly believes in having a balanced personal & worklife.

The Choice grouphasin all 888 employeesas a part of Choice
family, on regular basis the lessons are circulated to the
Employees on Managementstrategies and Business techniques.

Induction programmesare conductedfor the new employees,to
tutor and train them on the Company's Vision & Mission , the
Working strategies, policies adopted by the Company, the
business conducted by the company, the Code of conduct
adopted by the Company, the availability of Whistle Blower
Mechanism of the Company the policy on sexual harassment

The Companyhasinstalled an online system to raise grievance
directly to the top Managementof any kind of complains/ wrong
doing intermsofthe Whistle Blower Policy.

The Companyappreciatesthe efforts taken by the employeesin
writing the Growth story of the Company for which the
employeesare rewarded.

The Companystrives not only to train the employeefor their
business needsbutat a large the employeesarein all trained for
the Developmentoftheir overall personality.

The Company did not receive any complaint relating to child
labour, forced labour, involuntary labour or sexual harassment

during the year 2018- 19 and are not pending as of March 31,
2018.
 

 

 STAKEHOLDER ENAGAEMENT J)
 

Business should respect the interest of, and be responsive

towards all stakeholders, especially those who are

disadvantaged,vulnerable and marginalised

Your Companyhasanactive interaction with its Stake Holder on

regular basis. Stakeholderparticipation and interactionis crucial

to the overall progress and transformation of the Company.

Shareholders and Investors

Your Company regularly interacts with its Shareholders and
investors through results, announcement, annual reports,
Updates on Company Websites and other transaction specific
Disclosuresin public domain. The Annual General Meeting gives
the shareholders an opportunityto directly address the Board of
Directors and the Managementduring the meeting. The Board
Membersdirectly engages with the shareholders during the

  

Meeting.

Your Company has a designated e- mail address for
shareholders, the grievance if any can be emailed at the mail
address. Efforts are madeto resolves the Shareholder Complains
if any onimmediate basis.

Clients

Your Company being a Financial Service provideris required to
be updated on any changesin the policy and procedures by the
statutory authorities and needsto updatethe client on the same.
Your Companyconstantly seeks to understand the needsof the
clients and brings in technologyto ensurethat the clients are kept
informed and engaged aboutany policy change or procedural
change.

Stock Exchange

Your Company being a Listed Companyon BSE Limited abides
by the guidelines as stated by the exchange. Timely disclosures
and reporting are made by the Companyto the Exchange.
 

 HUMANRIGHTS TD
 

Business should respect and promote humanrights

The group does not have any specific policy on human rights. The
firms adheres to all statues which embodiesthe principles of
humanrights such as prevention of Child Labour, prevention of
sexual harassment, equal employment opportunities etc. The
group is committed to a work environmentin whichall individuals
are treated with respect and dignity.

The group has decided to uphold the humanrights ofall its
employeesandit strictly ensures complianceswithall applicable
laws ofthe land pertaining to human rights.

The Companydid not receive any complaint relating to violation
of human rights during the year 2017 -18.

 

 ENVIRONMENT J)
 

Business should respect, protect, and makeefforts to restore the

environment

Your Company promotes green energy and energy saving
initiatives amongst its employees. The Companyhasinstalled a

rooftop solar plant at its corporate office which leads to savings

in CO2 emission. Our offices have been designed suchthat they

are equipped with energyefficient air conditioners, LED Lights

and other energy conservation measures. We at Choice have

adopted Solar Power plant to have an eco- friendly

environment.

The Company hasinstalled various software's which leads to

operational ease and thus your Company propagates a

Paperless working, to reduce paper consumption, we emphasise
the use of alternate communication Channels such as email. The

Company's Annual Report 2017-18 was sent to more than 1500

Shareholders via email, thus saving tons of paper and as a

measure ofprotecting the environment saving manytrees.

Your company attempts towards absorbing green sustainable

products, processes, policies and practices. We at Choice

promotecostefficient environment-friendly measures and build

awareness and consciousness of our environment among
employees.

Wehave also requested the Shareholderto register their email

IDs to get Annual Reports and other Communications through

email instead of paper mode.
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 POLICY ADVOCACY yy
 

Business, when engagedin influencing public and regulatory
policy, should do soina responsible manner

Your Company's approachto advocacyis guided by the Business

Principles. The Companytruly believes that any contact by the

Companyorits business associates with government,legislators,

regulators or NGO's must be done with honesty, integrity,

openness and in compliance with applicable laws. Only

authorised and trained officials can interact with these

organisations.

Your Companyparticipates in multi stakeholder engagements

and whenrelevant, respondsto public consultations. The group

support and participates in various discussions and initiatives

taken by the government, regulators and various associationsfor

development or advancementoffinanceservicesindustry.
 

 

 INCLUSIVE GROWTH yy
 

Business should support inclusive growth and equitable

development

The Company “Choice International Limited” has voluntarily

adopted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The

CSR activities of the group expresspositive contribution towards

economic, social& environment well -being of communities

through its CSR activities.

 

 CUSTOMER VALUE )
 

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their

customers and consumers in a responsible manner

Your Company always put interests of clients before its own

interest. The group understandits client's needs, address them

and deliver unique solutions as pertheir expectations.

Responsible Marketing & Communications:

e Your Company is committed to building trust through

responsible practices and through transparent

communication both directly to the clients and indirectly

through other key stakeholders.

e Its your Company's responsibility to give disclosures to the

client before entering in to any kind of agreement.

e Your Company uses a combination of channels, which

include websites, customer care numbers and leaflets to

communicate openly withits clients.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

(ManagingDirector) (Director)

DIN No: 01518700 DIN No: 03051841

Mumbai

Date: August 30,2019
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India has emergedasthe fastest growing major economyin the world

as per the Central Statistics Organisation (CSO) and International

Monetary Fund (IMF) andit is expected to be one of the top 3 (three)

economic powersofthe world over the next 10-15 years, backedbyits

strong democracy and partnerships. India's GDP grew by 6.8% in

FY19 to Rs140 lakh crore, highest growth in emerging & developing

economies. Agriculture GVA grew by 2.9% YoY to Rs18 lakh crore and

industrial GVA by 6.9% YoY to Rs40 lakh crore. Services sector

remained the largest contributor to country GDP growing by 7.5% YoY

to Rs70 lakh crore in FY19.

Export rises to $331 billion in FY19 amidst subdued global economic

environment & increasing protectionism across countries, India's

overseas shipments surprised the economist as India's merchandise

exports in FY19 grew to $331 bn, the highest ever, surpassing the earlier

peak of $314.4 billion achieved in FY14. For FY19, imports rose by 9.0%

to $507 billion, widening the trade deficit to $176 bn as against $162

billion in FY18. India's total goods and services export for FY19

surpassed the $500billion mark forthefirst time to reach ~$536billion.

The GSTcollection (indirect tax) collection surpassed Rs1 lakh crore

figures. So far this year (Jan-May'2019, GST collection remained

above Rs1 lakh crore (except Feb Rs0.97 lakh crore). GST collection

was Rs11.8 lakh crore while direct tax collection grew by 18.3% YoY to

Rs11.2 lakh crore during FY19. India's labour force is expected to

touch 160-170 million by 2020, based on rate of population growth,

increased labour force participation, and higher education enrolment,

among other factors, according to a study by ASSOCHAM and

ThoughtArbitrage ResearchInstitute.

India's foreign exchange reserves were US$ 421.9 billion by May 31,

2019, according to data from the RBI. With the improvementin the

economic scenario, there have been various investments in various

sectors of the economy. The M&Aactivity in India doubled to reach

$129.4 billion in 2018 (domestic deals at ~$57 billion & cross border

at ~$69 billion) and number of announced deals also grew 17.2%

from 2017.

Someof the important recent developmentsin Indian economyare as

follows:

e India has recorded a jump of 23 positions in ease of doing

business against its rank of 100 in 2017 to be placed nowat 77th

rank among 190 countries assessed by the World Bank. India's

leap of 23 ranks in the Ease of Doing Businessrankingis significant

consideringthat last year India had improvedits rank by 30 places,

a rare feat for any large and diverse countryofthe size ofIndia.

e India improvedits ranking in the global innovation index (GIl) by 5

places to 52nd in 2019 from 57th position last year. Gll ranks 129

economies based on 80 indicators, ranging from intellectual

propertyfiling rates to mobile-application creation, education

spending and scientific and technical publications.

 

ManagementDiscussion & Analysis Report

e India is expected to have 100,000 startups by 2025, which will

create employmentfor 3.25 million people and US$ 500billion in

value, as per Mr T V Mohan DasPai, Chairman, Manipal Global

Education.

e As perthe IMF, India's GDP to grow by 7.0% in FY20 and 7.2% in

FY21, supported by the continued recovery of investment and

robust consumption amid a more expansionary stance of

monetary policy and some expected impetusfrom fiscal policy.

e Moody's upgradedIndia's sovereign rating after 14 years to Baa2

with astable economic outlook.

e ~FDlinflowin India stood at $44 billion in FY19.

e India's inflation rate reduced to 3.4% in FY19 v/s 8-10% level five

years ago.

e National Highway construction rate increased to ~30 km/perday

in FY19 v/s 11.7 km/per day in FY14.

e The Govt has announced Bharatamala project to complete the

construction of national highways of 65,000 km by FY22 with the

estimated cost of Rs~2.09 trillion

e Under PMAY,the Govt aims to achieve Housing for All by 2022 and

announced construction of 2 crore homesin urban India.

e The Governmentof India( GOI) has succeededin providing road

connectivity to 85 per cent of the 178,184 eligible rural habitations

in the country under its Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana

(PMGSY)since its launch in 2014. The Governmentof India (GOI)

will spend around Rs 1 lakh crore (US$ 15.62billion) during FY 18-

20 to build roadsin the country under Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak

Yojana (PMGSY).

e 100% electrification of villages completed in April 2018,

according to Ministerof State (IC) for Power and New & Renewable

Energy, Government ofIndia.

e The mid-term review of India'S Foreign Trade Policy (FTP) 2015-20

has been released by Ministry of Commerce & Industry,

Governmentof India, under which annual incentives for labour

intensive MSME sectors have been increased by 2 %.

Makein India and Digital India initiative

Makein India was formally introduced by Honourable Prime Minister

of India, Mr. Narendra Modi on September 25, 2014, to boost the

manufacturing sector of Indian economy,to increase the purchasing

power of an average Indian consumer, which would further boost

demand, and hence spur development, in addition to benefiting

investors. Make in India is a major national programmeof the “

GOI"designedtofacilitate investment, foster innovation, enhanceskill

development, protect intellectual property and build best in class

manufacturing infrastructure in the country. The primary objective of

this initiative is to attract investments from across the globe and
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strengthen India's manufacturing sector. The Make in India

programmeis very important for the economic growth ofIndia as it

aims at utilising the existing Indian talent base, creating additional

employment opportunities and empowering secondary and tertiary

sector. The programmealso aims at improving India's rank on the Ease

of Doing Business index by eliminating the unnecessary laws and

regulations, making bureaucratic processes easier, making the

government moretransparent, responsive and accountable.

The focus of Makein India programmeis on 25 sectors. These include:

automobiles, aviation, chemicals, IT & BPM, pharmaceuticals,

construction, defence manufacturing, electrical machinery, food

processing, textiles and garments, ports, leather, media and

entertainment, wellness, mining,tourism and hospitality, railways,

automobile components, renewable energy, biotechnology, space,

thermal power, roads and highways and electronics systems.

Besides, the Governmenthas also comeup with Digital India initiative,

which focuses on three core components: creation of digital

infrastructure, delivering services digitally and to increase the digital

literacy.

Wayforward

The Investment Managerbelieves that a stable government along

with increasing consumption and investmentlevelswill help in taking

India's gross domestic product (GDPto US$ 6 trillion by FY27 and

achieve upper-middle income status on the back of digitisation,

globalisation, favourable demographics, and reforms. Past issues

suchas fiscal mismanagement,large scale political and/or corruption
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  ManagementDiscussion & Analysis Report

scandals, and economic negligence have dissipated significantly. The

trend in governance reformsalso suggests a gradual expansion of the

overall opportunity. The Investment Managerexpectsto fully leverage

these trends while pursuing its investmentstrategy.

India is expected to be the third largest consumer economyasits

consumption maytriple to US$ trillion by 2025, owing to shift in

consumerbehaviour and expenditure pattern, according to a Boston

Consulting Group (BCG) report; and is estimated to surpass USA to

becomethe second largest economy in terms of purchasing power

parity (PPP) by the year 2040, according to a report by Price water

house Coopers.

INDIAN FINANCIALINDUSTRY
India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion,

both in terms of strong growth ofexisting financial servicesfirms and

new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial

banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-

operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial

entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as

payments banksto be created recently thereby adding to the types of

entities operating in the sector. However,thefinancial sector in India is

predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks accounting

for more than 64% ofthe total assets held by the financial system.

The GovernmentofIndia has introduced several reformsto liberalise,

regulate and enhancethis industry. The Government and Reserve

Bank of India (RBI) have taken various measuresto facilitate easy

accessto finance for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs).

MarketSize

The Mutual Fund (MF) industry in India has seen rapid growthin Assets

Under Management (AUM). Total AUM of the industry stood at Rs

23.80trillion (US$ 340.48 billion) between April 2018-February 2019.

At the same time the number of Mutual fund (MF) equity portfolios

reachedahigh of 74.6 million as of June 2018.

Another crucial component of India's financial industry is the

insurance industry. The insurance industry has been expanding at a

fast pace. The total first year premium oflife insurance companies

reached Rs 214,673 crore (US$ 30.72billion) during FY19.

Along with the secondary market, the marketfor Initial Public Offers

(IPOs) has also witnessed rapid expansion.The total amountofInitial

Public Offerings (IPO) increased to US$ 1.2 billion raised from 37

between April-June 2018.

Over the past few years India has witnessed a hugeincrease in

Mergers and Acquisition (M&A) activity. In H12018, 74 deals of

acquisition took place in financial sector. The total value of such

transactions was US$ 4.166billion.*

Furthermore, India's leading bourse Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

will set up a joint venture with Ebix Inc to build a robust insurance

distribution network in the country through a new distribution

exchange platform.

Investments / Developments

e Investments by Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPls) in Indian capital

markets have reached Rs 6,310 crore (US$ 899.12 million) up to

November22,2018.

e As of October 2018, the Financial Inclusion Lab has selected 11

fintech innovators with an investmentof US$ 9.5 million promoted

by the IIM-Ahmedabad's BharatInclusion Initiative (BIl) along with

JP Morgan, Michael and Susan Dell Foundation, and the Bill and

Melinda Gates Foundation.

e The private equity and venture capital (PE/VC) investments

reached US$ 25.20 billion between January to October 2018.*

GovernmentInitiatives

e InDecember, 2018, Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)

proposed direct overseaslisting of Indian companies and other

regulatory changes.

e In September 2018, SEBI asked for recommendations to

strengthen rules which will enhance the overall governance

standardsfor issuers, intermediaries or infrastructure providersin

the financial market.

e The Government of India launched India Post Payments Bank

(IPPB), to provide every district with one branch whichwill help

increaserural penetration. As of August 2018, two branchesout of

650 branchesare already operational.

Road Ahead

e India is today one of the most vibrant global economies, on the

back of robust banking and insurance sectors. The relaxation of
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foreign investment rules has received a positive response from the

insurance sector, with many companies announcing plans to

increase their stakesin joint ventures with Indian companies. Over

the coming quarters there could be a series of joint venture deals

betweenglobal insurance giants and local players.

e The Association of Mutual Fundsin India (AMFI) is targeting nearly

five fold growth in assets under management (AUM)to Rs 95 lakh

crore (US$ 1.47 trillion) and a more than three times growth in

investor accounts to 130 million by 2025.

EQUITYMARKETS
The Markets, including the Equity Market witnessed a lot of

uncertainties majorly due to Political uncertainty, cross- border

tensions, NBFC Liquidity, Mid Cap reversal rally. However revival

sentiments were recognizedin the last quarter of the Financial Year.

The indices witnessed as sharpfall in quarterIl of FY 19 as a result of

liquidity issue in the system. The FIl flows remained supressed

throughout the year but for the month of February & March 2019

witnessed inflows. DIl also witnessed net inflows for the 4th

consecutive quarter amounting to Rs. 72, 141 crores, howeverwhichis

lower than Rs. 1,14,452 crores in FY 2018. The Indian households,

continue to hold the interest in Equity Mutual funds, as a long term

investments and savingsdelivering higherinflation returns.
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Wayforward
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scandals, and economic negligence have dissipated significantly. The
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e In September 2018, SEBI asked for recommendations to

strengthen rules which will enhance the overall governance

standardsfor issuers, intermediaries or infrastructure providersin
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e The Government of India launched India Post Payments Bank

(IPPB), to provide every district with one branch whichwill help
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650 branchesare already operational.
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e India is today one of the most vibrant global economies, on the
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uncertainties majorly due to Political uncertainty, cross- border

tensions, NBFC Liquidity, Mid Cap reversal rally. However revival

sentiments were recognizedin the last quarter of the Financial Year.

The indices witnessed as sharpfall in quarterIl of FY 19 as a result of

liquidity issue in the system. The FIl flows remained supressed

throughout the year but for the month of February & March 2019

witnessed inflows. DIl also witnessed net inflows for the 4th

consecutive quarter amounting to Rs. 72, 141 crores, howeverwhichis

lower than Rs. 1,14,452 crores in FY 2018. The Indian households,

continue to hold the interest in Equity Mutual funds, as a long term

investments and savingsdelivering higherinflation returns.
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EQUITY TRADING @ 

 

¢ Memberof BSE and NSE, MSEIoffering trading services in Cash and Future
segments

¢ Trade Onlinevia trading website and mobile application

¢ Dedicated research teamsoffering technical and fundamental research on
companies

e Equity Coverage includes both value and Growth companies

¢ Daily and Weekly newsletters on markettrends and expectations

¢ Portfolio Tracker application fora quickview on status and P/Lofyour account

¢ Conduct your own research via Fundamental Screeners and Advanced
Charting tools

¢ Bulk and Block Deals

FINANCIAL PLANNING

 

¢ ‘Online Platform for Financial Planning

e Advice from experienced CFPProfessionals on allocate of Funds

¢ Comprehensive Financial plan by experts to achieve long term and shorterm
goals.

e Tracking of performance ofall your instruments bought and their impact
towards achieving your financial goals.

e Advice on Investment funds and insurance products based on risk appetite of
individual
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COMMODITY DERIVATIVE TRADING

e Member of MCX, NCDEX& ICEX

¢ Trading in Agriculture Commodities, Energy, Base and Precious Metals

e Trade online, overthe phone,at our branches or on your mobile

¢ SMS forintra-day technical calls

e In-depth research on commodities of your interest

e Assistance in implementing trading strategies

¢ Daily, weekly & detail research reports on commodities

¢ Daily & Weekly Newsletter

¢ Reports on Whatsappplatform

COTMelencle

@® CURRENCY FUTURES TRADING 

 

 

  

 

 

  
 
 

 FUND DISTRIBUTION @

 

Buy Mutual Funds, Bonds, FDs and NCDsOnline, Offline

© Compare Funds on our website

Research & insights on Funds & their performance

Assistance from certified Investment Wealth Counselors

Get Timely update on performanceof your funds
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¢ Trading service at NSE & MSEI Platforms

e Research Reports & Newsletters on currencies

e Assistance in implementing Hedge and Arbitrage trading strategies

© Dedicated relationship officer to help in faster execution

¢ Daily & weekly Newsletter

¢ Reporton whatsapp Platform

Or cetencles

  @ STRUCTURED PRODUCTS

¢ Tailored Investment productsfor HNI clients

e Uses Advanced hedging & diversification strategies

¢ Investors can select products whichsuits their risk return expectations

e Provides better returns than traditional investment vehicles
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The average daily traded volumes (ADTO) for the equity markets

during FY2019 stoodat Rs. 9.93 lakh crores, up 46% YoY from Rs. 6.79

lakh crores in FY2018. The overall Cash market ADTO reported growth

of 7% YoY at Rs. 35,180 crores in FY2019. However, the absolute

growth was affected due to decreasein delivery, which saw de-growth

of 8.2% YoY to Rs. 8,854 crores v/s 26% growth in FY2018. Within

derivatives, futures volume rose 9.7% YoY to Rs. 87,564 crores while

options rose 54% YoY to R 8.70 lakh crores. Amongst cash market

participants, retail constitutes 53% of total cash volume,institution

constitutes 25% of total cash volume and prop constitutes 20%. Within

institution, DIl cash volumes increased 6% YoY to Rs. 3,627 crores vs

51% in the previous year, reflecting the lull market sentiments during

the year. The proportion of Dllin the cash market remained constantat

10.4%. The increase in demat accounts during the year stood at 12%

with total numberof accounts as on March 2019 at Rs. 3.59 crores. The

revival in market sentiments along with clearer picture on political

front is expected to give push to the primary market activities and

overall volumes.

Fils continued to witness net inflows from Indian equities during

FY2019; although the flows remained under pressure for most of the

year. Factorslike IL&FS default and subsequentliquidity issues, cross

border tensions, political uncertainty made the environmentvolatile

for foreign investors. However, in the last two months,the alleviations

of the issues brought the Fll's confidence back. Dils too saw net

inflowsfor the 4th consecutive year, however, on YoY basis there was a

significant decline due to fears on political front, liquidity issues and

reversal of mid-cap rally. Despite such volatility, the Indian households

are seen to hold the interest in equity and equity products with

expectations of higher returnsthan traditional fixed income products.

Our Broking Business:

The group's Broking & Distribution Business is channelized through

our subsidiary M/s. Choice Equity Broking Private Limited herein

referred to as “Choice Broking”. “Choice Broking” isa memberof NSE,

BSE, MSEI, MCX , NCDEX, ICEX and is a Depository Participant with

CDSL& NSDL.

During the year underreview the “Choice Broking “has made to major

acquisitions, atfirst acquisition of Equity Broking Business of M/s.Indi

Trade Capital Limited , a Indian Public Listed Company, incorporated

in the year 1994 a leading player in agri - commodity financing

business & a well knownfinancial service provider focusing on Micro -

finance , having its Registered office in Kerala. The acquisition of

Equity Broking Business of M/s. Inditrade Capital Limited has

increased the Clientele base to 2,17,140 & increased the Volume of

trades by two times. Secondly “Choice Broking “ has acquired the

Depository Participant Business of Pune based ” N.G. Rathi group”,

the said acquisition has brought 6000 demat accounts to “ Choice

Broking”.

The above mentioned acquisitions by “Choice Broking"is getting

their feet strongerwith their expanding presenceall overIndia.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated September 21, 2017 bearing No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD1/CIR/P/2017/104 allowing integration of
Equity & commodity Broking activities under oneentity, to reap the
benefit of operational synergies, during the year under review the
Commodity arm of the group VIZ M/s. Choice Merchandise Broking
Private Limited the wholly owned subsidiary merged with M/s. Choice
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TRADEEASY,

TRADE FAST

 

JIFFY
Trade Easy, Trade Fast

i

+

4, Available on the

>- Google play LONE

Jiffy - Trade Easy, Trade Fast An online stock trading platform

developedto simplify your trading experience across the capital markets.

Weaim to be an online trading community that seeks to drive

developmentbased on customerfeedback and change

the waystock trading happens

YD9DZDM®
Market One-Screen Technical One-Click Price & Portfolio

Overview Market Chart Buy & Sell Holding Analysis
Segments Indicators Alerts
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Choice Broking has been presented

a recognition for being a premier Depository

Participantin Silver Category by CDSL. 
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Depository Participant Business of Pune based ” N.G. Rathi group”,
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Broking”.

The above mentioned acquisitions by “Choice Broking"is getting

their feet strongerwith their expanding presenceall overIndia.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated September 21, 2017 bearing No.
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"Choice Broking” has witnessed CAGR growthrate of 23% of its revenue and hasreflected an Upward Trend in its

income on yearon year basis.
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8) online

{) Offline

e Research Advisory

e Technical Reports

e Timely buy andsale calls

¢ Institutional Desk

e Multiple Trading Platforms

for the retail traders

  

¢ Morning Tea

e Pick Of The Week

¢ Economic Outlook

e Aaj Ka Trend

e Currency Highlights

¢ Equity Bazaar

¢ Details Company Reports

° |po Updates

e Techno Buy

¢ lip And Cpi Updates

 

° Hassle free online account

opening

e Free Demat account

¢ Dedicated relationship

manager

Call & trade facility

¢ Customer support through

emails, calls & social media   
a
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FOR TRADERS

 

RESEARCH

Weat “Choice Broking “believe in creating value for our clients & managingit.
Through our range of timely & expert research reports, we support our clients for taking informed decisions.

Our Different type of research report are as follows:
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1. These reports consists

our positional calls on
Equities, Commodities

and Currency.

It's a technical report
ona scrip with BUY
or Sell positional
recommendations.

This is our daily morning
report on Equities which
gives recommendations

on any twostocks.

Wepick one stock every week for
this report. These reports are based
on technical research and have a
time horizon of 15-25 days.
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Offers insight on the IPO
company with recommendations
to subscribe or to avoid.
This report is widely covered
by the print media across the country

It’s a detail report ona
companywhichincludes
recommendations of
BUY/SELL or HOLDwith
typical time frame of 12-18
months.

Weissue these updates
oncein a quarter. This
report is prepared for our
coverage companiesonly.
Werevisit our recommendations

while analyzing the company’s
performance

This reports focuses on
Index and Stock F/O
contract's strategy.It
usually asks investor to
hedgethe position to contain
loss and improveprofitability

    
RESEARCH    FOR INVESTORS

  

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2019| 45 CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2019| 46



  ManagementDiscussion & Analysis Report

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENTSERVICES

Our Portfolio ManagementServicesare provided through our Subsidiary M/s. Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesprivate Limited”.

The time we launched our PMSin 2018, lesser did we know that the demandfor an Ultra-HNI product such as ‘Portfolio ManagementService’, is

muchhigherthan our expectations. The high net worth individuals are actively seeking for an investment avenue, wherein a dedicated professional

with higher degreeof industry experience and expertise, could help them investin direct equity and managetheir portfolios. Our focustherefore,is

to provide high quality financial services to our clients, wherein the investment decisions taken are purely based on our in-house fundamental

research. With a universeof over 300 stocksin our basket, we follow a rigorous process to thoroughly analyse the companiesbeforeincludingit in

any portfolio. Pre-defined parametersforthe stocks helpsus in being aligned with the strategytheme and allowsus to regularly review and update

the portfolio, in order to maintain the risk-reward ratio and thus the quality of a particular portfolio.

Increasing client growth inspite of market volatility

MF-TOTAL FOLIO MONTH WISE 74624230 75486134 76565940 77886596 79031596 79737125 80307561 80970184 81792764 82456411 82736339 83242056

MF-NEW FOLIO ADDITION GROWTHIN % 1.15% 1.43% 1.72% 1.47% 0.89% 0.72% 0.83% 1.02% 0.81% 0.34% 0.61%

PMS- TOTAL CLIENT MONTH WISE 120929 123333 125770 128312 130337 131911 133556 135226 136586 138829 140583 143065

PMS NEW CLIENT ADDITION GROWTHIN % 1.99% 1.98% 2.02% 1.58% 1.21% 1.25% 1.25% 1.01% 1.64% 1.26% 1.77%

1.43% 1.72%

0.72% 0.83%

1.98% 2.02%

1.25% 1.25%

-0.13% -0.29% -0.36%

 

 Date are as on 31/05/2019 * MF Folios are not a count of numberof investors, but numberof accounts * Date Source AMFI-SEBI 
 

Bibliography : PMS Bazar

With over-all participation from the investor community growing on the back of the need to havethe industry experts managetheir wealth,
we see a goodincrease in the numberofclients going forward for premium services such as PMS.

CHOOSETO BEWISE; WITH “CHOICE”

At Choice our Portfolio Management Services are highly customized to cater to your needs, and enable you to achieve your financial goals.
Great corporate governance with sustainable growth plans along with the responsibility to abide with the law of the Judiciary, our research
team has been advising with the ideas of wealth generation to our clients. Keeping in mind the trust which our clients shoulder on us, we
have launched ChoicePortfolio Mgt. Services

We manageexisting portfolios as well as build new distinct portfolios for you based on your investments objectives and risk appetite, for
which weoffer a wide rangeofstrategies including some focused thematic strategies, which aims at maximizing the investors wealth while
making investments in diversified sectors which have a potential to grow at a faster pace, with a sustainable management & corporate
governancestandards. Our Prime focusis to create wealth for the clients & our expertise in the areas of extensive research, highly qualified
investment team anda rich experience of over two decadesin thefinancial service space, enables us to achievethis goal for you.

OURDISTINCTIVE SERVICES:

babe e 2 FF FY==
se eo

eee

Experienced & High Level of Finley cradted Exhaustive in Timely review devoted quality selection
Professional Fund Transparency Investment House Research of fund relationship of stocks, with

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT Managment Philosophy Desk performance managerfora balanced

client diversification

SERVICES . . ae . a . , a:
Weat Choice PMStruly believe in Reaching the Financial Goals is always faster with the Right Mix of Investments.
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Mentioned below are twoof our best strategies whichis offered by our

Companyto meet your investmentgaols.

IRADE NAYEBharat Ke!

Time Horizon: Long Term

Risk Appetite: Moderate

India has become favourable investmentdestination in the world on

the back of following factors:

e Progress on Policy front improving business environment

e Stable macro-economic fundamentals

e Huge Market size & demographic dividend

e LowPolitical uncertainties and less sensitivitytowardsthe global market.

|) Adistinct stamp is being placed onIndia as structural change

has occurred across various dimensions. Implementation of

favourable initiatives such as GST, IBC, RERA, DBT and

demonetization has made structural changes in economy

which would not only yield result in the form of high quality

economic growth but generate adequate employmentin the

longterm.

ii) Economic reforms has given impetusto India's new mantra for

success “IRADE”

Infrastructure, Rural Consumption / Renewable Energy, Affordable

Housing , Digitalization and Emerging Businesses); will flourish more

industrial avenues making “ New India”unrivalled.

The Ideal Valuation strategy aims to create wealth by the long term

compoundingeffect on Investment done in:

¢ Good Business

¢ Good Management

° Good Valuations

We seek to capitalise the opportunities that come up in the

emotionally driven markets, which lead some very fundamentally

strong companies to trade at a considerable discount than its

intrinsic value.

Our Strategy is to buy the undervalued stocks, or simply the stocksat a

price much lowerthan itsfair price,irrespective ofthe market movements.

The big market whales and the mammothsof value investing ,

including warren Buffet, have argued that the essence of value

investing is buying stocks belowits intrinsic value.

The moderate approach through our “IDEAL VALUATION

STRATEGY” helps you appreciate your capital, over a given period of

time,with anaptcombination ofa riskaverse&also a moderaterisk portfolio.

e Ideal Valuation Strategy (IVS)is based on the emphasis on both value

as well as growth investing. Under this strategy, we find the

businesses which are fundamentally strong and available at

reasonable valuation. We believe that a business can trade at higher

multiple butit's underlying fundamentals mustjustify this. Thereby a

companyis studied both from quantitative as well as qualitative fronts in

order tofind fundamental strength ofthe business.

e Under quantitative analysis, we do rigorous historical financial

analysis of the companies through focusing on key ratios relating to

growth, margins and returns. We have customized our quantitative

approach in the way that any business which shows sustained

improvementin key performance parameters comesin selection criteria.
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e In qualitative analysis, we strategically study the company and focus

would remain on understanding business model, products and

servicesanalysis, inter-firm comparison based on SWOT, corporate

governmentstandards and promoterszeal to growth and stability.

Going ahead.....

With the onset of the new term of Modi government, the economic

trends too, create a favourable environmentfor the investors over a

longer term period. Howeverdespite of the upbeat stable govt. and

its ambition of achieving a Trillion Dollar economy by 2024,there are

challenging times in the economy in terms of NPAs, NBFCcrisis,

corporatefailures, businessfailures, technological disruptionsas well

as the slowdown of the manufacturing activities This is one of the

major reasons why an investor would require an industry expert to

build and managehis/her portfolio, amongstthe volatility making its

noise inthe markets

Weexpectthattherewill be a lot of reshuffling at the companyas well

as sectoral levels.

Weseekto fully leverage these trends while pursuing the investment

strategy.

The group offers its Wealth Management Services through our

subsidiary M/s. Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited.

Choice Wealth Managementis represented by a brand name of

Investica to the marketplace as a one-stop solution to plan, transact

and track mutual fund investments. Over last one year, the numberof

investors transacting through the platform grew by 150%.Investica

has seen an extremely positive responsefromits users which can also

be seenby its reviews on Play Store & App Store.

Direct Plans had started getting investor attention because manyof

the DIY investors were opting for Direct funds to take advantage of

difference in expenseratios. Investica was only offering the regular

plans initially and to cater to the investors who wantto investin direct

plans Investica took a bold step to launch Direct Funds on the platform

with half-yearly and annual subscription charges. With this, Investica

became first mutual fund transaction appin Indian Fintech history to

charge subscription charge. The idea behind keeping subscription

charges wasto makesurethat there is no compromisein the quality of

service provided by us and to continue with superior user experience.

But we are happyto report that even after subscription charge, the

responsetothe direct plans onthe platform has been phenomenal.

After two successful years of operating the App, we have taken a leap

towards Robo Advisory by launching Goal Planning onInvestica. This

feature enables investors to plan for their financial goal. An

extraordinarily dynamic algorithm changes as per investor's time

horizon,risk profile and inflation. Goal planning is a step Investica has

taken to ensure that investors invest according to their risk appetite

and do not choosethefund solely based onthe historical returns. This

is an industry's first feature which not only recommendsfunds but also

tracks them ona real-time basis.

In addition to this, Choice Wealth Managementalso started providing

comprehensive financial planning services to HNI and Ultra HNI

investors. These services have improved investor experience,in turn,

increasing the inflow of new assets under management.

     

 

Say hello to a new
way of investing in

 

12,27,806

Investica Mutual Fund Appis created to exclusively experience

‘The Joy of Earning’ by Fulfilling your Dreams and Accomplishing

your Life Goals. Investica enables you to Invest in Mutual Funds

with its easy to use platform, intuitive UI, lightning speed, robust

privacy protection and smart investment methodology. Invest  with the Best Mutual Funds Investment Appin India, Investica!

erorerONY L eran
nWwestica

The Joy of Earning
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New LaunchesPlanned for next year:

By 2031, the population of people more than 65 years old is expected

to grow the fastest (75%) amongall age groups, yet only 23% were

saving or planning to save for retirement in 2016, according to an

August 2017 report of a committee on household finance set up by

the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), India's central bank.

Even though this report is two yearsold, our interaction with different

segmentsof investors has brought outthe same point. The need of the

hour is to provide end to end service to the investor and notjust

distribution of the products. And our first step towardsthis will be the

launch of Robo Advisory services on Investica.

e As with goal planning, Investica was moving towards Robo

Advisory, During the current financial year, Investica will be

launching a full-fledged RoboFinancial Planner. This tool will help

the investor plan for every important aspect offinancial planning

viz. Insurance (Life & Health) Planning, Expense Management &

Emergency Planning, Retirement Planning and Goal Planning.

The idea behind this is to assist investors in making informed

decisions about their financials and hence this feature will be

launched with the help of Sebi Registered Investment Advisor.

e Since the appis currently catering mainly to retail investors, a new

initiative has been launchedin the current financial year whichis

"Investica Prime". This will solely focus on servicing the HNI & Ultra

HNI investors by providing multiple financial products including

mutual funds, PMS, AIF, Bonds, NCDsetc.

“Investica Prime” is a specialised service for investors with high

ticket investments because these investors need handholding

and supportin every aspect of investments. We are well equipped

in terms of experience to provide such service to the High Net

Worth individuals.

e Currently Investica is limited to distribution of mutual funds, but

that will change soonbyintroduction of NPSi.e. National Pension

Schemeonthe platform. NPSis picking up the tractionin terms of

the preferred retirement investment tool. We will also be

facilitating investments in NPS so that any investor who wishesto

invest in any of the NPS related scheme can do so using Investica.

All such investments can also be tracked using the app.

e Anew venture, which we have already been doing on small scale

but now wewill be exploring, is Corporate Treasury Management.

ManagementDiscussion & Analysis Report

There are some corporates for whom we have been managing

treasury money. But now wewill also be tapping the corporates

with a formal plan and strategies to manage corporate treasury

and to help them earnbetterrisk adjusted returns.

Wayforward

Choice Wealth Management has always given a priority to

Investors’ interest over its own. Hence,the suitability of a product

to the investoris of utmost importance. Going forward, wewill be

acting on the same philosophy.This is also a driving force behind

the launchof Robo Financial Planner.

e Integration ofall the major financial products on Investica is the

key development towards which wewill be working in future, so

that we become onstop solution forall of the Investor's needs.

e We see Investica become the most preferred application for

Investors’ Personal Finance Needsin the near future and we are

sure that with the development stages planned wewill reach there

sooner rather than later.

Below mentionedis the Chart depicting the Increase in Clients through Investica

Investica
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CAPITAL ADVISORY-

SSHSANLAINTE!

 

Capital Market & Debt Syndication service is routed through oursubsidiary

“Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited”herein referred as"CCAPL".

Services Offered :

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited, Category | - Merchant Banker,

is an investment bank offering integrated solutions consists of equity

capital markets services and financial advisory services/ Debt

Syndication that cater to corporate clients. The Companyis familiar

with its clients’ business models and the financial solutions are tailored

to meettheir needs atdifferent stages of development.

Onthe Capital Market front, CCAPLoffers entire bouquetof services

which include Initial Public Offer (IPO) - Main Board & SME Platform,

Further Public Offer (FPO), Rights Issues, Private Placement, Pre-IPO

  
Financial Performance
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Particulars FY 2019 Ah}

Revenue from Operations 3,58,02,941 6,26,94,714

Other Income 19,79,366 19,00,198

Total Revenue 3,77,82,307 6,45,94,912

Expenses 3,63,16,942 5,72,42,413

Profit Before Tax 14,65,365 73,52,499

Tax Expense 3,13,324 5,48,947

Profit for the Period 11,52,041 68,03,552

Basic EPS 0.23 1.35

Diluted EPS 0.23 1.35   

Placement, OIP, Direct Listing, Delisting, Buy Back, Takeover, Mergers

and Acquisitions, etc. CCAPL's growthis driven by strong focus on IPO

readiness and IPO co-ordination servicesfor the Main Board. Valuation

services providedto varioussectors ofthe industry has also added value

to the operational and financial performance of the Company. We

promote Companies in improving their compliance and corporate

governancethrough our advisory and consultation services led by a

team of expert professionals, yielding optimum results for our clients.

Onthe Debt Syndicationfront, the team has successfully created a robust

and vibrant edgethroughits initiative on advisory for working capital and

project finance segment. We have an in-house team of professionals

competentto structure, advise and execute the debt proposals in the best

possible TAT. We are well networked with the top managementteamsin

almostall financial institutions in the country including Banks, NBFCs and

Fund Houses. We understand the requirement of the client, conduct

internal due diligence, prepare and circulate the Information

Memorandum ensuring coordination with all lenders and investors with

an objective to achieve consensual terms and conditions.

The Business performancein the last year/ Financial Highlights/ the

year at glance

In FY2019, the total revenue reported decline of 41.51% over the

previousyearto Rs 377.82 Lakh with revenue from operation amounting

to Rs. 358.03 Lakh due to decreasein equity capital marketactivities.

Netprofit for the year ended March 31, 2019, decreased and stoodat

Rs. 11.52 Lakhs, as compareto the netprofit of Rs. 68.03 Lakhs for the

year ended March 31,2018 on accountof decrease in revenues due to

muted equity capital markets.

Wayforward Statement

Fy2020,in all respect, will be turning point for our company. Not only

will the financials improve going forward,efforts will also be directed

to achieve a moresustainable mix of business. The budgetproposalof

increasing the minimum shareholding of the public in listed

companieswill seek a tremendousincrease of disinvestment by the

promoters which subsequently will increase an Offer for Sale (OFS)

productsor delisting of companies. Taking cuesfrom the last year and

the recent developments in economy, the companyhasset a goal to

achieve a healthy growth rate in FY 2020.

Productslike Private Infrastructure InvestmentTrusts (InvITs) and Real

Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) are expected to be in vogue dueto

increased interest of such products by foreign investors. Also,

buybacks are gaining popularity in Indian Capital Markets which can

be used to repay the shareholder instead of dividends. Further, the

Companywill continue its pursuits with the focus on IPO readiness

and IPO co-ordination services for the Main Board. Our sector

expertise, corporate relationships, and ability to navigate across

varied stakeholderswill help us benefit from increasein capital market

transactions and in growing our advisory business.

Debt Syndication

Despite challenging macro environment post GST& Demonetization, the

things are goingtofall in right direction in the times to come. The new

majority government is focused on MSMEwhich constitute 45 % of the

country's GDP and has huge potential for employment generation. The

Budgetthis year has a major thrust on promoting MSMEs.Weare focusing

on providing solutions to these enterprises mainly on Finance frontin

coordination with Banks, Fls and Various SME centric governmentbodies

and Financing institutions. We look forward to leverage our pan India

network and our relationships with Banks/Fls to bring makeable

difference to help MSMEs comeoutoftheir financial woes.

RETAIL LOANS

 

The retail Loan Services are provided through our subsidiary M/s.

Choice Corporate Services Private Limited.

Choice corporate servicesprivate limited is anamethat is commonin

day to day life. We at Choice corporate believe in serving the

customersonpriority. We understand the necessities and craving for

those who are looking for affordable and flexible loans.

Choice corporate - A corporate DSA working PAN India, serving

people for affordable loan service such as - Home Loan,Personal Loan,

Business Loan and Loan against property are a few to count. Our

motto is to offer better ROI for loans in comparison to prevailing

market structure. We understand customers’ needs therefore

empaneled with voluminous Bank & NBFCall over India, aiding in

getting maximum loan amount with minimal rate of interests
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Choice corporate is an Indian company located in various locations of
India & headquartered in Mumbai. We are a reputable name in the
loan offering industry with an aim to offer user—friendly loan service to
our valuable customers; we have an expert team of well-trained staff

that helps you in getting loan quickly and withoutany hassle. Ourteam
workto getyou the best loan and aim to obtain competitive rates.

Business performance in the lastyear

In FY 2018-19 we were operational in various locations in PAN India
and disbursed Rs.170 Crs marking a new high on YoY basis.

New Launches

In this digital era, we will lack behind if we are not going upgrade our
self on digital world. In FY 2019-20 we have recently renewed our
focus in retail business and in continuation with our focus we have
launched our platform Choice Connect which provides opportunityto
any person to generate/ refer business for Retail Loans where every
leadswill be tracked and monitor on daily basis so asto maintain TAT.

Comparison with the peer group

Today market is so competitive that we need to take primitive measures to
stayahead ofourcompletion Here aresome reasonswhypeople relyon us:

I Foremost reason is that we are offering our customers personal
assistance that means they are interacting an individual instead of
any robot misguiding you in numbers.

I There are various competitors such as Direct Sales agents,
Chartered accountants as well as small time agents/connectors
who work on reference basis forsmall commission

I There are also few online portals who invite customer online to
applyforloansandthereby passthesame lead to bankersand NBFC's.

I We are currently working on Offline model and plan to compete
the online team players of the market too in near future. But we
have already started Choice connect for tracking, monitoring and
generation of leads.

We have a long list of satisfied and happy customers.As we are always
readyto offerthe best of best services to ourvaluable customers -

I We provide E2E services to our customers from loan
documentationtillthedisbursementofcheque.

Wayfomard Statement

In forth coming years we are targeting to serve people in the remotest
locations of India and for that we are aggressively working and
building a team of supporting members through our ONLINE portal
and also as a way forward strategy we are in talks with banks to
integrate their API with our Choice connect system so that
disbursementTATwill be minimize.

Infrastructure sector is a key driverfor the Indian economy. The sector
is highly responsible for propelling India's overall development and
enjoys intense focus from the Government for initiating policies that

    

fill;
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ensure time bound development of world class infrastructure. The
thrust of the Government on roads & highways, water management
systems, affordable housing, smart city infrastructure, solar energy,
power transmission & distribution, environment & solid waste

management etc., has created enormous opportunities in the
domesticmarketduringtheyear.

Some positive effects have already started being felt through recent
reforms such as GST, demonetisation and IBC which have resulted in

higher tax collection, gradual formalization of economy and the
consequent widening ofthe tax base.This is likelyto give Government
better corpus to allocate higher levels of funding for essential
infrastructure projects.Apartfrom that increased allocation ofshare of
revenue to states and larger quantum of funding from international
development agencies like World Bank&ADB have provided robust
financial platform for building infrastructure facilities in the country.

The Government Consultancy services are provided through our
subsidiary M/s. Choice ConsultancyServices Private Limited".

Choice International Limited runs its rapidly growing consultancy
business through 'Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited'
(CCSPL), a wholly owned subsidiary,with presence in segments like-

I Roads, Highways & Bridges

I Affordable Housing

I WaterManagement

I Urban Development&Sustainability

I Environment&$o|idWaste Management

I Public Financial Reforms

I InformationTechnology

CCSPL's business undertakes surveys & investigations, planning,
design, feasibility study, detailed project report, project management
consultancy, authority engineer, independent engineer, construction
supervision, quality control and road safety audit.

Owing to the increasing budgetary spending by the Government on
development of roads & highways, water management, smart city
infrastructure etc., we expect to witness good growth in the coming
years. Government's initiatives such as Gram Sadak Yojna, Bharat
Mala, Highways Development, Housing for All, Smart City Mission,
Clean India Mission, Clean Ganga Mission, Nal Se Jaal, Green Energy
etc., have unlocked bunch of opportunities in the aforesaid segments.
CCSPL, being a growing firm, is well aware ofthese opportunities and
committed for effective participation in Government's growth plans.

Ourstanding in core business segments:-

Roads, Highways&Bridges

During FY 201 8-1 9, we have secured several work orders for providing
consultancy in DPR preparation and independent engineer services
under Roads & Highways segment in the State of Maharashtra. We are
already rendering our services to Public Works Department of Assam,
Manipur, Himachal Pradesh, Rajasthan and Karnataka. As the

Government continues investments in the segment, we are focusing on
more opportunities acrossthe Country in various States.

Affordable Housing

The Government has given infrastructure statusto affordable housing and
launched nationwide scheme of ”PMAY—Housing ForAll" which aimed to
bring houses within reach of lower and middle class population. We are
already rendering planning and PMCservices underthis segmentto ULBs
inthestates ofOdisha, Madhya Pradesh &Chhattisgarh.

Water Management

Water management is need of hour, although the Government has set
up piped water supply systems in most cities, but a large part of semi-
urban and rural areas are not covered bythese. Piped sewerage systems
feeding into largetreatment plants exist only in bigger cities and metros.
Most cities have septic tanks or local waste management. Hence there
are opportunities in this area for providing water infrastructure facilities.
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CCSPL had been in operations in Jharkhand & Madhya Pradesh and is
identifying more opportunities in the segment.

Smart Cities

The Government has launched SmartCity Mission for developing 100
cities across India, the cities have already been shortlisted and

amongstthem several cities have come up with RFPs and a lot ofthem
are likely to follow in 2019-20. Equipped with diversified Smart
offerings, CCSPLis well placed to address such opportunities.

CCSPL business is also expanded in segments such as solid waste
management, public financial reforms and urban development in the
states of Rajasthan, Karnataka, Himachal Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh,
Assam,Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, Odisha and Maharashtra.

Past few years witnessed significant initiatives being taken by the
Government for overall infrastructure development of the country, such
initiatives create wide range of opportunities for consulting firms. Further,
emergence of new participants in the industry developed a competitive
market. In such scenario, maintaining quality ofservices atoptimum cost is
necessity to sustain. As compared to peer group, we have developed a
niche for ourselves in the industry, by adopting a rational bidding process
without compromising with the quality of services rendered by us. We
have JVs orAssociation with otherfirms for business synergies.

With a vision to penetrate substantial market in India, we are moving
ahead by identifying more opportunities and making them profitable
businessforthe Organisation.

According to the IBEF Report, "India's IT & |TeS Industry grew to US $181
billion in 2018-2019. Exports from the Industry increased to US $137
billion in FY-19 while domestic revenues advanced to US $ 44 billion.
Spending on IT in India is expected to grow over 9% to reach US $87.1
billion in 201 8. Revenue from the digital segment is expected to comprise
38% ofthe forecasted US $350 billion industry revenue by2025."

Between April 2000 — December 2018, the Department of Industrial
Poliqz and Promotion (DIPP) stated that - "the Software and Hardware
Sector attracted foreign direct investmentworth US $ 35.82 billion."

The Government of India has also been taking several initiatives to
promote the IT Sector in India. Where the Union Budget 2018 — 2019,
witnessed N|T| Aayog proposing the setting up of a National level
programme to leverage all Artificial Intelligence (Al) related works in
the country. Simultaneously, the Indian Government also planned to
launch a National Al Programme and set up a NationalAl Portal during
the Interim Budget2019 — 2020.

(Source — httpszl/www.ibef.org/industry/information-technology-india.aspx)

One of the subsidiaries of the Choice Group of Companies, Choice
TechLab Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (ISO 9001:2008, ISO/IEC 27001:2013,

CMMI Level 3 certified) is a Product/Software Development and IT
Service Provider in India. Up so far, it has built a niche in the
Government and Finance Sector and is scaling up in the Real Estate
and Educational domain as well; to plan, ideate and execute the
digital transformation journeyfor its clients. Guided by a value-added
system, our Information Technology vertical upholds the vision to
deliverthe best solutions leveraging technology.

Some OfThe Main Services Of ChoiceTechlab Include:

I DatabaseAdministration

I Software Development

Development

Choice

TECHLAB

One of the subsidiaries of the Choice Group of Companies, Choice

TechLab Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (ISO 9001 :2008, ISO/IEC 27001z2013, CMMI

Level 3 certified) is a ProducVSoftware Development and IT Service

Provider in India.Up so far, it has built a niche in the Government and

Finance Sector and is scaling up in the Real Estate and Educational

domain as well; to plan,ideate and execute the digital transformation

journey for its clients.Guided by a value-added system, our Information

Technology vertical upholds the vision to deliverthe best solutions

leveragingtechnology.

Product
Development

Software Data Data
Analytics Administration

IT Cloud
Security Architecture

DevOps

Unique Identification
Authority of India

N|T| Aayog Kolte Patil
Developers Ltd.

In )estlc:

Choice Wealth
Management Pvt. Ltd.

Centre for Choice Broking
Advancement of Digital Pvt. Ltd

Financial Inclusion

https://choicetechlab.com +91 6607 2424 
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ProductDevelopment Further, key calculations such as Stock Transactions are managed
o Cloud Architecture effectivelyto achieve accurate results for each flow.

0 Data Analytics 5. PropertyTax Management System - Patna Municipal Corporation

0 ITSecurity The Property tax management system has helped to overcome

. DevOps losses that were incurred due to lack of property information,

LatestTechnologyStack Used:

Microsoft(MicrosoftNET, .NET Core and WindowsAzure)

Java (Hibernate, Maven, Spring and Spring Boot)

Mobile( iPhone,Android and lonic/Cross Platform)

Open Source (Angular,Java, PHP, Python and Node.js)

Web/Frameworks (WordPress, Magento, Laravel, Yii Framework,
Symfony and Codelgniter)

Databases(MicrosoftSOLServer, MySQL, PostgreSOLand MongoDB)

DevOps (Google Cloud,Apache,Jenkins, Graylog, Nginx, Nagios,
Amazon Web Services and Stack)

Data Science (Firebase, Data Studio and Google Big Query)

improper records, manual reports and a decentralized property
tax system. The web and mobile application automates the entire
process that earlier was a source of concern owing to its manual
nature. The mobile app is used for surveys to assess properties
and update it in the system real-time. Further, it ensures smooth
operation via its hierarchy based approval system, automated
demand generation, payment collection and effortless tracking
via run-time reports & analytics. Additionally, it is proven
favourable for citizens as well due to its online paymentfacility and
a grievance portal. The Property Tax Management system has
helped overcome losses that were incurred due to lack of
property information, improper records, manual reports and
decentralized propertytax system.

1. UIDAI - S. K. Patodia &Associates

Choice Connect is backed by Choice group, a financial
conglomeratewhich is working from last 25+ years as a hub
for providing end to toend financial services across India.

Choice Connect was launched on Jan 01,2019 with a thought

of being One Stop Financial Choice for any person which is in

line with the vision of Choice Group. Choice Connect offers an

    

  

Start your Journey of
Financial Independence
with Choice Connect.
Selling single platform for multiple products

   

 

1. Investica-ChoiceWealth Managementht.Ltd An accounting and payment process management system for unique online platform where it provides access of services \
Investica is an on-“ne Mutual Funds distribution platform UIDAI developed In assocnatloh With S.K. Patodia & Assomates. like Insurance, Loan, Mutual Fund and Stock Market to its 2"
developed m assoaatlon With ChOlce Wealth Management Pvt. The system Increases tIme efficnency when It comes to handllng k Ch . B . A . "CBA" Ch .
Ltd.Ajourneythat began 2years ago, has entirely automated the multiple transactions by automating all budgeting and partners , nown as Olce LlSll],eS,S ssoclate . . Olce Stock Market
Mutual Funds Investment at Choice Group. With more than 3.5 accounting related tasks. It has further streamlined deployment of Connect Is an empowerment Initiative which allow Its partners

Lakh Installs and 1 Lakh Users, Investica stands tall as one of the manpower and enabled effident traCking 0“ eXPanSive amounts to create a sustainable livelihood without any investment. \
fastestgrowing platforms in India. Furthermore, Investica has also ofdata via MIS Reports and acustomized dashboard. Through Choice Connect anyone can become entrepreneur ,.
enabled the Choice Groyp to. bring the servicing cost down by 2. Choice Connect-Choice RetailSolutions Pvt.Ltd. and can workon his own will ‘

70% Ease of use and an 'nltu't'lve Intgr'face help IEV§fl_'Ca&aPOS;S The Choice Connect Web Application assists users from all over ‘ Mutual Funds ‘
$15331: 22:11:?“2:51:39? leaon prmoilljgf :eselera lrclhéztglveenrl wflat'hc;2:23:23::::pil;?;:eo?f::g :32:1:22:tgeiru(31:22:98 In India, there is an untapped potential in the Tier 2, Tier 3 Cities '

customized investment options SUCh as.Baskets and Goals to help as a single point for accessing information and services pertaining where quallty FlnanCIal serVIces are not available dueto restrlctlon %
users decudewhere exactlytheyshouldmvestto getgood returns. to registered users and customers, the software manages a In theform of resources and location.Further,the representatives _‘l

The °hl'h_e platform helped the Cho'cegr°UP_t9 trathelrthe" 85' centralized tracking of all the inquiries raised, along with the of financial services have access of just one or two financial
90% of client base online and the user acqunsntion rate Increased commission and invoice to be generated for successful servicewhich constraints customer reliability. Insurance

drasticallyln less COSt' conversion ofthe enquirytothe lead. ? 1
2- Neuron-Chmce Bmk'ng PVt-Ltd &Ch°'ce Wealth Management Their growth trajectory is noticeable in the number of projects Taking heed to thlS disparity in the distribution Of financial F ? .I' \

Serwces undertaken in a multitude of sectors such as Finance (NBFC), services in India, with Choice connect we aim to pivot our [3
A back—end system that has helped streamline operations (RMS, Government, FMCG, Education as well as Real Estate.Apart from efforts to offer a sole portal for services like Loans, Insurance, .
Back Office, Payment Gateway, KYC System and Onboardlng) for the ones mentioned above, some other prOJects of ChOIce . Retall Loan
Jiffyand Investica byintegrating multiple systems with a single user; TechLab include - E-Billing System, PMAY Survey App, Caddwell, Mutual Funds and StOCk Market.
thereby, eliminating the need to use several systems for various Lions Club, Digital Canteen, Internal Accounting Audit and S. K. Ch . C Ct th h h ll d rt d 't
operations. This has helped our business verticals reduce the Patodia(Web Platform)among others. Olce onne roug as enro e new pa ners un e“ 5
operation time by40-50 percent. It hasfurtherallowed forefiortless WAYFORWARDSTATEMENT Digital Partner Program has reached out to more than 8000
management of various operational activities on a daily basis and H dl' l . d f ' b' d ' h ' f partners with in a span of 8 months i,e. August 30, 2019. The , ‘
the earlier challenge of 'no business visibility and performance an ”‘9 a mu ht“ e 0 proiects, com ”19 W” a practice 0 - - - - -
metrics' has been resolved.Along with this, it has enabled seamless 'valldated learning' has Pos't'Ohed them well 'h collaborating W'th _CBAS are adélng layer In Cllent serVICIng and we are proud to . . {g}! .
support management with customer profiling and further made it their. Clients to aid them in their transformation journeys. Wit.“ the Inform that With 8 months of launch we are able to reach out to >_‘./ 51/ 1.x“

easier to evaluate performance at the employee level to ensure m'SS'Oh to operate 9“ the Lean Startup methodology and a V'S'Oh to 6000+ customers by providing multipleservicesto them. n
timely achievement oftargets. Future plans include delivering mass explore the °Verseas market as well; Ch°lce TechLab has expanded 13¢)fl- Q No Work Earn more Get
personalization and Al Support that allows for reduced waiting time exponentially. The employee strength has grown from 10 employees °o EIP Registration Anytime by selling customer
and user profile based guidance and support. in 2016 to 100+ employees in 2019. Further, they have branched out 0%@ h ' I . l

3_ Miri-Kolte Patil Developers Ltd. from Mumbaito Pune and will be expanding to Bangalore aswell. &@ F7 C arges Anywhere Mu t.lp e now. an.d earn
An Infrastructure ERP builtin collaboration with one ofthe oldest Rooted strongly in Financial Technology, Choice TechLab is also @ \ serVIces for Ilfetlme

. . . - leveraging technological solutions in other sectors as well Going 1’7’7 4and most prominent real-estate developers In India, |.e., Kolte f d h , , f , h l , , b A l. | . '4 @@
Patil; for real-estate operations management. Delivering an orwar 't eirmajor ocusm tec no 09)”? gomg t°_ e ngu 9h onlc, <35
integrated suite of business applications which includes the Serverless Architecture as well as Machine Learning and Big Data Kb; E Q,

Budgeting Module Business Pivot Module and Share Module for (Wthh Will be a core part Of the Choice Group). Further, they are ® d we are happy to help yOU
Reports along with the implementation of the critical path collaborating with multiple ULBs in Bihar and Chhattisgarh to create K...

algorithm, Gant Chart as well as the Dynamic Organisation Chart 22::rlwtsweesllaagfitne: 3:323: ?;?;;J: gfigpjl‘lgt-l—Zg :1: rllvdesll 0: giallc)k
t t' h th ‘ ' ‘ ' '

highecriiticlrrlgogfcfigipgigehatml as earned em Immense Automation of GIS based property data collection with efficient and $03: ( www.ch0|ceconnect.|n
‘ lbl fd thl 'l‘th'l'.G' hd,4' InventoryManagement-IIITNaya Raipur sca a e useo rone ec no ogylsa so In e pipe me 0an a ea +91 81242 42424

An Inventory and Expense Management System developed in
association with ”IT Naya Raipur. The system has helped
streamline expense workflow, i.e., Expense, Issue and Reporting.

they will be adopting a multi—lingual approach for all the platforms, to
cater to the 2-tier and 3-tier cites to expand their client's customer
base in India. The coming year will also see them exploring the
international markets and focusing on acquiring clients overseas.
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Choice Connect - Performance Report

No. of CBAs added:
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We are working towards increasing the number of CBAs added in a day and the current average has increased in each quarter.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

AND POLICY

 

Effective internal control reduces the risk of asset loss, helps to ensure

that information is complete and accurate, financial statements are

reliable and reported accurately in a timely manner, and operations

are conducted in accordance with the provisions of applicable laws

and regulations.

The Company maintains adequate internal control systems

commensurate with the nature of business, size and complexity of its

operations. The Company has well established processes, guidelines,

and procedures to augment internal controls. Adherence to these

processes is ensured through frequent internal audits. Any deviations

are reported to the Management.

Internal Auditors review systems and operations ofthe Company and

ensure that the Company is functioning in accordance with all the

applicable statutes.Any internal control weaknesses, non-compliance

with statutes and suggestions for improvements in existing practices

are reported bythe InternalAuditors.

The Internal Audit Report is reviewed by Statutory Auditors while

performing audit functions to confirm that there are no transactions

conflicting with the interests of the Company and regulatory

stipulations. The Audit Committee reviews the Internal Audit Report

and the quarterly Compliance Report placed before the Committee

and ensures that observations pointed out in these reports are

addressed in a timely and structured manner bythe Management.The

Audit Committee reviews an Action Taken Report (ATR) which states

the points needing correction and the action taken on the same.

Adequate Internal Control system to commensurate with nature of

business and size ofoperations for ensuring includes:

I Orderly and efficient conduct of Business

I Adherence to company's policies and procedures

I Safeguarding all our assets against loss from unauthorised use or

disposal

I Prevention & detection offraud & error

I Accuraw and completeness ofaccounting standards

Your Company believes that Human Resource is important to the
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HUMAN RESOURCE

 

organizations in myriad areas, ranging from strategic planning to

company image. The purpose of Human Resource development is to

provide the ”Coaching" needed to strengthen and grow the

knowledge,skills,andabilitiesthatanemployeealreadyhas.

At Choice we believe that employees are the most treasured

possessions and Crucial Players for the growth and Success of the

Business. Employee Engagement activities are done on regular basis

to create a healthy environmentand foster happiness atworkplace.

Knowledge Upgrade is one ofthe core elements in our Employee Life

cycle process. The goal of development and training is to make

employees even better at what they do.The Company as a structured

induction process at all locations and management development

programstoupgradeskills ofmanagers.

The Company has continued to conduct various employee benefit,

recreational and team building programs to enhance employee skills,

motivation and in allto fosterteam spirit.

The Company is committed to fostering, augmenting and holding its

top talent of the Company. This is done through our regular Rewards

and Recognition Programs conducted on regularbasis.

RISK EVALUATION & MITIGATION

 

A Risk Management Policyforthe Company has been adopted by the

Board of Directors. The Board sets, approves the charter and

objectives for Risk Management and Risk Philosophy. The Risk

ManagementCommittee ofthe Board is setupto assistthe Board in its

oversight ofvarious risks, review and analyse the risk exposure related

to specific issues, provide oversight of risk across the organisation and

reviewthe risk profile ofsubsidiaries.

Risk is an integral part of the Business which aims at delivering

superior shareholder value by achieving an appropriate balance

between risks and returns. A comprehensive Enterprise Risk

Management Framework has been adopted which lays down the

guidelines for risk identification, assessment and monitoring in line

with the strategies business operations ofentities in the group.

Today's Financial services company operate in an increasingly

complex competitive and continuously evolving regulatory

environment, where the ability to manage risks across geographic

boundaries, products , customer segments is ofsupreme importance
forthe effective growth ofthe organisation.

The Company being an Holding Company with no operating Business

on standalone basis derive its income mainly from dividend, interest

Management Discussion &Analysis Report %%

and capital gains and hence is not directly exposed to many risks. The

riskforthe Company is mainly associated with the business of its various

operating segmentthrough its subsidiaries operating within the group.

The group Business is exposed to many internal & external risks. A

team of experienced people within the organisation identify &

monitorthese risks as an on-going process to monitor and control the

same to keep the risks at minimum level. On- going monitoring by our

officials help in identifying the Risk at an early stage.The reports ofthe

internal auditor s is reviewed and discussed by the Audit Committee

of the respective operating companies including the review by your

Company's Board.

1 ) Regulatory Risk:

Regulatory risk is the risk arising out of a change in laws and

regulation governing business. It could also arise on account of

inadequate observance of regulatory requirements or differences

in interpretation of regulationsvis-a-vis the regulators. New laws or

regulations or changes in the enforcement of existing laws and

regulations may adversely affect business/ revenue/profits.

Risk mitigation: The Company has a team of experienced

professionals who take care of compliance with applicable laws,

rules, regulations, and guidelines affecting our business.Theteam

is strongly supported by our Corporate Functions team to quickly

calibrate the action in case of a change in regulation. All the new

guidelines, circulars, notifications are complied with. Formulation

of the policies as well as its implementation is taken due care of.

Internal audit is also carried out to monitor compliance with best

practices, approved policies, and applicable regulations.

2) LiquidityRisk

Liquidity Risk is the risk arising due to unavailability of adequate

funds at appropriate prices or tenure. It also refers to the risk that

arises from the difficulty ofselling assets without high impactcost.

Risk Mitigation: We have strong financial position and all our

businesses are adequately capitalised, have appropriate credit

lines available to address liquidity risks.We also maintain a part of

our capital in liquid assetsto manage anysudden liquidity needs.

3) Market Risk/ Price Risk

Market risk is the risk arising from the adverse movements in

market price for various securities, which may impact value of

portfolio of investments in securities, which may impact value of

portfolio of investments in securities.

Risk Mitigation: Our Portfolios and collaterals / securities are

continuouslymonitored.

4) Product risk:

Product risk refers to the risks arising out of the products a

company offers to its customer in the market.

Risk mitigation: The group offers its customers a well-diversified

product range in line with customers need and market conditionsThe

Company offers brokerage, mutual fund distribution and portfolio

management to its customers. This diversification and product range

helpsthe Company reduce risksarising out ofproducts.

5) Operational Risk

Operational Risk can result from variety of factors including failure

to obtain proper internal authorizations, improperly documented

transactions, failure of operational and information security
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procedures, computer systems , software or equipments fraud, in
adequate training and employee errors. Our businesses are

dependent on people and processes. Shortcomings or failure in

internal processes or systems may have material adverse impact

on thefinancial position as well as affect its operation.

Risk Mitigation: Well defined policies, operational processes and

systems have been devised for our operations. Regular audit are

done by internal auditors to monitorthe adherence of policies and

processes. Maker/ Checker mechanism has been put in place to

ensure compliance with laid down systems and procedures in all

areas offunctioning oftheCompany.

Also the Company's key management team consists of

professionals of high level of commitment and the team is well

versed in the key issues relevanttothe holding companystructure.

Business Continuity Risk

In the event of disruption in the conduct of business due to

incidents like fire, natural calamity, breakdowns of infrastructure

etc. We are exposed to risk of loss data, clients or business that can

adversely affect ourfinancial results.

Risk Mitigation: Policies on Preservation ofdocuments and records

are laid down by the Company and the internal checks are kept at

regular intervals.

Management Discussion &Ana|ysis Report %?

CAUTIONARYSTATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report

describing the Company's objective, projections, estimates and

expectations may be "fonlvard looking Statements" within the

meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actual results might

differsubstantiallyormateriallyfromthose expressorimplied.

On behalf ofthe Board of Directors

Sdl- Sdl-

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

(Managing Director) (Director)

DIN No: 01 51 8700 DIN No: 03051 841

Mumbai:

August30. 201 9
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    CORORATE
GOVERANCE
REPORT
”Undertaking the business
more through principles
than rules”

- Corporate Governance maxims

Corporates have become an influential and dominant institution.They

have reached to every corner ofthe globe in various sizes, capabilities

and influences. Their governance has influenced economies and

various aspects of social landscape. Moreover with the emergence of

globalization, there is greater liberalisation and less of governmental

control, which results in to a greater need for accountability. Hence,

corporate governance has become an important factor in managing

organizations in the currentglobal and complexenvironment.

Corporate governance is the way a corporate's rules itself. It is a

method of governing the company within the boundary of its policies

like a independent state, establishing its own customs, policies and

laws to its employees from the highest to the lowest levels. Corporate

governance is intended to increase the accountability of your

company and to avoid colossal mishaps before they occur.

Corporate Governance refers specifically to the set of rules, controls,

policies, and resolutions put in place to dictate corporate behaviour.

Corporate governance is the system of rules, practices, and processes

by which a company is directed and controlled. Corporate

governance essentially involves balancing the interests of a

company's and its various stakeholders, such as shareholders, senior

management executives, customers, suppliers, financiers, the

government,andthecommunity.

Since corporate governance also provides the frameworkforattaining

a company's objectives, it encompasses practically every sphere of

management, from action plans and internal controls to performance

measurement and corporate disclosure.

Most companies strive to have a high level of corporate governance.

For many shareholders, it is not enough for a company to merely be

profitable; it also needs to demonstrate good corporate citizenship

through environmental awareness, ethical behaviour, and sound

corporate governance practices. Good corporate governance creates

a transparent set of rules and controls in which shareholders,

directors, and officers have aligned enticements.
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COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE

"OurWorld mayhavechanged butthe importance of Integrityhas not"

At"Choice" Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a valuable
relationship and trust with all stakeholders. At Choice, Corporate

Governance is about upholding the highest standards of integrity,
transparency and accountability. We at "Choice" believe that it is

essential for us to manage our business affairs in the most fair and
transparent manner with a firm commitment to our values. We

maximize shareholders value while safeguarding and promoting the
interests of other stakeholders and maintaining steadfast

commitments to ethics and code of conduct. Our corporate
governance framework is a reflection of our culture, our policies, our

relationship with stakeholders and our commitmentto values.

The fundamental objective of corporate governance is to boost and

maximize shareholder value and protect the interest of other stake
holders. We at "Choice" believe in retaining and enhancing stakeholder

trust for sustained corporate growth. We truly believe in adherence to
the law not onlyin letter butin spiritofdoing the Business in a rightway.

Standard Criteria ofour Corporate Governance Philosophy:

I Having strong systems and processes to ensure full and timely
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements.

I Deploying well defined governance structures that establishes

checks and balances and delegates decision making to
appropriatelevelsintheorganisation;

I Respect, accountability and fairnesstowards all stakeholders.

I Engaging a diverse and highly experienced Board of Directors,
with expertise in industry,finance, managementand the law;

I Clear communication of relevant information and high degree of
disclosure levels.

I Create valuefor all stakeholders without compromising on ethical
principles.

I Making high levels of disclosures for dissemination of corporate,
financial and operational information to all itsstakeholders;

I Adoption of transparent and robust systems, processes, policies
and procedures;

The Company believes that strong governance standards, focusing on
fairness, transparency, accountability and responsibility are vital, not only

for the healthy and pulsating corporate sector growth, but also for
inclusive growth ofthe economy.The Company has always been attentive
on good Corporate Governance, which is a significant driver of

maintainable corporate growth and long term value creation for its

stakeholders. The Company has measures to periodically review and
revise the Corporate Governance practices by subjecting business

processesto auditsand checksthat measures uptothe required standards.

The Company believes that Corporate Governance is notjust limited

to creating checks and balances; it is more about creating structural
excellence leading to increasing employee and customersatisfaction

and shareholdervalue.The Company always endeavours to leverage
its human and capital resources to translate opportunities into reality,
create awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and

entrepreneurship atall levels.

"Choice" is in full compliance with the Corporate Governance
practices, norms & disclosures with respect to Listing Regulations with

the Stock Exchange. The company has a practice of reporting the

Financial results and other relevant disclosures/ developments in a
clearand timely mannerthrough print and electronic media.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

At the helm of the Corporate Governance drill is the Company's

 

Corporate Goverance %%

"Board". The Board provides tactical direction to the company's senior
management and oversees the interests of all stakeholders. lt reviews
corporate policies, overall performance, accounting and reporting

standards and other significant areas of management, corporate
governance and regulatorycompliance.

THE ROLE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN THE
CHANGING BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
lttakes some combination of people, rules, processes and procedures

to manage the business of a company. This is how zealous of
Corporate Governance is rooted. Corporate governance forms the
basis for corporations to make decisions that consider many
environments, including economic, social, regulatory and the market
environment. Ethical behaviourfollowed by business principles, with
the goal of creating Iong-term value and sustainability for all

stakeholders forms the basis ofCorporate Governance.

Good corporate governance relies on distinct differences in the roles

between board directors and managers.The Board plays a dominant
auxiliary and regulatory role in the Corporate Governance structure,
provides leadership and guidance to the management and oversees
the execution ofthe strategies.

At "Choice" the Board is trusted for the ultimate responsibility of the
Management, Directions and performance of the Company. As its
principal role the Board is entrusted with the duty of providing
strategicdirectiontothe Company'sseniormanagementand oversee
the interest of all the stakeholders. The Board reviews Corporate
Policies, overall Performance, accounting and reporting standards

and other significant areas of Management, Corporate Governance
and regulatory compliance. At " Choice " the Board has an optimal
combination of Executive and Non — Executive Director( Independent

Director's) who have considerable expertise in their respective fields
as perthe requirement of Company's Business.

Specific matters reserved for the Board's Consideration and decision
are asfollows:

I To determine the Company's objectives, missions, strategies,
policies and business plans and monitortheirimplementation

I To set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Company'sstrategicobjectives

I To ensure the integrity of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting system and compliance with the relevant laws and
standards, and that appropriate internal control systems are in
place, including systems for risk management, as well as financial
and operational control

I To appoint key senior executives

I To ensure timely and accurate disclosure to and communications
with stakeholders

I To ensure the adequacy of resources, and staff qualifications and
experience oftheGroup's accounting and financial reporting function

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR

As on the date ofthis Report,the Board Comprises of 7 (Seven) Directors
ofwhich 4( Four ) are Non — Executive Independent Director ,(1 )One is a

Non- Executive Women Director and 2( Two )Executive Director out of

which one is a Managing Director. The Independent Director's

constitute 57% oftheTotal Members ofthe Board ofyour Company.The
composition and size ofthe Boa rd is reviewed periodically.

The Board is entrusted with an ultimate responsibility of the
Management, Directions and Performance ofthe Company. The Board
Periodicallyevaluatesthe need forchange in size and Composition.

The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in

conformity with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulation read with

section 149 ofthe CompaniesAct,2013.
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INDEPENDENTDIRECTOR &THE|R ROLE

The need forthe independentdirectors can be established bythe fact

that they are expected to be independentfrom the management and

act as the trustees of shareholders. The principle of corporate

governance brings about a need for supervision over the activity of

the management and bring abouta sense ofaccountability sothatthe

interest of the owners are safeguarded and that the management

should observe and follow ethical standards in its dealings and should

keep informed all the interested parties thereby bringing about

transparencyinthefunctioning ofthe company.

Independent Directors plays a vital role in ensuring Corporate

Governance in a company. It is said that if the board of directors

consists of right mixture of executive and non-executive directors and

among the non-executive directors, it comprises of independent

directors who could discuss without any bias matters pertaining to

company affairs, good governance would automaticallyfollow.

The rationale behind having independent directors is that it would

increase the quality of board supeNision and reduce the possibility of

damaging conflict of interest. The role of Independent Director is to

act as a guide to the Company. The role broadly includes improving

corporate credibility and governance standards functioning as a

watch dog and playing avital role in riskmanagement.

The Company has on its Board, prominent Independent Directors

who have brought independent Judgement to Board's

contemplation.The Independent Directors have played a pivotal role

in safeguarding the interest ofall stakeholders.

INDEPENDENTDIRECTOR'S MEETING:

During the Year under review,the Independent Directors met on May

29,2019 interalia to

I Review the performance of the Non-lndependent Director and

the Board asawhole.

I Review the performance of the Managing Director of the

Company taking in to account review of the Executive and Non —

Executive Directors

I Weigh the quality, quantity & timelines of flow of information

between the Company's management and the Board that is

necessaryforthe Boardto effectivelyand reasonably performthe duties.

DECLARATIONS:

The Independent Directors have submitted declaration(s) that they

meet the criteria of Independence laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013 & the Listing Regulations. Based on the Declarations

received from the Independent Directors, the Company has verified
the accuracy of such disclosures and confirm that the Independent

Directors fulfil the conditions of Independence specified in the Listing
Regulations and are independent of the management of the

Name of the Director Number of Board
Meeting Held

Mr. Kamal Poddar

Company. The Company has issued formal appointment letters to all

the Independent Director in the manner provided under the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued thereunder. A sample

letter of appointment / re- appointment containing the terms and
conditions issued to Independent Directors, is posted on the

Company'swebsitewww.choiceindia.com.

NUMBEROF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORSHIP:

AS per Regulation 17 A of the Listing Regulations, based on the
Intimations/ disclosures received from the Directors, none of the

Independent Directorserve as an Independent Director in more than
seven Listed Company. The Managing Director of the Company does
not serve as an Independent Director in any Listed Company.

The Board has identified the following skill set with reference to its
Business and industry which are available with the Board: available
with the Board:

Name ofthe Director Expertise in FunctionalAreas

CA Kamal Poddar Finance&Business Management

CAAjay Kejriwal Finance,Taxation & Management Practices

Mrs.Hemlata Poddar Human Resource

Mr.AshokKumarThakur Finance &Management

Mr. DebkumarGoswami Finance&Taxation

 

   Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal Social Responsibility& Human Resource

Mr. Bharat KumarShah Business Development

BOARD MEETING

The Board Meets at regular intervals to discuss and adoptthe business
strategies, policies, risk management, financial results / performance
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board Meetings are pre
scheduled and a tentative annual calendar of the Board Meeting is
circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan
theirschedules accordingly. In case of business constraints the Boards
approval is taken through circular resolutions. The circular resolutions
are noted atthe subsequent Board Meeting.

The notice and detailed Agenda along with relevant notes and other
material information are sent in advance separately to each Director
and in exceptional cases tabled at the meeting with the approval of
the Board. This ensures timely and informed decisions by the Board.
The Board reviews the performances of the Company in comparison
to settargets/ available resources.

The Board Meeting are generally held at the Registered Office or in
the nearby vicinity of the Registered Office of the Company. Four
Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year under -review i.e
2018-19 May 30, 2018, August 09, 2018, November 12, 2018 &

February 11, 201 9. The Meetings were held at least once in a quarter
and the time period between two meetings did not exceed 120 days.
The details of attendance of the Director at the Board meetings held
during the financial year 2018-19 and at the last Annual General
Meeting are given below:

Number of Board Attendance Attendance at the
Meeting previous Annual General Meeting

Held in the Year 2018

 

 
Mr. Ajay Kejriwal
 

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar 
Mr. Debkumar Goswami 
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FLOWOF INFORMATION

The agenda items for Board/ Committee meetings are finalised bythe
Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman. The detailed
Agenda, setting out the business to be transacted at the Board/
Committee meetings supported with relevant presentations,
explanatory notes and executive summaries is sent to each Director at
least seven days before the date of the meetings. In addition to the
items which are required to be placed before the Board for its noting
and/ or consideration / approval Information is provided on various
significantitems.

With regards to matters requiring the approval of the Board, all the
concerned person communicate with the Company Secretary in
advance to enable inclusion of such matters in the agenda for the
Board/ committee meetings. Where it is not practicable to circulate
any document or if the agenda item is of a confidential nature, the
same is sentseparatelyortabled atthe meeting, asthe case may be. In
special and exceptional circumstances, consideration ofadditional or
supplementary items is taken up with the permission ofthe Chairman

and with the consent of the majority of the Directors present at the
Meeting. The senior officials of the Group are invited to the Board
meetings in respect of the items concerning them to provide
additional inputs as and when necessary.

The Agenda for the Meetings of the Board and its Committees are
circulated in advance to the Directors to ensure sufficient time is
provided to Director to prepare forthe meetings. The Board meets at
least once in a quarter inter alia to review quarterly standalone and
consolidated financial results, compliance report(s) of all laws
applicable to the Company, major legal issues or regulatory
development , minutes of the Board Meetings of Subsidiary
companies, significant transactions and arrangements entered in to
by the unlisted subsidiary companies, risk management, borrowings,
Jointventures orany other proposal from the management regarding
mergers, acquisitions, restructu ring ofinvestments etc.

The draft Minutes ofthe Board and Committee meetings are circulated
amongst the Directors/ Members for their perusal and comments.
Suggestion if any, received from the Directors/ Members are suitably
incorporated in the draft Minutes, in consultation with the chairman of
the Board/Committee. Minutes are generallysigned bythe Chairman of
the Board/ Committee atthe next meeting.

The Company has an effective post meeting follow up review and
reporting Process.The decisionstaken by the Board/ Committees are
communicated to the respective departmental heads for their
implementation.The implementation ofthe decisions ofthe previous
Board Meeting is placed in the next Board Meeting.

AVAILABILITYOF INFORMATIONTOTHE BOARD

The Board has unrestricted access to all Company related information.
At Board Meetings, managers and representatives who can provide
additional insights in to the items being discussed are invited.At the
Board Meetings, presentations are made by the Senior Management
&the Business Heads of the Company and its subsidiaries.The Board
periodically reviews and takes note of, all the compliances
confirmations in respect of laws and regulations applicable to the
company. The annual operating & Capital expenditure plans and
budgets, unaudited / audited financial results, minutes of the board

Meetings of the unlisted subsidiaries including the summary of the
key decisions taken bytheir respective boards, significanttransactions
and arrangements entered in to bythe unlisted subsidiarycompanies,
risk management update / reports, minutes of meetings of the
committees ofthe board etc. are placed before the Board.

FAMILARISATION PROGRAMME OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

The Independent Directors have been familiarised with the Company,

 

their roles and responsibilities in the Company , their roles and
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the

Company operates , business model of the Company etc. During the
FY 2018-19, Independent Director's were taken through various

aspects of the Company's Business and operations. The details of the
familiarisation programme imparted to the Independent Directors

during FY2018-19 are put up on the website ofthe Company and can
be accessed at www.choiceindia.com.

At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of appointment is
given tothe Director,which interalia explainsthe role,function, duties

and responsibilities expected from him as a Director ofthe Company.
The Directors are also explained in details the Compliance required

from him under Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations and

othervarious statues and an affirmation is obtained.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Company believes that sound succession plans for the Board

members and senior leadership are very important for creating robust
future forthe Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board, as part of succession planning exercise, periodically

review the composition of the Board to ensure that the same is closely
aligned with the strategy and long term needs ofthe Company.

GOVERNANCE CODE

Code ofConduct& Ethics:

The Company has adopted the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

("the Code ") which is applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior
Management team (One Level below the Board of Directors) of the

Company. The Code requires Directors and Employees to act
honestly, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves in

professional, courteous and respectful manner.The Code is displayed
on thewebsite oftheCompanywww.choiceindia.com.

All Members and Employees have affirmed compliance with the said

code for the year ended March 31, 201 9. A declaration to this effect is

signed bythe Managing Directorisgiven below:

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

As provided under Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all
Board Members and senior Management Personnel have

affirmed compliance with code of conduct for the year ended

March31,2019.

Place: Mumbai Scl/-

Date :August 30, 201 9 Kamal Poddar

Managing Director

DIN No:01518700

 

 

   
InsiderTrading Code:

The Company has adopted an ”Internal Code" of conduct for
Regulating, Monitoring and ReportingTrades by Designated Persons

(”the Code”) in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading Regulations,2015(the PIT Regulations).

The Code is applicable to Promoters, Members of Promoters Group,
all Directors and Designated Persons who are expected to have

access to unpublished price sensitive information relating to the
Company. The Company has formulated the Code of Practices and

procedures for fair Disclosures of un published price sensitive
information in compliance with PIT Regulations.

Board Evaluation
One of the Key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the

Board evaluation framework. The Board works with the Nomination &

Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for the
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performance of the Chairman, the Board, Board Committees and

executive / Non- executive Independent Director through peer

evaluation, excluding the Directors being evaluated.

The Board carried out an Annual Performance evaluation of its own

performance, the Independent Director individually as well as the

evaluation of the working of the committees of the Board. The

Performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out by the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking in to

Consideration inputs received from covering various aspects of the

Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the

Board and its committees, Board Culture, execution and performance

ofspecificduties, obligations and governance.

Corporate Goverance %?

The Performance evaluation of the Chairman and Managing Director

and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the

Independent Directors.The Directors expressed their satisfaction with

the evaluation process.

MEMBERSHIP OFOTHER BOARDS

The information relating to the number of other directorship and
committee chairmanships/ membership held bythe Directors in other
public companies as on March 31, 2019 is detailed below. Other
Directorship incudes directorship of Private Limited Companies and
Companies under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
information pertaining to the Chairmanship/ memberships of the
committee of the Board held by our Directors include audit
Committee and stakeholder relationship committee as required
underthe Listing Regulation.

 

Name of the Director Number of

Directorship in

other Companies

Number of Committee

Position held in other

public Companies

No. of Equity Shares

held in " Choice

International Limited"

as on March 31, 2019

 

A) AUDITCOMMITTEE

The Primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and
provide an effective supervision of the Management's financial
reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the
highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial
reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the
financial reporting process by the Management, the Internal auditors
andtheIndependentauditors.

As on March 31, 2019, the Audit Committee comprises of three

Directors, the majority of which are Independent Directors. All the
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members of the Committee are financially literate and holds a varied

experience in the Financial Market.

The audit committee met four times during the year i.e on 2018-19-

May 30, 2018, August 09,2018, November12,2018 & February11,

201 9. The maximum interval between any two consecutive Meetings

was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 day. The Minutes of

the meetings of the Audit Committee are noted by the Board. The

details of the composition of the Committee, meetings held,

attendance atthe meeting are given in the below mentioned table:

 

  

Name of the Director Position No. of No. of Presence at the
Meetings Meetings Previous Annual

held attended General Meeting held
in September, 2018

Mr. Debkumar Goswami Independent Director Chairman 4 4

Mr. A.KThakur Independent DirectorMember 4 4

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 4 4   
 

 

Mr. Kamal Poddar Executive Director 13 - - 2500011

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director — — 52000

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar Non — Executive Director - - 850000
 

Mr. Debkumar Goswami Independent Director
 

Mr.Ashok KumarThakur Independent Director
 

Mr. Kanhaiyalal Ben~al Independent Director
 

Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah Independent Director   
Note:

1) Directorship includes Private Limited Companies and Section 8 Companies

2) Chairmanship / Membership of Committee only include Audit Committee and Stake Holder Relationship Committee in Indian Public

Companies, Members ofthe Board ofthe Company do not have membership of more than 10 Board level committees or chairman of more

than five such committees.

3) Mr. Kamal Poddar& Mrs. Hemlata Poddar are related to each other.

4) Brief Profile of each ofthe above Directors are available on the Company'swebsite www.choiceindia.com

5) The details provided consistofthe Director's Holding Directorship in the Companyas on March 31 ,201 9. Mr. RaghhuvirShrivastava( DIN No:

01199531),Mr.Lalit Menghnani( DIN No.06614582)& Mr. LN Nathuramka( DIN No . 0735408) do not hold directorship in the company as

on March 31,2019

COMMITI'EES OFTHE BOARD

The Board has constituted various committees ofthe Directors to take

informed decisions in the best interest ofthe Companywhich catersto

specific areas and activities. The Committees constituted are in line

with the CompaniesAct,2013 & Listing Regulations. Following are the

Committee constituted by the Board of Directors which comprises of

the members ofthe Board &Senior Management ofthe Company.

A) Audit Committee

B) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

C) Stake HolderRelationshipCommittee

D) Risk Management Committee

E) Investment Committee

F) Finance Committee

G) SecuritiesAllotmentCommittee

H) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The above mentioned Committee meetings are held at Regular

Intervals to track the day to day affairs of the Company. The decisions

taken by the Committee are reviewed by the Board of Directors at the

Board Meeting conducted for each quarter.

All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees,

appointment of Members and fixing their terms of reference/ role of

committee are taken bythe Board of Directors. Details ofthe role and

composition of these Commitments including the number of

meetings held during the financial year and attendance at meetings

are provided below.
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The Company Secretary of the company acts as the secretary to the

committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with

the requirements ofSEBI Listing Regulations and Section 177(4) ofthe

CompaniesAct,2013. Further,theAuditCommittee has powers which

are in line with SEBI Listing Regulations. The terms of reference ofthe

Audit Committeeincludethefollowing:

l) Oversight ofthe listed entity's financial reporting process and the

disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial

statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ii) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of

appointment ofauditors ofthe listed entity;

iii) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services

rendered bythe statutoryauditors.

iv) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements

and auditors reports thereon before submission to the board for

approval, with particular reference to :

a) Matters required to be included in the Director's responsibility

statementto be included in the board's report in terms of( c ) of

subsection (3) ofsection 134 ofthe CompaniesAct,201 3.;

b) Changes if any, in accounting policies and practices and

reasonsforthesame.

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the

exercise ofjudgements by management.

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements

arising out ofauditfinding;

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating

to financial statements;

1‘) Disclosure ofany related partytransactions;

9) Modified Options in the draft audit report,

v) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial

statements before submission to the board for approval;

vi) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses /

application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights

issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for

purposes other than those stated in the offer document /

prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring

agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights

issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to

take up steps in this matter;

(vii) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and

effectiveness of audit process.

viii) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the

listed entitywith related parties ifany;

ix) Scrutiny of inter—corporate loans and investments;

x) Valuation of undertakings or assets ofthe listed entity, wherever it

is necessary;

xi) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management

systems;

xii) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and

internal auditors, adequacy ofthe internal control systems;

xiii) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any,

including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing

and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting

structure coverage and frequency ofinternal audit;

xiv) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and

followupthere on;

xv) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the

internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material

nature and reporting the matterto the board;

xvi) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences,

about the nature and scope of audit as well as post—audit

discussion to ascertain any area of concern ifany;

xvii)To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to

the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-

payment ofdeclared dividends) and creditors;

xviii)To reviewthe functioning ofthe whistle blower mechanism;
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xix) Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing

the qualifications, experience and background, etc. ofthe candidate;

The auditcommitteeshall mandatorily reviewthefollowing information:

I Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and

results of operations;
I Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by

the audit committee),submitted by management;

I Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses

issued bythe statutory auditors;

I Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

I Theappointment,removalandtermsofremunerationofthechief

internal auditorshall be subjectto review bythe auditcommittee.

I Statementofdeviations:

Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of

monitoring agency, if applicable, is submitted to stock

exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Prominent features of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee has been formulated in accordance with the Companies

Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations and the role ofthe committee inter

alia includes is to assist the Board in ensuring that the Board and

Executive Committee retain an appropriate structure, size and

balance of skills to support the strategic objectives and values of the

firm. The Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities

regarding the determination, implementation and oversight of senior

remuneration arrangements to enable the recruitment, motivation ,

Board Membership and retention of partners generally. The

Committee also assists the Board by reviewing and making

recommendations in respect of the remuneration policies and

framework for all staff.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of three

Directors, all being Non — Executive Director as on the date of the

Report the Committee constitutes oftwo Independent Director & one

Non—Executive Director. The details ofthe Members ofthe Committee

& the Committee Meetings held during the year under review are

mentioned below in thetable:

Details of the Meeting & Members of Nomination & Remuneration Committee

 

 

  

Name of the Member Position No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended

Mr. Debkumar Goswami Independent Director Chairman 1 1

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar Non- Executive Director Member 1 1

* Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal Independent Director Member 1 1   
The CompanySecretary acts as a Secretaryto the Committee.

* Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal the Independent Director of the Company

was appointed as the Member of the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee with effect from May 30, 2018 pursuant to Resignation of

Mr. Lalit Menghnani with effect from May 25, 2018 from the Board of

Directors of the Company due to which Mr. Lalit Meghnani ceased to

be the Memberofthe Committee.

The Composition & role of the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder and

Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II ofthe Listing Regulations.

During the Financial Year 2018-19 the Committee meeting was held

on May 30,2018.

Terms of reference:

The Broad terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee as approved bythe Board are as follows:

I Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive

attributes and independence ofa director and recommend to the

Board of Directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the

Directors, keymanagerial personnel and otheremployees;

I Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of

Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;

I Devising a poliq on diversity of Board of Directors.

I Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and

who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with

the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors
theirappointmentand removal.

I Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the

independent director, on the basis of the report of the

performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

I Reviewing the overall compensation policy, service agreements

and other employment conditions of Managing / Whole Time

Directorsand SeniorManagement Employees.

I To create an evaluation framework for the Independent Director

and the Board.

I To provide necessary reports to the Chairman afterthe evaluation

process is completed bythe Directors.

Criteria for Performance Evaluation of Directors

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of
individual Directors including the Managing Director were evaluated

on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution,

independence of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the

Company and its shareholders. The performance evaluation of the

Managing Director and the Executive Directors and the other Non-

lndependent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Evaluation Criteria:

I Understanding the Business in connation with the Risk appetite of

the Business and Regulatory requirements;

I Leadership and ManagementSkills

I Attendance at the Board Meetings and active participation in the

discussion of Business Performance.

I Nurturing Leadership & Strategic Management Skills
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I Managing the Conflictsin the Board Discussion

I Managing the Potential Conflict ofinterest.

Board Membership:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall formulate the

criteria for appointment of a Director and review the said criteria for

determining the qualifications, skills, positive attributes necessary for

inducting members of the Board. The Committee is also responsible

for screening the candidates who meet the criteria, reviewing their

appointment/ re — appointment and making recommendations to

the Board in this regard.

Few ofthe parameters considered bythe Nomination &Remuneration

Committee while recommending the appointment ofa Directorto the

Board,include:

I Composition ofthe Board

I Board Diversity

I Appropriate Balance ofskills & experience and knowledge

I Professional qualifications, expertise and experience in specific

area of business;

I any present or potential conflict ofinterest;

I ability to devote sufficient time and attention to his professional

obligation informed and balanced decision;

I ability to uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity in

accordancewiththe Company'svalues.

Remuneration Policy:

In determining the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel (KMP) and other employees of the Company, a

Remuneration Policy has been framed by the Nomination &

Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board with the

following broad objective:

I Ensuring that the level and compensation of Remuneration is

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors

ofthe quality required to run the Company Successfully,

I Motivate the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

to achieve excellence in their performance.

I Relationship of Remuneration to performance is clear and meets

appropriate performance Benchmarks.

I Ensuring that the remuneration to Directors, KMP & Senior

Management involves a balance between fixed & incentive pay

reflecting between fixed & incentive pay reflecting short & long

term performance objective appropriate to the working of the

Companyand its goals.

Emphasis on efficiency and pay for performance has been the

foundations ofthe Company's philosophy on rewards. The Company

values its intangible assets in the forms of its employee and to retain

them, the Company regularly benchmarks the remuneration level in

the industry and makes necessary changes in its pay structure to retain

theiremployees.

a) Remuneration to Non - Executive/ Independent Directors:

The Non — Executive / Independent Director ofthe Board shall be

entitled to sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board &

Committees thereof. The sitting fees paid to the Directors are

within the limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The

Independent Directors shall not be eligible for any stock option

plans and further shall also not be eligible for any share based

payments. The Independent Directors do not have any material

pecuniaryrelationship ortransactions with the Company.

 

b) Remuneration to Managing/ Executive Directors

The appointment and remuneration of Executive Directors

including Managing Director is governed bythe recommendation of

Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Resolutions passed by the

Board & Shareholders of the Company. Payment of remuneration to

Executive Directors is governed by the respective agreement

executed between the Director and the Company.

The remuneration payable to the Managing Director is broadly

divided in to fixed and variable component. The fixed component

comprises of salary, allowances, perquisites and the variable

component comprises of performance bonus and may include

commission subjectto the approval ofthe members.

The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance

based, to retain the talent. The detail of Remuneration to the

Managing Directorduring the yearis asfollows:

 

Name ofthe Director Salary,A||owances 8: Perquisites as on
March 31,2019

Mr. Kamal Poddar Rs. 42,00,000/—
 

Note: The Remuneration payable to the Managing Director shall be subject to

the approval of the Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,

where the re - appointment ofthe Managing Director along with his brief profile

forming part of the Resolution put to vote in the Notice of the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting to be held on September27, 2019.

c) Remuneration to Senior Management Employees

The Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior

Management shall consist of fixed pay & incentive pay in

compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, and in

accordance with Company's Policy. The fixed pay shall include

monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to provident

fund, pension schemes etc as amended from time to time. The

incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between

performance of the Company and Performance of the Key

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided

annually or such intervals as may be considered appropriate.
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C) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITI'EE

The Stake Holder Relationship Committee comprises of two Directors. Detailed below in the table is the Constitution & details of the Meeting

held during the year.

Board of Directors at the Board Meeting; the decisions taken by the Executive & Independent Directors. The details of the Committee

InvestmentCommitteecan bealtered bythe Board ofDirectors. Meeting held during the Year along with the Constitution of the

The Investment Committee constituted by the Board comprises of Committeeare detailed anOllOWS‘Details of the Meeting &Members ofStakeholder Relationship Committee

 

 

  

Name of the Member Position No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar Non— Executive Director Chairman 1 1

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 1 1

*Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah Independent Director Member 1 O   
Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah has been appointed as the Member of the

Committee in compliance with the Amendment SEBI( Listing

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Amendment Regulations,

2018with effectfrom February11,2019

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretaryto the Committee.

The Committee met One time during the Financial Year 2018- 19 on

May30,2018.

The Company obtains half yearly certificate from a Company Secretary

in Practise under Regulation 40(9)ofthe Listing Regulations, confirming

the issue of certificates for transfer, sub division , consolidation etc. and

submit a copy thereof to the Stock Exchange in terms of Regulation

40(10) of the Listing Regulations. Further the Compliance Certificate

under Regulation 7(3) of the Listing Regulations, confirming that all

activities in relation to both physical and electronic share transfer facility

are maintained by Registrar and Share Transfer Agent registered with

the Securities and Exchange Board of India is also filed with the Stock

Exchange on a halfyearly basis.

In accordance with Regulation 55 A of the SEBI ( Depositories and

Participants ) Regulations , 1996 and SEBI Circular No, D & C/

FI'I'I'C/Cir- 16/2002 dated December 31 , 2002 a Qualified Practising

Company Secretary carried out a Share Capital Audit to reconcile the

total admitted Equity Share capital with NSDL & CDSL and the total

Opening Balance of Complains received

Complains received during the year

 

issued and paid up share capital is in agreementwith the total number

of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised

shares held with NSDLand CDSL.

Theterms of reference ofthe committee include:

I Approval of transfer of Shares/ debenture and issue of Duplicate

/split/consolidation /subdivision ofShare.

I To fix record date/ book closure of Share/ debenture transfer

bookoftheCompanyfromtimetotime

I Monitoring expeditious redressal of investor grievance matters

received from stock exchanges, SEBI, ROC etc.

I To carry out any other duties that may be delegated to the

committee bythe Board of Directors from time to time.

The Secretarial Department of the Company and the Registrar and

Transfer Agent, Sharex Dynamics (India) Private Limited attend to all

the grievances of the Shareholders received directly or through SEBI,

Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of

Companies, etc.

Efforts are made to ensure that the grievances are redressed

expeditiouslyto the satisfaction ofthe Investors.

Details of Shareholders Complaints received & redressed during the

year2018— 1 9 are as follows:

Complains Resolved Closing Balance of

During the Year Complaints received

 

D) RISKMANAGEMENTCOMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee constituted by the Board of

Directors is bound to adhere to the Roles & Responsibility as defined

bythe Board of Directors in the Policy.

Term of reference of Risk Management Committee:

I Identifying the Company's Risk appetite

I Review the risk management practises and structures and

recommendchangestoensuretheiradequacy

I Framinga Risk Management Policy

I Approve and reviewthe risk management plan putin place bythe

management

I Such other activities as the Board of Directors may determine

fromtimetotime.

The Committee is responsible for the overall risk management

process & to address the uncertainties if any to be aroused in the

operationsoftheCompany.

The Risk Management Committee meets at Regular Interval .The Risk

Management Committee comprises ofthe Senior ManagementTeam

ofthe Company and the Executive Directors.

E) INVESTMENTCOMMI'I'I'EE

The Investment Committee is entrusted with the day to day operations

with respect to investments to made in the name and on behalf of the

Company. The maximum amount up to which the Investment shall me

made by the Investment Committee is already predefined by the

Board of Directors.

The decisions taken by the Investment Committee with respect to the

Investments made on behalf of the Committee are reviewed by the
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Name of the Member Position No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended

Mr. Kamal Poddar Managing Director Chairman 6 6

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 6 6

Mr. A KThakur Independent Director Member 6 6   

 

The Committee was held on June 25, 2018,June 27,2018, June 29,2018, August 13,2018, February 01,2019 and March 20, 2019 during the

yearunderreview

F) FINANCE COMMI'I'I'EE

The Finance Committee is entrusted with responsibility of day to day business activities and taking decisions on behalf of the Company in

respect of Financial matters pertaining to giving Guarantee,availing loan facilityfrom Banks, Financial Institutions, Monitoring adherence to

the Budget , setting Finance goals along with the funding strategies to achieve them, Presenting Finance goals to the Board of Director for

approval ,Creating, approving , and updating policies that help ensure the assets ofthe organization are protected, Ensuring approved Finance

policies and procedures are being followed bythe Company.

The maximum amount up to which the loans to be given or to be availed by the Company is predefined by the Board of Directors of the

Company. The decisions taken bythe Finance Committee with respectto the Financial decisions on behalf ofthe Committee are reviewed bythe

Board of Directors atthe Board Meeting; the decisions taken bythe Finance Committee can be altered bythe Board of Directors.

The details ofthe Committee Meeting held during theYearalong with the Constitution ofthe Committee are detailed as follows:

 

 

 

Name of the Member Category Position No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended

Mr. Kamal Poddar Managing Director Chairman 5 5

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 5 5

Mr. Manoj Singhania Chief Financial Officer Member 5 5   

 

The Meeting of the Finance Committee was held on April18, 2018,August13,2018,September 25, 2018, November 06, 2018 and November

22,201 8during the year under review.

G) SECURITIESALLOTMENTCOMMITTEE

The SecuritiesAllotment Committee is entrusted majorly with the role of considering and approving the allotment ofShares/ Debentures arising

on account of any Corporate action to be initiated bythe Company.

The SecuritiesAllotment Committee Meeting was held on May 30, 2018 during theYear under review.

The Constitution ofthe Secu ritiesAllotment Committee is as follows:

 

 

 

Name of the Member Position No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended

Mr. Kamal Poddar Managing Director Chairman 1 1

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 1 1

Ms. Karishma Shah Company Secretary Member 1 1   
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India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority was

placed before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on

August30,2019.

k) Recommendations of Committees ofthe Board

e) Policy Determining Material SubsidiariesH) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITYCOMMITTEE

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not imply to your company, nonetheless your Company understands the importance of its

responsibilities towards the society under which we cater our services. Your Company has voluntarily adopted the CSR Policy to shoulder its

responsibilities towards the society and has also constituted the CSR Committee to ascertain the activities undertaken by the Company in the

Pursuant to requirements of Regulation 16 and Regulation 23 of

the Listing Regulations the Company has adopted the policies for

determining material subsidiaries and on related party

best interest ofthe Society.

The Constitution ofthe Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows:

Name of the Member

 

Position No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended

 

 

    

transactions and the said policies are available on the Company's

Website at www.choiceindia.com

During the year under review, the policy for determining material

subsidiaries was suitably modified to be at par with the recent

amendmentsto the Listing Regulations.

The Minutes ofthe Board meeting of the subsidiary company are

placed at the Board Meeting ofthe Company on periodical basis.

All significant transactions and arrangements entered in to by the

There were no instances during the Financial Year 2018—19

wherein the Board has not accepted recommendations made by

any committee ofthe Board.

Total Fees Paid to the StatutoryAuditors ofthe Company

Total fees of Rs.62,47,076/- was paid by the Company and its

subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and

all entities in the network firm / network entity of which the

statutoryauditorisa partforthe FinancialYear2018-19.
Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal Independent Director Chairman 1 1 Bnlis:ted suibfgdiéry ifany are broughtto the notice ofthe Board of m) Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of women at Work

Mr. Kamal Poddar Managing Director Member 1 1 ire orso e ompany.- _ _ . . Place(Prevention,Prohibition and Redressa|)Act,2013

. . . . . The Policy for determining material subsndiaries has been TheCompanyhasin placean effective mechanismfordealingwith

Mr.AJay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 1 1 uploaded and can be accessed on the Company's website at complaints relatingtosexual harassmentatwork place The details

*Mr. Raghuvir Shrivastava Independent Director Member 1 0 glyen lInk:www.ch0IceIndIa.com relating to the number 0t complaints received and disposed 0t
0 Disclosure °tACC°“"t'n9 Treatment during thefinancialyear2018-19 are as under:

In the preparation 0t the financial statements the Company has a. NumberofComplaintsfiledduringthefinancialyear; Nil
* Note : The Committee Meeting was held on February 13, 2019, Committee is reviewed at least on a quarterly basis by the said followed the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of b. Number of Complaints disposed ofduring the FinancialYear:

duringtheyearunderreview. Committee. the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting policies Nil

Note : Mr. Raghuvir Shrivastava cease to be the member of the The related party transaction policy has been placed and can be W_thh are consistently applied are set °Ut in the N°te5 t0 the c NumberofComplaints pending as on end ofthe FinancialYear:
committee pursuant to his resignation from the Directorship of the accessed on the company'swebsite www.choiceindia.com FmancnalStatements. Nil

Companywith etFectfrom May 30'2018' There are no materiallysignificant Related PartyTransactions ofthe 9) RiskManagement n) Code ofConduct
Terms ofreference ofthe Committee are asfollows: Company which have potential conflict with the interest of the Business Risk Management is an on-going process within the

, . . . C t lar e C Th t . . d’ ll . d b th The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all employees
' Formulating and recommending to the Board, CSR Policy Wh'Ch ompanya a g ' ompany. e assessmen '5 perlo Ica y examine y e including the members of the Board and Senior Management

shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as c) VigilMechanism/Whistle Blower Policy Company. Personnel All members of the Board and Senior Management

specifiedintheScheduleVlloftheAct; Pursuantto Section 177(9)&(10) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 and h) Website Personnel have affirmed Compliance with the said Code of
Making recommendation on the amount of expenditure to be

incurred on CSR activities;

To monitor the implementation of the activities to be undertaken

bythe Company.

I AFFIRMATIONS & DISCLOSURES

Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulation, the Company has

formulated Whistle Blower PolicyforVigil Mechanism of Directors

and Employees to report to the management about Unethical

behaviour, fraud or violation ofthe Company's Code of Conduct.

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and an

effective Vigil Mechanism system to provide a formal mechanism

The Company ensures updating the applicable information under

Regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations on the Company's

website (www.choiceindia.com) . A separate tab on ”Investor

Relations" on the website contains details relating to the financial

results declared by the Company, Shareholding Pattern,

Corporate Governance, and such other News and

0)

Conduct for the Financial Year 201 8-1 9. The declaration from our

Managing Director, Mr. Kamal Poddar affirming the same forms

the partofthis report.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) administers a

centralised web based complaints redress system (SCORES). It
' ' ' ' ' ' ' Announcements made b the Com an to the exchan e under . .a) Compliance Framework to its Directors, Employees and Busmess Assocrates to raise their th t b”N &A y t n P Y 9 enables investors to lodge and follow up complaints and trackthe

The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements °°hcerh5 'h a re$P°h$'ble and etteCt'Ve manner regard'hg e a ews nnouncemen 5' statusofredressalonline onthewebsitewww.scores.gov.in.Italso
underthe Listing Regulations. suspected unethical matters 'hV°lV'h9 $e”°“5 malpractice or i) SecretarialCompliance Report enables the Company to receive the Complaints from Investor

b) Related PartyTransaction wrong dorng w'thm the organisation and also to safeguard against SEBI Vide its circular No. ClR/CFD/CMD 1/27/2019 dated againstthem, redress such complaints and report redressal.Allthe

All transactions entered in to by the company with related parties,

during the financial year 2018-19, were in ordinary course of

business and on arms -|ength basis.The details ofthe Related Party

Transaction are set out in the notes to the Financial Statements

forming partofthisAnnual Report.

The Related PartyTransaction undertaken bythe Companywere in

compliance with the provisions set out in the CompaniesAct, 2013

read with rules issued there under and Regulation 23 (1) of the

Listing Regulations.

The Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2018-19 has

approved Related Party Transactions while granting omnibus

approval in line with the policy of dealing with Related Party

Transactions and the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Rules issues thereunder and the Listing

Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactments thereoffortime being in force, deviations ifanyto the

said process have been brought to the attention of the Audit

Committee.

The related party transactions entered in to by the Company

pursuant to the omnibus approval granted by the Audit

victimization. The Mechanism provides adequate safeguards

against victimization of employees and Directors who use such

mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the chairman

oftheAudit Committee in exceptional cases.

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 26(6) ofthe Listing

Regulations, the Key Managerial Personnel, Director(s) and

Promoter(s) of the Company have affirmed that they have not

entered in to any agreement for themselves or on behalf of any

other person, with any shareholder or any third party with regard

to compensation or profit sharing in connection with dealings in

the securities ofthe Company.

cl) Details of Non-Compliance by the Company, Penalties and

strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or

SEBI or any statutory authority. on any matter related to Capital

Markets during lastthree Financial Year

The Company has complied with all requirements specified under

the Listing Regulations as well as other Regulations and guidelines

of SEBI. Consequently, there were no strictures or penalties

imposed by either SEBI or Stock Exchange or any statutory

authority for non—compliance of any matter related to Capital

Markets during the lastthree FinancialYears.
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February 08, 2019 read with Regulation 24(A) of the Listing

Regulation, direct listed entities to conduct Annual Secretarial

Compliance Audit From a practising Company Secretary of all

applicable SEBI Regulations and Circulars/ guidelines issued

thereunder. The said secretarial Compliance report is in addition

to the Secretarial Audit Report by practising Company Secretaries

under Form MR — 3 and is required to be submitted to the

exchangewithin 60daysoftheend ofthe FinancialYear.

The Company has obtained the certificate from R M Mimani &

Associates LLP (Company Secretaries) Secretarial Auditor of the

Company.

Attached is the Secretarial Compliance Report as Annexure

forming Partofthe Board Report.

Certificate from Practising CompanySecretary

Certificate as required under Part C of Schedule V of Listing

Regulations, received from M/s. R M Mimani & Associates LLP

(Company Secretaries) (Firm Registration No . 12001 MH250300)

that none ofthe Directors on the Board ofthe Company has been

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as

directors ofthe Company bythe Securities and Exchange Board of

P)

activities starting from lodging the complaint till its disposal are

carried online in an automated environment and the status of

every compliant till its disposal are carried online in an automated

environment and the status of every complaint can be viewed

online at any time. The Company has registered itself on Scores

and endeavours to resolve all investor complain received through

scores.

Disclosure on Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging

Activities

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board

Members about the Risk assessment, mitigation Plans and

periodical reviews faced by the Company. Risk based internal

audit plan is approved bytheAudit Committee which also reviews

adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal financial

controls.

The Companydoes not involve in commodity hedging activities.

q) Details of Utilization of Funds raised through Preferential

Allotment or qualified Institution placement as specified under

Regulation32(7A): NA
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r) Means of Communication

Effective Communication of information is an essential

component of Corporate Governance.It is process of sharing

information, ideas, thoughts, opinions and plansto all stake

holders which promote management- shareholders relations.

The Company regularly interacts with its members through

multiple channels of Communications such as results,

announcements, annual reports and the website of the Company

and the stock exchanges.

i)

=

Quarterly Result

The Unaudited quarterly/half yearly financial results are

announcedwithin 45 days of the end of the respective quarter.

The audited annual financial results are announced within 60

days ofthe closeofthe financial year as per the requirementof

the Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The aforesaid

financial results are sent to BSE Limited (BSE) where the shares

of the company are listed. These results are thereafter

published within 48 hours in one English Newspaper (Financial

Express) & one local newspaper(Navshakti/ Aplamahanagr)as

wellas placed onthe website ofthe Company.

Website

In Compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, a

separate dedicated section under “Investors Relation” on the

Company's website gives information on various

announcements made by the Company,status of unclaimed

dividend, Annual Report, Quarterly / Half Yearly/ Nine Months

and Annual Financial results along with the applicable policies

of the Company at www.choiceindia.com

 

Corporate Goverance

iii) Stock Exchange

The Company makes timely disclosures of necessary

information to BSE Limited in termsof Listing Regulations and

other rules & regulations issued by the SEBI

iv) BSE Listing Centre

< a

 

The Financial Results, Shareholding Pattern and Quarterly

report on Corporate Governance and otherfilings required to

be madeto the stock exchangesare electronically filed at BSE

portal i.e.listing.bseindia.com. pursuant to Regulation 10(1) of

the SEBI (LODR Regulations) BSE has mandated the Listing

Centre as the “Electronic Platform”for filing all mandatory and

any otherinformation to befiled with the Stock Exchanges by

Listed Entities. BSE also mandated XBRL submissions for

Shareholding Pattern & Corporate Governance.All the data

relating to financial results, various submissions/ disclosure

documents etc., have been electronically filed and

Shareholding pattern & corporate governance Report have

beenfiled in XBRL mode with the Exchange onthe “Listing

Centre”(http://listing.bseindia.com

Price Sensitive Information

All price sensitive information and such other matters which in

the opinion of the Company are of importance to the

Shareholders/ investors are promptly intimated to the Stock

Exchanges. Material developments relating to the company are

potentially price sensitive in nature or which could impact

continuity of publicly available information regarding the

Companyare disclosed to the Stock Exchangesin terms of the

Company's policy for determination of Materiality of Events/

Information.

  
Corporate Goverance

s) The Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2)

Sr.

No

1

10

11

12 

Particulars

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Stakeholder Relationship
Committee

Risk Management Committee

Vigil Mechanism

Related Party Transaction

Subsidiaries of the Company

Obligations with respect to
IndependentDirectors

Obligation with respect to
Directors and senior management

Other Corporate Governance
Requirements

Disclosures on Website of the
Company

LXYe TUL elated aly Brief Description

of the Regulation

Composition of Board
Meeting of Board of Directors
Review of Compliance Report
Plansfor orderly succession for appointments
Code of Conduct
Fees/ Compensation
Minimum information to be placed before the Board
Compliance Certificate
Risk Assessment & Management
Performance Evaluation

Composition of Audit Committee & Presence of the
Chairman of the Committee at the Annual General Meeting
Meeting of Audit Committee
Role of the Committee and review of information
by the committee

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Presence of Audit Committee chairman at the
Annual General Meeting
Role of the Committee

Composition of stake holderrelationship committee

Composition of Risk Management Committee

Role of the Committee

Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Directors
and Employees

Policy for Related Party Transaction

Omnibus approval by the Audit Committee
& review oftransaction
Approval of material related party transaction

Composition of Board of Director of material
unlisted subsidiary
Other requirements as stipulated underthe regulations
Maximum Directorship & Tenure

Meeting of IndependentDirectors
Review of Performance of Independent Director
Familiarisation of IndependentDirector

Membership & Chairman of the Committee

Compliance to code of conduct for Board of Directors
and Senior Management employees
Disclosure of Shareholding Pattern by Non - Executive
Director
Disclosure on Conflict of Interest by senior management

Compliance of Discretionary requirements

Terms and conditions of appointmentof Independent
Director
Composition of various committee of Board of Directors
Code of conduct of Board of Directors and senior
managementpersonnel
Details of establishmentof vigil mechanism
Criteria for making payment to Non- Executive Directors
Policy on dealing with related party transaction
Policy for determining Material subsidiaries
Details of familiarisation programmesimparted to
independentDirectors

Compliance

TELAT

 

Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied
Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
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r) Means of Communication

Effective Communication of information is an essential

component of Corporate Governance.It is process of sharing

information, ideas, thoughts, opinions and plansto all stake

holders which promote management- shareholders relations.

The Company regularly interacts with its members through

multiple channels of Communications such as results,

announcements, annual reports and the website of the Company

and the stock exchanges.

i)

=

Quarterly Result

The Unaudited quarterly/half yearly financial results are

announcedwithin 45 days of the end of the respective quarter.

The audited annual financial results are announced within 60

days ofthe closeofthe financial year as per the requirementof

the Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The aforesaid

financial results are sent to BSE Limited (BSE) where the shares

of the company are listed. These results are thereafter

published within 48 hours in one English Newspaper (Financial

Express) & one local newspaper(Navshakti/ Aplamahanagr)as

wellas placed onthe website ofthe Company.

Website

In Compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, a

separate dedicated section under “Investors Relation” on the

Company's website gives information on various

announcements made by the Company,status of unclaimed

dividend, Annual Report, Quarterly / Half Yearly/ Nine Months

and Annual Financial results along with the applicable policies

of the Company at www.choiceindia.com

 

Corporate Goverance

iii) Stock Exchange

The Company makes timely disclosures of necessary

information to BSE Limited in termsof Listing Regulations and

other rules & regulations issued by the SEBI

iv) BSE Listing Centre

< a

 

The Financial Results, Shareholding Pattern and Quarterly

report on Corporate Governance and otherfilings required to

be madeto the stock exchangesare electronically filed at BSE

portal i.e.listing.bseindia.com. pursuant to Regulation 10(1) of

the SEBI (LODR Regulations) BSE has mandated the Listing

Centre as the “Electronic Platform”for filing all mandatory and

any otherinformation to befiled with the Stock Exchanges by

Listed Entities. BSE also mandated XBRL submissions for

Shareholding Pattern & Corporate Governance.All the data

relating to financial results, various submissions/ disclosure

documents etc., have been electronically filed and

Shareholding pattern & corporate governance Report have

beenfiled in XBRL mode with the Exchange onthe “Listing

Centre”(http://listing.bseindia.com

Price Sensitive Information

All price sensitive information and such other matters which in

the opinion of the Company are of importance to the

Shareholders/ investors are promptly intimated to the Stock

Exchanges. Material developments relating to the company are

potentially price sensitive in nature or which could impact

continuity of publicly available information regarding the

Companyare disclosed to the Stock Exchangesin terms of the

Company's policy for determination of Materiality of Events/

Information.

  
Corporate Goverance

s) The Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2)

Sr.

No

1

10

11

12 

Particulars

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Stakeholder Relationship
Committee

Risk Management Committee

Vigil Mechanism

Related Party Transaction

Subsidiaries of the Company

Obligations with respect to
IndependentDirectors

Obligation with respect to
Directors and senior management

Other Corporate Governance
Requirements

Disclosures on Website of the
Company

LXYe TUL elated aly Brief Description

of the Regulation

Composition of Board
Meeting of Board of Directors
Review of Compliance Report
Plansfor orderly succession for appointments
Code of Conduct
Fees/ Compensation
Minimum information to be placed before the Board
Compliance Certificate
Risk Assessment & Management
Performance Evaluation

Composition of Audit Committee & Presence of the
Chairman of the Committee at the Annual General Meeting
Meeting of Audit Committee
Role of the Committee and review of information
by the committee

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Presence of Audit Committee chairman at the
Annual General Meeting
Role of the Committee

Composition of stake holderrelationship committee

Composition of Risk Management Committee

Role of the Committee

Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Directors
and Employees

Policy for Related Party Transaction

Omnibus approval by the Audit Committee
& review oftransaction
Approval of material related party transaction

Composition of Board of Director of material
unlisted subsidiary
Other requirements as stipulated underthe regulations
Maximum Directorship & Tenure

Meeting of IndependentDirectors
Review of Performance of Independent Director
Familiarisation of IndependentDirector

Membership & Chairman of the Committee

Compliance to code of conduct for Board of Directors
and Senior Management employees
Disclosure of Shareholding Pattern by Non - Executive
Director
Disclosure on Conflict of Interest by senior management

Compliance of Discretionary requirements

Terms and conditions of appointmentof Independent
Director
Composition of various committee of Board of Directors
Code of conduct of Board of Directors and senior
managementpersonnel
Details of establishmentof vigil mechanism
Criteria for making payment to Non- Executive Directors
Policy on dealing with related party transaction
Policy for determining Material subsidiaries
Details of familiarisation programmesimparted to
independentDirectors

Compliance

TELAT

 

Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied
Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied

 

 

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT2019 | 73 CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2019| 74

 



t) Details of Compliance with Non- Mandatory requirements:

 

Corporate Goverance  °@:)
 

i) During the year under review,there is no audit qualification on the Company's financial statements. The Company continues to adopt the

best practises to safeguard the practice of Unmodified audit opinion.

ii) The Internal Auditor has a direct access to the Audit Committee, he participates in the Audit Committee Meetings and presentshis reports

with the observations to the Audit Committee.

GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i) Company Registration Details:

The Companyis registered in the state of Maharashtra, India, underthe jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN No): L67190MH1993PLC071117

ii) Financial YearApril 1,2018 to March 31,2019

iii) 25th Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2018-19

 

Day and Date

Time

Venue

Financial Year

Book Closure Dates

Last Date of Receipt of Proxy Forms

Friday, September 27,2019

12.30 PM

Hotel Kohinoor Continental, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400059

2018-19

September21,2019 to September 27,2019

September 25,2019
 

iv) Listing Details

 

Stock Exchange on whichSharesare Listed BSE Limited (Bombay Stock Exchange)
 

 

 

Stock Code 531358

Scriptld CHOICEIN

ISIN INE102B01014  
Vv — Dividend History

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
ELEN Cy-1e Type of Dividend Date of Declaration PeleeeRemat

Face Value of Rs. 10 each

2011-12 Final September28, 2012 10%

2012-13 Final September 16,2013 10%

2013-14 Final September 27,2014 10%

2014-15 Final September 26,2015 10%

2015-16 Final September 20,2016 10%

2016-17 Dividend Not Declared

2017-18 Dividend Not Declared

2018-19 Dividend Not Declared

vi) UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act,

2013 (the Act) read with the Investor Education and Protection

Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,

2016 (hereinafter called “the IEPF Rules”), the amountof dividend

which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years

from the date of transfer of such amountto the Unpaid Dividend

Account opened in pursuance of sub-section (1) of the said

Sectionis required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund (IEPF) established under sub-section (1) of

Section 125 of the Act.

Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend in respect of the financial

year 2011-12 is due for transfer to the IEPF in October 2019.

Members, who have not yet claimed their dividend for the

financial year 2011-12 or for any subsequentfinancial years, are

requested to claim the same from the Company. Additionally,

pursuantto sub-section (6) of Section 125 of the Act read with the

IEPF Rules, all shares in respect of which dividend has not been

claimed for the past seven consecutive years shall be transferred

by the Companyin the nameof IEPF Authority by wayof credit to
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the Demat Accountestablished by the IEPF Authority on or before

October 30, 2019 or such other date as may be specified by the

Central Governmentin this regard.

Any member whosesharesare thustransferred to IEPF may claim

his/her/its shares under proviso to Section 124(6) of the Act by

following the process given underRule 7 of the IEPF Rules. In terms

of the relevant IEPF Rules, the Company has uploaded the

information in respect of the Unclaimed Dividends (Final

Dividend) for the financial years from 2011-12 to 2015-16 as onthe

date of the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on

September 20, 2016, on the website of the Pursuant to the

provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, the Companyhas

transferred an amount of Rs. 1,02,671/-( Rupees One Lakh two

 

 

thousand six hundred & seventy one only) , being the unclaimed

dividend for the financial year 2010-11 tolEPFin 2018.

During the year underreview, the Companyhad sentindividual

notices seeking action from shareholder, who has not claimed

Dividend & whoseshares have been transferred to IEPF.

Shareholders may note that both the unclaimed dividend and

corresponding shares transferred to IEPF can be claimed from

IEPF following the procedures prescribed in the IEPF Rules.

Shareholders whose unclaimed Dividend and Shares have been

transferred to IEPF can claim the samefrom IEPF byfiling Form

IEPF 5 with the IEPF authorities.

Given below are the dates of declaration of dividend and

correspondinglast datesfor clamming unpaid Dividend.

 

Financial Year Typeof Dividend

 

Date of Declaration of

Dividend

Last date for calming

unclaimed Dividend

 

 

 

  
2011-12 Final September 28, 2012 October 05,2019

2012-13 Final September 16,2013 September 23, 2020

2013-14 Final September 27,2014 October 3, 2021

2014-15 Final September26, 2015 October 1,2022

2015-16 Final September 20,2016 October 1,2023   
vii) Details of General Body Meetingsof Last three years

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Financial Year Date aaa Venue Special Resolutionsif any

2015-16 September20,2016 11.30A.M. AnchorageHall, Hotel

Subalnternational, 211, Chakala =

Sahar Road, Andheri East),
Mumbai 400099

2016-17 September 18,2017 12.00 PM. AnchorageHall, Hotel

Subalnternational,211,Chakala =

Sahar Road, Andheri East),
Mumbai 400099

2017-18 September 27,2018 11.00 AM. Hotel Radisson ,X-22,MIDC,

Central Park, Hanuman Nagar, =

Andheri( East), Mumbai - 400093

Month Choice Choice Low ClosePrice BSE Sensex BSE Sensex BSE Sensex

High (BSE) (BSE) (BSE) High Low Close

April, 2018 160.00 126.40 144.80 35,213.30 32,972.56 35,160.36

May, 2018 153.30 116.05 117.80 35,993.53 34,302.89 35,322.38

June, 2018 131.50 102.90 125.35 35,877.41 34,784.68 35,423.48

July, 2018 128.50 103.00 114.85 37,644.59 35,106.57 37,606.58

August, 2018 137.00 113.00 119.35 38,989.65 37,128.99 38,645.07

September, 2018 123.90 93.40 97.05 38,934.35 35,985.63 36,227.14

October, 2018 108.00 74.00 90.00 36,616.64 33,291.58 34,442.05

November, 2018 108.05 72.00 89.90 36,389.22 34,303.38 36,194.30

December, 2018 91.60 80.00 84.30 36,554.99 34,426.29 36,068.33

January, 2019 87.60 71.90 71.90 36,701.03 35,375.51 36,256.69

February, 2019 73.55 65.00 66.35 37,172.18 35,287.16 35,867.44

March, 2019 75.00 65.00 69.7 38,748.54 35,926.94 38,672.91   
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t) Details of Compliance with Non- Mandatory requirements:

 

Corporate Goverance  °@:)
 

i) During the year under review,there is no audit qualification on the Company's financial statements. The Company continues to adopt the

best practises to safeguard the practice of Unmodified audit opinion.

ii) The Internal Auditor has a direct access to the Audit Committee, he participates in the Audit Committee Meetings and presentshis reports

with the observations to the Audit Committee.

GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i) Company Registration Details:

The Companyis registered in the state of Maharashtra, India, underthe jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN No): L67190MH1993PLC071117

ii) Financial YearApril 1,2018 to March 31,2019

iii) 25th Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2018-19

 

Day and Date

Time

Venue

Financial Year

Book Closure Dates

Last Date of Receipt of Proxy Forms

Friday, September 27,2019

12.30 PM

Hotel Kohinoor Continental, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400059

2018-19

September21,2019 to September 27,2019

September 25,2019
 

iv) Listing Details

 

Stock Exchange on whichSharesare Listed BSE Limited (Bombay Stock Exchange)
 

 

 

Stock Code 531358

Scriptld CHOICEIN

ISIN INE102B01014  
Vv — Dividend History

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
ELEN Cy-1e Type of Dividend Date of Declaration PeleeeRemat

Face Value of Rs. 10 each

2011-12 Final September28, 2012 10%

2012-13 Final September 16,2013 10%

2013-14 Final September 27,2014 10%

2014-15 Final September 26,2015 10%

2015-16 Final September 20,2016 10%

2016-17 Dividend Not Declared

2017-18 Dividend Not Declared

2018-19 Dividend Not Declared

vi) UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act,

2013 (the Act) read with the Investor Education and Protection

Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,

2016 (hereinafter called “the IEPF Rules”), the amountof dividend

which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years

from the date of transfer of such amountto the Unpaid Dividend

Account opened in pursuance of sub-section (1) of the said

Sectionis required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund (IEPF) established under sub-section (1) of

Section 125 of the Act.

Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend in respect of the financial

year 2011-12 is due for transfer to the IEPF in October 2019.

Members, who have not yet claimed their dividend for the

financial year 2011-12 or for any subsequentfinancial years, are

requested to claim the same from the Company. Additionally,

pursuantto sub-section (6) of Section 125 of the Act read with the

IEPF Rules, all shares in respect of which dividend has not been

claimed for the past seven consecutive years shall be transferred

by the Companyin the nameof IEPF Authority by wayof credit to
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the Demat Accountestablished by the IEPF Authority on or before

October 30, 2019 or such other date as may be specified by the

Central Governmentin this regard.

Any member whosesharesare thustransferred to IEPF may claim

his/her/its shares under proviso to Section 124(6) of the Act by

following the process given underRule 7 of the IEPF Rules. In terms

of the relevant IEPF Rules, the Company has uploaded the

information in respect of the Unclaimed Dividends (Final

Dividend) for the financial years from 2011-12 to 2015-16 as onthe

date of the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on

September 20, 2016, on the website of the Pursuant to the

provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, the Companyhas

transferred an amount of Rs. 1,02,671/-( Rupees One Lakh two

 

 

thousand six hundred & seventy one only) , being the unclaimed

dividend for the financial year 2010-11 tolEPFin 2018.

During the year underreview, the Companyhad sentindividual

notices seeking action from shareholder, who has not claimed

Dividend & whoseshares have been transferred to IEPF.

Shareholders may note that both the unclaimed dividend and

corresponding shares transferred to IEPF can be claimed from

IEPF following the procedures prescribed in the IEPF Rules.

Shareholders whose unclaimed Dividend and Shares have been

transferred to IEPF can claim the samefrom IEPF byfiling Form

IEPF 5 with the IEPF authorities.

Given below are the dates of declaration of dividend and

correspondinglast datesfor clamming unpaid Dividend.

 

Financial Year Typeof Dividend

 

Date of Declaration of

Dividend

Last date for calming

unclaimed Dividend

 

 

 

  
2011-12 Final September 28, 2012 October 05,2019

2012-13 Final September 16,2013 September 23, 2020

2013-14 Final September 27,2014 October 3, 2021

2014-15 Final September26, 2015 October 1,2022

2015-16 Final September 20,2016 October 1,2023   
vii) Details of General Body Meetingsof Last three years

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Financial Year Date aaa Venue Special Resolutionsif any

2015-16 September20,2016 11.30A.M. AnchorageHall, Hotel

Subalnternational, 211, Chakala =

Sahar Road, Andheri East),
Mumbai 400099

2016-17 September 18,2017 12.00 PM. AnchorageHall, Hotel

Subalnternational,211,Chakala =

Sahar Road, Andheri East),
Mumbai 400099

2017-18 September 27,2018 11.00 AM. Hotel Radisson ,X-22,MIDC,

Central Park, Hanuman Nagar, =

Andheri( East), Mumbai - 400093

Month Choice Choice Low ClosePrice BSE Sensex BSE Sensex BSE Sensex

High (BSE) (BSE) (BSE) High Low Close

April, 2018 160.00 126.40 144.80 35,213.30 32,972.56 35,160.36

May, 2018 153.30 116.05 117.80 35,993.53 34,302.89 35,322.38

June, 2018 131.50 102.90 125.35 35,877.41 34,784.68 35,423.48

July, 2018 128.50 103.00 114.85 37,644.59 35,106.57 37,606.58

August, 2018 137.00 113.00 119.35 38,989.65 37,128.99 38,645.07

September, 2018 123.90 93.40 97.05 38,934.35 35,985.63 36,227.14

October, 2018 108.00 74.00 90.00 36,616.64 33,291.58 34,442.05

November, 2018 108.05 72.00 89.90 36,389.22 34,303.38 36,194.30

December, 2018 91.60 80.00 84.30 36,554.99 34,426.29 36,068.33

January, 2019 87.60 71.90 71.90 36,701.03 35,375.51 36,256.69

February, 2019 73.55 65.00 66.35 37,172.18 35,287.16 35,867.44

March, 2019 75.00 65.00 69.7 38,748.54 35,926.94 38,672.91   
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Comparison Chart XI) Categories of Shareholder as on March 31,2019

162 > - §9:.006.05 No Category of Shareholder Total No. of Shares % of Total Shares

(A) Shareholding of Promoter & Promoter Group

iso 4 - saoc0.0n a Individuals 14300011 71.48
: Bodies Corporate 386527 1.94

196 - Total Promoter Shareholding (A) 1,46,86,538 73.42

r 37DGS (B) Public Shareholding

ino J a Institutions

—— - 360%00 |. Mutual Funds/UTI - -

; . ii. Financial Institution/ Banks = -

ao - Choi iii. Foreign Portfolio Investor - -
——— 1

Z =. iv. Insurance Companies - -35,006.06 p
éo - RSE Sansex v. Foreign Financial Institution - -

vi. Foreign Mutual Fund - -

45 - r 34,000.08 Sub Total (Ba) -

b Non Institution

35 - + 23006.00 i. Bodies Corporate 2862730 14.31

ii.a Individual Shareholder nominal Share Capital up to Rs. 1 Lakh 1214010 6.06

ii.b Individual Shareholder nominal Share Capital in excess of Rs. 1 Lakh 1181684 5.90
23 oooS

o 32,000.08 xx NRI 57219 0.30
By, Oh, thir 7 “epa, Coxa 8 Wo Fes dy, Clearing Members 2619 0.01

$0, dp * 8» M35 <Os * dey. By Oy? thiy Oy aR ey Sub Total ( Bb)
@ Mig “ae SP ONG UNG NP Mg “Sa 59 DH Total Public Shareholding (B)( Ba + Bb+Bc+Bd)

IX) Registrar & Share TransferAgent XIl) TopTen Shareholders as on March 31,2019 other than Promoter& Promoter Group

 M/s. Sharex Dynamics(India) Private Limited

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Unit-1, Luthra Industrial Premises, Andheri Kurla Road, Safed Pool, Sr.No EcomUCRUEcureele NEUEaaCle) % of Holding

Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400072 1 M/s. Azura Projects Private Limited 1285026 6.42

Tel No: 0222 8515606/44 2 M/s. Florence Securities Private Limited 785684 3.92

Website: www.sharexindia.com 3 M/s. Chartered Capital ResearchPrivate Limited 414212 2.07

4 M/s. Fashion Brands(India) Private Limited 152000 0.75

X) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31,2019: 5 M/s. Smeaton DevelopersPrivate Limited 150000 0.74

6 Mr. Vivek Bhimsaria 120000 0.59

No. of Equity No. of Shareholder VraCLe ENMolf Share Amount ValeKolj 7 Ms.Kirodi Mal Modi 78000 0.48

SY ar e239 Shareholders (In Rs.) Share Capital 8 Ms.Sunita Modi 93000 0.46

9 Mr. Bhageria Basant Matdin 55871 0.27

1 to 5000 1614 75.24 2375800 1.18 10 M/s. Govind Patodia HUF 55046 0.27
5001 to 10000 214 10.00 1749310 0.88 XIII) Address of Correspondence

10001 to 20000 114 5.31 1770900 0.89

20001 to 30000 48 2.23 1192980 0.59 Compliance Officer R&TAgent: Correspondence with the

Sharex Dynamics(India) Private Limited Company
30001 to 40000 25 1.16 910750 0.45

Ms. Karishma Shah

40001 to 50000 30 139 1404110 0.71 CompanySecretary & Compliance Officer Unit-1, Luthra Industrial Premises, Choice House,

50001 to 100000 42 1.96 3354800 1.67 Choice House, Andheri Kurla Road, Safed Pool, Shree Shakambhari Corporate

Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park, Andheri(East), Mumbai - 400072. Park, Plot No- 156-158,

eee oe au ee AE Plot No- 156-158, Andheri(East), Tel No:0228515606/44 Andheri(East),

Email Id: karishma.shah@choiceindia.com Emailld:info@choiceindia.com      
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XIV)

XV)

  
Corporate Goverance

Dematerialisation of Shares

Ason March 31,2018 total dematerialised Equity Shares of the Company amountsto 99.93% of the Company's Capital (CDSL: 95.39% &

NSDL 4.24% ). The Company has entered in to an Agreement with Central Depository (India) Limited ( CDSL) & National Securities

Depository Limited( NSDL) where by the Shareholders have an option to dematerialise their shares with either of the depositories.

Share Transfer System

Sharex Dynamics(India) Private Limited is the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA)for carrying out sharerelatedactivities

like transfer of Shares, transmission of shares, transposition of shares, namedeletion, change of address, amongstothers.

The Board of Directors of the Companyhave delegated the authority to approvethe transfer of Shares, transmission of shares, requests

for deletion of name of the shareholdersetc. to the designatedofficials of the Company. Howeverthe transactionsin respect of issuance

of duplicate share certificates, split, rematerialisation, consolidation and renewal of Share Certificates are approved by the Stakeholder

Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Allthe documentsreceived from the shareholders are scrutinized by the Company RTA. The Shares lodgedfortransfer, etc are processed

and Share Certificates duly endorsed are returned within the stipulated time subject to documents being valid and complete in all

respects.

In all cases of transfer of shares in physical modean intimation letter is being sent to the transferor (s) informing them of the lodgementof

Transfer and in case of any objectionsto said transfer to revert within fifteen days with copy to transferee(s).

Asummary of approvedtransfers, transmission, deletion requests, etc. are placed before the Board of Directors from timeto time as per

the Listing Regulations.

Onbehalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

(ManagingDirector) (Director)

DIN No: 01518700 DIN No: 03051841

Mumbai

Date: August30, 2019

Onbehalf of the Board of Directors

Corporate Goverance

 

 

CEO/ CFO Certification

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director( CEO) and Chief Financial

Officer of Choice International Limited (" the Company”) to the best of our knowledge and behalf certify

that:

a). Wehave reviewedfinancial statement and the Cash Flow statementfor the year ended March 31,

2019 and thatto the best of our knowledge and belief, westate that:

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or

contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in

Compliancewith existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) Wefurtherstate that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction enteredin to by the

Company during the year, which are fraudulent,illegal or violation of the Company's Code of

Conduct.

c) Weare responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and

that we have evaluatedthe effectivenessof Internal Control systems of the Companypertaining to

financial reporting of the Company and havedisclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,

deficiencies in the design or operation ofinternal controls,if any, of which we are aware and the

steps we havetakenor proposeto taketo rectify these deficiencies.

d) We haveindicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

i) Significant Changes,if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii) Significant Changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and the same have been

disclosed in the notesto financial statements; and

iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have becomeawareandthe involvementtherein,if any,

of the managementor an employee having a significant role in the Company's Internal Control

systemsover financial reporting.

For Choice International Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

(Kamal Poddar) (Manoj Singhanaia)

ManagingDirector Chief Financial Officer

DIN No.: 01518700

Mumbai

Date: May 29,2019

\

 
fo
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4 \
Auditor's Certificate Regarding Compliance Of Conditions Of Corporate Governace

To the Members of Choice International Limited,

Wehave examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Choice International Limited, for the

year ended March 31, 2017 as stipulated in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,22,23,24,25,26,27 and clauses(b) to(i) of

sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange BoardofIndia (

Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulations, 2015 ( Collectively referred to as “ SEBI Listing

Regulations, 2015).

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governanceis the responsibility of the Company's Management. Our

examination wascarried out in accordancewith the guidance Note on certification of Corporate Governance,issued

by the institute of Chartered Accountant of India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof,

adopted by the Companyfor ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an

audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,Wecertify that the

Companyhas complied with the conditions of Corporate Governanceasstipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations,

2015.

Westate that such complianceis neither an assuranceasto the futureviability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the managementhas conductedthe affairs of the Company.

ForR M Mimani &Associates LLP

CompanySecretaries

Sd/-

Manoj Mimani

Partner

ACS No. 17083

CP No: 11601

Mumbai

Date: August 30, 2019  
\ 4
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Standalone Audit Report

TO THE MEMBERSOF CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

OPINION

Wehave audited the accompanying standalonefinancial statements
of Choice International Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statementof Profit and

Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair

view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended(“Accounting Standards”) and

other accounting principles generally acceptedin India, of the state
ofaffairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, andits profit and its
cash flowsfor the year ended on thatdate.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in
accordancewith the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards

are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountantsof India (ICAI)

togetherwith the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and wehavefulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion onthe standalone financial statements.

KEYAUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. We have determined that
there are no key audit matters to communicatein our report.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTSANDAUDITOR'S REPORTTHEREON

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Board Report, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The Board Report is expected to be made
available to us after the dateofthis auditor's report.

Q Our opinion on the standalonefinancial statements does not
coverthe other information and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Q In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whetherthe other informationis

materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Q When weread the Board Report,if we concludethat thereis a

material misstatement therein, we are required to

communicate the matter to those charged with governance
as required under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities
Relating to Other Information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
STANDALONEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) ofthe Actwith respect to the preparation

of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance,cash flows of the

Companyin accordance with the Accounting Standards and other
accounting principles generally acceptedin India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisionsofthe Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Companyandfor preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statementthat give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, managementis
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managementeitherintendsto liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE STANDALONEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe
standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whetherdueto fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

reportthat includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordancewith SAswill always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expectedto influence the economic decisionsof users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

Aspart of an audit in accordancewith SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higherthan for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the overrideof internal control.

OQ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
suchcontrols.

oO Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

Oo Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whethera material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt
onthe Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
concludethat a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based onthe audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Companyto ceaseto continue as a

going concern.

Oo Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contentofthe

standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the standalonefinancial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalonefinancial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatementsin the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governancewith a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with themall relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we
reportthat:

a) We have sought and obtainedall the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Companyso faras it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statementof Profit and Loss, the Cash

Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalonefinancial statements

comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-

Shrenik Baid

Partner

(Membership No. 103884)

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 29, 2019

2.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors ason March 31,2019 taken on record by the Board

of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March

31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacyofthe internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Companyto its
directors during the year is in accordancewith the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

ko
d

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amendedin

our opinion and to the bestof our information and according
to the explanationsgivento us:

i. The Companyhasdisclosed the impact of pending litigations
onits financial position in its standalone financial statements.

ii. The Companydid not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delayin transferring amounts, required to
be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

bythe Company.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
("the Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of

Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement

onthe matters specified in paragraphs3 and 4 of the Order.
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ANNEXURE“A”TOTHE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date to the membersofChoice International Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Choice International Limited (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Companyforthe year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL
FINANCIALCONTROLS

The Company's managementis responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based onthe internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued bythe Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct ofits business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detectionoffrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required underthe Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply withethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequateinternal financial controls overfinancial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Ouraudit involves performing proceduresto obtain audit evidence
about the adequacyof the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls overfinancial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based onthe assessedrisk. The proceduresselected
depend onthe auditor's judgement, including the assessmentof the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
dueto fraud or error.

Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtainedis sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company'sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

OVERFINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
proceduresthat (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of managementanddirectors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Becauseof the inherentlimitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
managementoverride of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subjectto therisk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures maydeteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion,to the best of our information, the Companyhas,in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and suchinternal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on
the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Companyconsidering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-

Shrenik Baid

Partner

(Membership No. 103884)

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 29,2019

ANNEXUREB TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (2) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date to the members of Choice International Limited for the year ended March 31, 2019)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showingfull
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program ofverification of fixed assets
once in three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable

having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. According to the information and explanation
givento us, the fixed assets have been physically verified
during the year.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined by us and based on the

examination of the registered conveyance deeds provided
to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising the

immovable property of land and building, whichis freehold,
is held in the name of the Companyasat the balance sheet
date.

(ii) The Company doesnot have any inventory and hencereporting
underclause(ii) of the Orderis not applicable.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies coveredin the register maintained underSection 189
of the CompaniesAct, 2013,in respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loansare, in

our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

(b) The schedule of repaymentof principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and repaymentsorreceipts of
principal amounts and interest have been regular as per
stipulations.

(c) There is no amount overdue for more than 90 days at the

balance sheetdate.

(iv) The Companyis a registered Non-Banking Finance Companyto
which provisions of Section 185 and Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. During the yearin
August 2018, the Company has surrendered the NBFC license
and awaits RBI approval for confirmation of the cancellation of
such license. Hence reporting under clause(iv) of the Orderis
notapplicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations givento us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit during the year as
provided under Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisionsof clause (v) of the Orderare not applicable. There are
no unclaimed deposits with the Company any time during the

Nameof Statute Nature of
Dues disputeis

pending Relates CCS)
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year.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the
Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies

Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues of Provident Fund, Income-tax,

Service Tax. The Company has been regular in depositing
Employees’ State Insurance, Goods and Service Tax, cess and

other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,

Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material

statutory duesin arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of
morethansix monthsfrom the date they becamepayable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Service Tax, and Goods and

Service Tax as on March 31, 2019 on account of disputes.

Details of disputed Income-tax amount paid underprotestis
given below:

Forum where Period to which Amount
the Amount Involved

 

 

 

IncomeTax Act, 1961 Income tax demand CIT (Appeals) AY.2011-12 1,934,494 557,224

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax demand CIT (Appeals) AN.2012-13 4,092 4,092

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax demand CIT (Appeals) AY.2014-15 555,870 555,870
 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions,
banks and dues to debenture holders. Further, the Company
does not have any loans or borrowings from government.

(ix) |The Companyhas not raised moneysby wayofinitial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or
term loans and hence reporting underclause (ix) of the Order
isnotapplicable.

(x) Tothe best of our knowledge and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no
material fraud on the Companybyits officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has paid managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandatedbythe provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
Vto the CompaniesAct, 2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hencereporting
under clause(xii) of the Orderis not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us the Companyis in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where

applicable,for all transactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not madeany preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hencereporting underclause (xiv)
of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations givento us, during the year the Companyhas not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or
persons connected with them and henceprovisionsof Section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Companyis required to be registered underSection 45-IA
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the

registration. During the year in August 2018, the Company has
surrendered the NBFC license and awaits RBI approval for
confirmation of the cancellation of such license. Refer Note 30
to the StandaloneFinancial Statements.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-

Shrenik Baid

Partner

(Membership No. 103884)

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 29, 2019
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED
BALANCE SHEET

Particulars

| Equity & Liabilities

Note
No.

 

Standalone Financials
 

As at March 31, 2019

(Amountin &)

As at March 31, 2018

 

 
1. Shareholders’ funds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(a) Share Capital 2 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000

(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 1,18,70,22,415 1,17,09,58,033

1,38,70,70,415 1,37,10,06,033

2. Non - Current Liabilities

(a) Long -Term Borrowings 4 - -

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 2,58,23,000 2,55,22,000

(c) Long - Term Provisions 6 6,27,040 8,63,675

2,64,50,040 2,63,85,675

3. Current Liabilities

(a) Short - Term Borrowings 7 90,36,552 1,06,24,20,574

(b) Trade Payables 8

(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 41,363 75,422

(ii) Others 53,38,133 61,99,851

(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 39,19,335 7,80,76,871

(d) Short - Term Provisions 10 1,13,138 58,80,062

1,84,48,521 1,15,26,52,780

1,43,19,68,976 2,55,00,44,487

TOTAL

ll Assets

1. Non - Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 11

(i) Tangible assets 64,33,43,688 65,04,89,903

(ii) Intangible assets 17,01,868 22,54,462

(iii) Intangible assets under development 8,94,799 12,80,999

64,59,40,355 65,40,25,364

(b) Non - Current Investments 12 68,96,20,791 94,77,58,696

(c) Long - Term Loans and Advances 13 1,70,17,777 1,54,91,238

1,35,25,78,923 1,61,72,75,297

2. Current Assets

(a) Trade Receivables 14 1,39,01,651 1,78,91,773

(b) Cash and Bank Balances 15 6,05,22,756 40,83,111

(c) Short - Term Loans and Advances 16 42,89,646 91,06,09,439

(d) Other Current Assets 17 6,76,000 1,84,867
 

7,93,90,053 93,27,69,190 
TOTAL 1,43,19,68,976 2,55,00,44,487

 

Notes 1 to 33 formspart of Standalone Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

 

F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018

FINANCIALS os xKamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director

201 9 (DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)

Sd/-
Shrenik Baid Sd/- Sd/-
Partner Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah

Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai: 29th May, 2019

Mem.No. :103884
Mumbai: 29th May, 2019

CompanySecretary
Mumbai: 29th May, 2019
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

egeVaeColU LET 6 For the year ended Forthe year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(Amountin &)

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STATEMENTOF PROFIT AND LOSS (Amountin @)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended A. Cashflow from Operating Activities

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Netprofit before tax 1,79,61,533 3,00,87,722

| Revenue from Operations 18 12,77,05,066 22,64,02,803 Adjustmentsfor:
Il Other Income 19 19,99,183 18,43,918 Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 77,79,770 78,27,608

II Total Revenue(I + Il) 12,97,04,249 22,82,46,721 Finance costs egeenlihoile 9,88,59,119
Provision for Gratuity (1,87,369) (1,39,765)

IV Expenses Provision on standard loan assets (22,50,000) 13,12,196

Changein Inventories 20 - 16,65,555 Credit balances written back (13,48,003) -

Employee Benefits Expense 21 1,18,21,664 3,00,18,668 Profit on sale of Investments {46,95,385) (3,176,154)
Depreciation 11 77,79,770 78.27 608 Profit on sale of fixed assets (20,650)

— Operating profit before Working Capital changes 7,36,20,214 13,76,30,726
Finance Costs 22 5,63,80,318 9,88,59,119 Chanaesin Working Capital

Other Expense 23 3,57,60,964 5,97,88,048 (Increase) in Trade Receivables 39,90,122 (80,08,091)
Total Expense 11,17,42,716 19,81,58,998 (Increase) in Loans & advances and other assets (Non Current & Current) 90,67,83,104 (53,15,09,270)

Decrease /(Increase) in Inventories - 16,65,555

V_ Profit Before Tax(III-IV) 1,79,61,533 3,00,87,722 Decrease /(Increase)in Trade Payables 4,52,226 8,81,884

Decrease in Otherliabilities & provisions (Non Current & Current) (3,32,72,047) 3,40,16,672

VI Tax Expense: Cash used in operations 95,15,73,619 (36,53,22,524)

(a) Current Tax Expense 32,35,000 85,56,000 - Incometax paid (Net) (40,77,135) (82,85,156)
(b) Earlier Year Tax (16,850) 10,77,506 Netcash flow (usedin) Operating Activities 94,74,96,484 (37,36,07,680)

(c) MAT Tax (16,22,000) - B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

(d) Deferred Tax 3,01,000 (25,58,362) Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments (3,70,761) (71,30,126)

18,97,150 70,75,144 Proceedsfrom Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 6,96,650 -

Investmentin Subsidiaries (18,00,00,000) (16,60,00,100)

VII Profit/(Loss) for the Period (V-VI) 1,60,64,383 2,30,12,578 Proceedsfrom Sale of investments of a subsidiary 6,00,00,000 13,16,154

Investment in associates - (4,97,55,000)

VIII Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value 10 Per Share): 24 Proceedsfrom Sale of Investmentin Associate 14,88,21,250

(1) Basic (2) 0.80 1.25 Purchase of investments in other companies - (25,40,95,080)

: Proceedsform Sale of investments in other companies 23,40,12,040 2,00,83,040

(2) Diluted (2) 0.80 1.15 Netcashflow usedin Investing Activities 26,31,59,179 (45,55,81,112)

Notes 1 to 33 formspart of Standalone Financial Statements. C. Cashflow from Financing Activities
Securities Premium on Equity Shares - 30,00,00,000

In termsof our report attached Finance costs paid (6,98,31,996) (8,89,04,493)

Movementin Short-term borrowingsfrom related parties (Net) (10,66,30,123) 11,56,65,744

Movementin Short-term borrowingsfrom others (Net) (97,77,53,899) 49,26,80,479

Net cash flow from/(usedin) Financing Activities (1,15,42,16,018) 81,94,41,730

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,64,39,645 (97,47,062)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 40,83,111 1,38,30,171

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer note 15) 6,05,22,756 40,83,111

Note:- The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared underthe ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow
Statements notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Notes 1 to 33 formspart of Standalone Financial Statements.

F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/- Chartered Accountants
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018
Managing Director Director Sd/- Sd/-

(DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841) Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director

(DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)Sd/-

Shrenik Baid Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Partner Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah Shrenik Baid Sd/- Sd/-

Mem.No. :103884 Chief Financial Officer CompanySecretary Partner Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah

Mumbai: 29th May, 2019 Mumbai: 29th May, 2019 Mumbai: 29th May, 2019 Mem.No. :103884

Mumbai: 29th May, 2019
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai: 29th May, 2019

Company Secretary
Mumbai: 29th May, 2019
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ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE STANDALONEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Background

Choice International Limited (“CIL" / the “Company”)is incorporatedin India as a public limited company and registered with Reserve Bank of
India as Non-Deposit Taking Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Services Company. The Company is engagedin financial
services business comprising of lending, investments and advisory services. During the Companyhas surrenderedits CoR (Certificate of
Registration), howeverthe cancellation is pending with RBI.

1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Basis of Accounting & preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements:

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been

prepared in accordancewith the Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

("the 2013 Act") and Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank ofIndia.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on

accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The

accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the

Standalone Financial Statements are consistent with those

followedin the previous year.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the
managementto makeestimates and assumptions considered in
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including
contingentliabilities) as of the date of the Standalone Financial
Statements and the reported income and expenses during the
reporting period. Managementbelievesthat the estimates used
in the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements are
prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any change in the estimates is recognized
prospectively in current and future period.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenueis recognizedto the extentit is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can bereliably
measured. In addition, the following criteria must be met before

revenueis recognized:

(i) Interest and other dues on Lending are recognized on accrual
basis, except in case of Non-Performing Assets (NPA’s),

wherein income is recognized onrealization of the same.
NPA‘s are determined in accordance with the Guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank ofIndia.

(ii) Income on services provided in the nature of Business

Support Services ("BSS") is recognized on an accrual basis on
completion of services as enumeratedin the BSSpolicy of the
Company.

(iii) Profit or Loss on sale of investments is determined based on

weighted average cost of investments and is recognized on
trade date basis.

(iv) Interests on fixed deposits are recognized on accrual basis..

(v) Dividend incomeis recognized oncethe unconditional right
to receive dividendis established.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Tangible assets:
Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairmentlosses, if any. The cost of fixed assets includes
interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying
fixed assets up to the date the asset is readyforits intended use
and other incidental expensesincurred up to that date.

Intangible assets:
Intangible assets are recognized whenit is probable that the

e)

f)

g)

h)

future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured
reliably. Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an

intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

RevaluationofAssets:
Land is accounted for using revaluation model as per Revised
Accounting Standard - 10. Revaluation Surplus is credited to
revaluation surplus in Shareholder’s equity. Subsequently, such
Land will be carried at fair value based on periodic valuations by
an independent registered appraiser. Other assets are
accountedat costbasis.

Depreciation &Amortization:

Depreciation has been provided on thestraight-line method as
per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the CompaniesAct,
2013. Depreciation on addition to fixed assets is provided ona
pro-rata basis from the date of addition. In respect of computer
software which are amortized over a period of 6.17 years in
accordance with the Accounting Standard 26 "Accounting for
Intangible Assets".

The estimateduseful life of intangible assets and the amortization
period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
amortization methodis revised to reflect the changed pattern.

Inventories:

Inventories of share & securities are valued at cost(on FIFO basis)

or the netrealizable whicheveris lower, by taking the valueofall
the scripts of the shares cumulatively. Cost includesall incidental
cost of acquisition.

Cash & Cash Equivalent:

Cash comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short term balances, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible in cash and whichare are
subjectedto insignificant risk of changein value.

Finance Cost:

Interest cost is recognised as expensesin the period in which the
costis incurred. Other finance Chargesincludesorigination fees
and other ancillary costs with respect to funds mobilised by the
Company which are amortised over the tenure of such
borrowings

Employees Benefits:

(i) Short-term: Short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expenseat the undiscounted amount expected to be paid
overthe period of services rendered by the employeesto the
Company. These include Salary, Compensated leave
encashment, Bonus,etc.

(ii) Long-term: The Companyhas both defined-contribution and
defined-benefit plans. The defined contribution plans are
financed by the company and in the case of some defined
contribution plans by the Companyalong withits employees

j)

k)

)

¢ Defined-contribution Plans

These are plans in which a company pays pre-defined
amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or
informal obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of
contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund and Family
Pension Fund. The Company’s payments to the defined
contribution plans are reported as expensesin the period in
which the employees perform the services that the payment
covers

e Defined-benefit Plans
For defined benefit plansin the form of gratuity fund, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method,with actuarial valuations being carried out at

each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognizedin the Statementof Profit and Lossin the period in
whichthey occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested and
otherwise is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. The
retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset
resulting from this calculationis limited to past service cost,

plus the presentvalue of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the schemes.

Investments:

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held
for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made,are classified as current investments,all

other investments are classified as non-current investments.

Investments are valued in accordance with the RBI guidelines and
Accounting Standard-13 on “Accounting for investments”.

Long-term investments (excluding investment properties), are
carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other
than temporary, in the value of such investments.

Quoted current investments are valued at lower of cost and
market value of investments on a category basis. Unquoted
current investments are valued at lower of cost and breakup
value/fair value of investments in accordance with RBI Guidelines

ImpairmentofAssets:

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each
Balance Sheetdate are reviewedfor impairment.If any indication
of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assetsis

estimated and impairmentis recognized,if the carrying amount
of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amountis the greater of the net selling price and
their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the
future cash flowsto their present value based on an appropriate
discountfactor. Whenthereis indication that an impairmentloss
recognizedfor an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer
exists or may have decreased,such reversal of impairmentlossis
recognizedin the Statementof Profit and Loss, except in case of
revalued assets.

Accounting ForTaxes On Income:

Current tax is the amountoftax payable on the taxable incomefor
the year as determined in accordancewith the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax

laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of

adjustmentto future income taxliability, is considered as an asset
if there is convincing evidencethat the Companywill pay normal
income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the
Balance Sheet whenit is probable that future economic benefit
associatedwithit will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences, being the
differences between the taxable income and the accounting
income thatoriginate in one period and are capableof reversal in
one or more subsequentperiods. Deferred tax is measured using
the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as
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atthe reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognizedfor all
timing differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognized onlyif
thereis virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable
income available to realize such assets. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for timing differencesof other items only to the extent
that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which these can berealized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsetif such itemsrelate to
taxes on incomelevied by the same governing tax laws and the
Companyhasa legally enforceable right for such set off. The
effect on Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognisedin the StatementofProfit and Lossin the year
of substantive enactmentof the change.Deferred tax assets are
reviewed ateach Balance Sheetdatefortheir realisability.

Provisions, contingentliabilities & assets:

A Provision is recognised when the Companyhasa presentlegal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and itis
probablethat an outflow of resourceswill be requiredto settle the
obligation, in respect of whichreliable estimate can be made. A
disclosure for a contingentliability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible
obligation or a presentobligation but the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure as specified in

Accounting Standard 29 - “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets” is made. Contingent Assets are neither
recognised nor disclosedin the Standalone Financial Statements.

Provisioning under Prudential Norms:

(i) NPAs are identified and categorised according to the
Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Provisions are madeagainst sub-standard, doubtful and loss

assets at the rates prescribed in the RBI guidelines, unless an
accelerated provision / write-off is warranted on a case to
case basis where additional risks are identified by the
Management

(ii Provisioning for NPAs is dependent upon,inter alia, whether
the NPA is secured or unsecured. Loans are considered as
secured, where the Company has valid recourse to assets /
recovery by Pledgeof shares, units, other securities.

(iii) Provision for Standard Assets is made at 0.25% on the

outstanding standard assets in accordance with RBI
guidelines.

(iv) Impairmentin the investmentportfolio is provided,as per the
Guidelines issued by the RBI, unless an accelerated provision
write-off is warranted on a caseto case basis

Cash Flow Statement:

Cashflow is reported using the indirect method, wherebyprofit /
(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of the transactions on

non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from operating,
investing and financing activities of the companyis segregated
based onavailable information.

For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes fixed deposits which are freely remissible
but excludesinterest accrued on fixed deposits.

EarningsPerShare

Basic earnings pershare is calculated by dividing the Net Profit /
(Loss) for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net
Profits / (Loss) for the period attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company by weighted average numberof equity shares
determined by assuming conversion on exercise of conversion

rightsfor all potential dilutive securities.
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE STANDALONEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Background

Choice International Limited (“CIL" / the “Company”)is incorporatedin India as a public limited company and registered with Reserve Bank of
India as Non-Deposit Taking Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Services Company. The Company is engagedin financial
services business comprising of lending, investments and advisory services. During the Companyhas surrenderedits CoR (Certificate of
Registration), howeverthe cancellation is pending with RBI.

1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Basis of Accounting & preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements:

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been

prepared in accordancewith the Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

("the 2013 Act") and Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank ofIndia.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on

accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The

accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the

Standalone Financial Statements are consistent with those

followedin the previous year.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the
managementto makeestimates and assumptions considered in
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including
contingentliabilities) as of the date of the Standalone Financial
Statements and the reported income and expenses during the
reporting period. Managementbelievesthat the estimates used
in the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements are
prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any change in the estimates is recognized
prospectively in current and future period.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenueis recognizedto the extentit is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can bereliably
measured. In addition, the following criteria must be met before

revenueis recognized:

(i) Interest and other dues on Lending are recognized on accrual
basis, except in case of Non-Performing Assets (NPA’s),

wherein income is recognized onrealization of the same.
NPA‘s are determined in accordance with the Guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank ofIndia.

(ii) Income on services provided in the nature of Business

Support Services ("BSS") is recognized on an accrual basis on
completion of services as enumeratedin the BSSpolicy of the
Company.

(iii) Profit or Loss on sale of investments is determined based on

weighted average cost of investments and is recognized on
trade date basis.

(iv) Interests on fixed deposits are recognized on accrual basis..

(v) Dividend incomeis recognized oncethe unconditional right
to receive dividendis established.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Tangible assets:
Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairmentlosses, if any. The cost of fixed assets includes
interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying
fixed assets up to the date the asset is readyforits intended use
and other incidental expensesincurred up to that date.

Intangible assets:
Intangible assets are recognized whenit is probable that the

e)

f)

g)

h)

future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured
reliably. Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an

intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

RevaluationofAssets:
Land is accounted for using revaluation model as per Revised
Accounting Standard - 10. Revaluation Surplus is credited to
revaluation surplus in Shareholder’s equity. Subsequently, such
Land will be carried at fair value based on periodic valuations by
an independent registered appraiser. Other assets are
accountedat costbasis.

Depreciation &Amortization:

Depreciation has been provided on thestraight-line method as
per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the CompaniesAct,
2013. Depreciation on addition to fixed assets is provided ona
pro-rata basis from the date of addition. In respect of computer
software which are amortized over a period of 6.17 years in
accordance with the Accounting Standard 26 "Accounting for
Intangible Assets".

The estimateduseful life of intangible assets and the amortization
period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
amortization methodis revised to reflect the changed pattern.

Inventories:

Inventories of share & securities are valued at cost(on FIFO basis)

or the netrealizable whicheveris lower, by taking the valueofall
the scripts of the shares cumulatively. Cost includesall incidental
cost of acquisition.

Cash & Cash Equivalent:

Cash comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short term balances, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible in cash and whichare are
subjectedto insignificant risk of changein value.

Finance Cost:

Interest cost is recognised as expensesin the period in which the
costis incurred. Other finance Chargesincludesorigination fees
and other ancillary costs with respect to funds mobilised by the
Company which are amortised over the tenure of such
borrowings

Employees Benefits:

(i) Short-term: Short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expenseat the undiscounted amount expected to be paid
overthe period of services rendered by the employeesto the
Company. These include Salary, Compensated leave
encashment, Bonus,etc.

(ii) Long-term: The Companyhas both defined-contribution and
defined-benefit plans. The defined contribution plans are
financed by the company and in the case of some defined
contribution plans by the Companyalong withits employees

j)

k)

)

¢ Defined-contribution Plans

These are plans in which a company pays pre-defined
amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or
informal obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of
contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund and Family
Pension Fund. The Company’s payments to the defined
contribution plans are reported as expensesin the period in
which the employees perform the services that the payment
covers

e Defined-benefit Plans
For defined benefit plansin the form of gratuity fund, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method,with actuarial valuations being carried out at

each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognizedin the Statementof Profit and Lossin the period in
whichthey occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested and
otherwise is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. The
retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset
resulting from this calculationis limited to past service cost,

plus the presentvalue of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the schemes.

Investments:

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held
for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made,are classified as current investments,all

other investments are classified as non-current investments.

Investments are valued in accordance with the RBI guidelines and
Accounting Standard-13 on “Accounting for investments”.

Long-term investments (excluding investment properties), are
carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other
than temporary, in the value of such investments.

Quoted current investments are valued at lower of cost and
market value of investments on a category basis. Unquoted
current investments are valued at lower of cost and breakup
value/fair value of investments in accordance with RBI Guidelines

ImpairmentofAssets:

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each
Balance Sheetdate are reviewedfor impairment.If any indication
of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assetsis

estimated and impairmentis recognized,if the carrying amount
of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amountis the greater of the net selling price and
their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the
future cash flowsto their present value based on an appropriate
discountfactor. Whenthereis indication that an impairmentloss
recognizedfor an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer
exists or may have decreased,such reversal of impairmentlossis
recognizedin the Statementof Profit and Loss, except in case of
revalued assets.

Accounting ForTaxes On Income:

Current tax is the amountoftax payable on the taxable incomefor
the year as determined in accordancewith the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax

laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of

adjustmentto future income taxliability, is considered as an asset
if there is convincing evidencethat the Companywill pay normal
income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the
Balance Sheet whenit is probable that future economic benefit
associatedwithit will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences, being the
differences between the taxable income and the accounting
income thatoriginate in one period and are capableof reversal in
one or more subsequentperiods. Deferred tax is measured using
the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as
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atthe reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognizedfor all
timing differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognized onlyif
thereis virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable
income available to realize such assets. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for timing differencesof other items only to the extent
that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which these can berealized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsetif such itemsrelate to
taxes on incomelevied by the same governing tax laws and the
Companyhasa legally enforceable right for such set off. The
effect on Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognisedin the StatementofProfit and Lossin the year
of substantive enactmentof the change.Deferred tax assets are
reviewed ateach Balance Sheetdatefortheir realisability.

Provisions, contingentliabilities & assets:

A Provision is recognised when the Companyhasa presentlegal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and itis
probablethat an outflow of resourceswill be requiredto settle the
obligation, in respect of whichreliable estimate can be made. A
disclosure for a contingentliability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible
obligation or a presentobligation but the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure as specified in

Accounting Standard 29 - “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets” is made. Contingent Assets are neither
recognised nor disclosedin the Standalone Financial Statements.

Provisioning under Prudential Norms:

(i) NPAs are identified and categorised according to the
Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Provisions are madeagainst sub-standard, doubtful and loss

assets at the rates prescribed in the RBI guidelines, unless an
accelerated provision / write-off is warranted on a case to
case basis where additional risks are identified by the
Management

(ii Provisioning for NPAs is dependent upon,inter alia, whether
the NPA is secured or unsecured. Loans are considered as
secured, where the Company has valid recourse to assets /
recovery by Pledgeof shares, units, other securities.

(iii) Provision for Standard Assets is made at 0.25% on the

outstanding standard assets in accordance with RBI
guidelines.

(iv) Impairmentin the investmentportfolio is provided,as per the
Guidelines issued by the RBI, unless an accelerated provision
write-off is warranted on a caseto case basis

Cash Flow Statement:

Cashflow is reported using the indirect method, wherebyprofit /
(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of the transactions on

non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from operating,
investing and financing activities of the companyis segregated
based onavailable information.

For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes fixed deposits which are freely remissible
but excludesinterest accrued on fixed deposits.

EarningsPerShare

Basic earnings pershare is calculated by dividing the Net Profit /
(Loss) for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net
Profits / (Loss) for the period attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company by weighted average numberof equity shares
determined by assuming conversion on exercise of conversion

rightsfor all potential dilutive securities.
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ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amountin %)

As at March

(Amountin @)

As at MarchAs at March

31,2018

Particulars As at March

che
Particulars

cet hh)

 

2 SHARE CAPITAL 3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
  

(a) Details of authorised, issued and subscribed and paid up sharecapital a) Statutory Reserve * 
  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Opening Balance 3,50,60,000 3,04,57,000

Authorised Capital Add: Transferred from statementof profit & loss 32,13,000 46,03,000

20,100,000 (PY 20,100,000) Equity Shares of € 10/- each 20,10,00,000 20,10,00,000 Closing Balance 3,82,73,000 3,50,60,000

Issued Capital b) Capital R
. apital Reserve

20,004,800 (PY 20,004,800) Equity Shares of = 10/- each 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000 Opening Balance 8,69,500 8,69,500

Add: Transferred from statementof profit & loss - -
Subscribed and Paid up Capital Closing Balance 8,69,500 8,69,500

20,004,800 (PY 20,004,800) Equity Shares of %10/- eachfully paid-up 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000
c) Securities Premium Reserve

eeceseoee 20,00,48,000 Opening Balance 63,92,17,300 33,92,17,300
Add : received on shares issued during the period - 30,00,00,000

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to eachclass of shares - Closing Balance 63,92,17,300 63,92,17,300

The Companyhasonly oneclassof share capital, i.e., equity shares having face value of 710/- per share. Each holderof equity shareis entitled - ox
to onevote per share. The Shareholdersare entitled to interim dividendif proposed by the Board ofDirectors. The Final dividend is subject to d) Revaluation reserve** -
approval ofthe shareholdersin the Annual General Meeting. Opening Balance 41,70,22,090 =

Addition during the year - 41,70,22,090

weg . . . . 41,70,22,090 41,70,22,090
(b) Reconciliation of numberofshares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period e) Surplusin statementof profit & loss -

Opening Balance 7,87,89,142 6,03,79,564

Add: profit for the year 1,60,64,383 2,30,12,578
No.of shares at the beginning of the year 2,00,04,800 1,00,04,800 Less- Transfer to Statutory Reserve 32,13,000 46,03,000

Closing Bal 9,16,40,525 7,87,89,143
Add: Shares issued during the year - 1,00,00,000 osing parance

1,18,70,22,415 1,17,09,58,033
No.of shares at the end of the year 2,00,04,800 2,00,04,800

*The Managementhascreated a statutory reserve of = 3,213,000/-(PY- = 4,603,000/-) as per the provisions of section 45-IC of Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity sharesas at the endofthe year **Pursuant to the Revised AS 10 "Accounting for Fixed Assets", during the previous year the Companyhasrevalued freehold landsatfair
market value, underrevaluation model. Pursuantto the foregoing, during the previous year, property, plant & equipmentincreased by Rs.
417,022,090/- and Reserves & Surplus increased by Rs. 417,022,090/-

Vinita Sunil Patodia Promoter 15,75,000 15,75,000 4 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

7.87% 7.87%

Secured loans

Kamal Poddar Promoter 25,00,011 25,00,011 Non Convertible Debentures* - 3,10,00,000

12.50% 12.50% NIL (PY- 310) Index linked non convertible, redeemable debentures of

Rs. 100,000 each - 3,10,00,000

Arun Poddar Promoter 21,00,000 21,00,000 Less- Current maturity of long term borrowings - NIL

10.50% 10.50%

* Non Convertible Debentures referred aboveare issued on private placementbasis which are secured against loans & advances. The
ArchanaAnil Patodia Promoter 15,75,000 15,75,000 debenturesare indexlinked.

7.87% 7.87% (Amountin @)

Sonu Poddar Promoter 12.50,000 12.50.000 Particulars PHM Ecole Movement XHa Ecole
6.25% 6.25% 31,2018 for the year 31,2019

Sunil Patodia Promoter 11,00,000 11,00,000 5 DEFERREDTAX LIABILITIES (NET)
5.50% 5.50% The major componentsof deferredtax liabilities / assets

(net) as recognisedin the financial statementsis as follows:

Anil Patodia Promoter 11,00,000 11,00,000 Deferred tax liability -

5.50% 5.50% On difference between book balance & tax balance offixed assets 2,63,98,000 (3,83,000) 2,60,15,000

Deferred tax asset-

Azura ProjectsPrivate Limited Cee 12,85,026 Provision for employee benefit expenses (2,57,000) 65,000 (1,92,000)
6.42% 6.42%

Provision for standard loan assets (6,19,000) 6,19,000 -

2,55,22,000 3,01,000 2,58,23,000
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2 SHARE CAPITAL 3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
  

(a) Details of authorised, issued and subscribed and paid up sharecapital a) Statutory Reserve * 
  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Opening Balance 3,50,60,000 3,04,57,000

Authorised Capital Add: Transferred from statementof profit & loss 32,13,000 46,03,000

20,100,000 (PY 20,100,000) Equity Shares of € 10/- each 20,10,00,000 20,10,00,000 Closing Balance 3,82,73,000 3,50,60,000

Issued Capital b) Capital R
. apital Reserve

20,004,800 (PY 20,004,800) Equity Shares of = 10/- each 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000 Opening Balance 8,69,500 8,69,500

Add: Transferred from statementof profit & loss - -
Subscribed and Paid up Capital Closing Balance 8,69,500 8,69,500

20,004,800 (PY 20,004,800) Equity Shares of %10/- eachfully paid-up 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000
c) Securities Premium Reserve

eeceseoee 20,00,48,000 Opening Balance 63,92,17,300 33,92,17,300
Add : received on shares issued during the period - 30,00,00,000

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to eachclass of shares - Closing Balance 63,92,17,300 63,92,17,300

The Companyhasonly oneclassof share capital, i.e., equity shares having face value of 710/- per share. Each holderof equity shareis entitled - ox
to onevote per share. The Shareholdersare entitled to interim dividendif proposed by the Board ofDirectors. The Final dividend is subject to d) Revaluation reserve** -
approval ofthe shareholdersin the Annual General Meeting. Opening Balance 41,70,22,090 =

Addition during the year - 41,70,22,090

weg . . . . 41,70,22,090 41,70,22,090
(b) Reconciliation of numberofshares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period e) Surplusin statementof profit & loss -

Opening Balance 7,87,89,142 6,03,79,564

Add: profit for the year 1,60,64,383 2,30,12,578
No.of shares at the beginning of the year 2,00,04,800 1,00,04,800 Less- Transfer to Statutory Reserve 32,13,000 46,03,000

Closing Bal 9,16,40,525 7,87,89,143
Add: Shares issued during the year - 1,00,00,000 osing parance

1,18,70,22,415 1,17,09,58,033
No.of shares at the end of the year 2,00,04,800 2,00,04,800

*The Managementhascreated a statutory reserve of = 3,213,000/-(PY- = 4,603,000/-) as per the provisions of section 45-IC of Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity sharesas at the endofthe year **Pursuant to the Revised AS 10 "Accounting for Fixed Assets", during the previous year the Companyhasrevalued freehold landsatfair
market value, underrevaluation model. Pursuantto the foregoing, during the previous year, property, plant & equipmentincreased by Rs.
417,022,090/- and Reserves & Surplus increased by Rs. 417,022,090/-

Vinita Sunil Patodia Promoter 15,75,000 15,75,000 4 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

7.87% 7.87%

Secured loans

Kamal Poddar Promoter 25,00,011 25,00,011 Non Convertible Debentures* - 3,10,00,000

12.50% 12.50% NIL (PY- 310) Index linked non convertible, redeemable debentures of

Rs. 100,000 each - 3,10,00,000

Arun Poddar Promoter 21,00,000 21,00,000 Less- Current maturity of long term borrowings - NIL

10.50% 10.50%

* Non Convertible Debentures referred aboveare issued on private placementbasis which are secured against loans & advances. The
ArchanaAnil Patodia Promoter 15,75,000 15,75,000 debenturesare indexlinked.

7.87% 7.87% (Amountin @)

Sonu Poddar Promoter 12.50,000 12.50.000 Particulars PHM Ecole Movement XHa Ecole
6.25% 6.25% 31,2018 for the year 31,2019

Sunil Patodia Promoter 11,00,000 11,00,000 5 DEFERREDTAX LIABILITIES (NET)
5.50% 5.50% The major componentsof deferredtax liabilities / assets

(net) as recognisedin the financial statementsis as follows:

Anil Patodia Promoter 11,00,000 11,00,000 Deferred tax liability -

5.50% 5.50% On difference between book balance & tax balance offixed assets 2,63,98,000 (3,83,000) 2,60,15,000

Deferred tax asset-

Azura ProjectsPrivate Limited Cee 12,85,026 Provision for employee benefit expenses (2,57,000) 65,000 (1,92,000)
6.42% 6.42%

Provision for standard loan assets (6,19,000) 6,19,000 -

2,55,22,000 3,01,000 2,58,23,000
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~~ Standalone Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

 

6 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

As at March

cee

(Amountin @)

As at March

31,2018

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Provision for employee benefit expenses 6,27,040 8,63,675

6,27,040 8,63,675

7 SHORTTERM BORROWINGS

Secured loans

Bank overdraft* 931 -

Loans taken from financial institutions** - 93,67,40,036

Unsecured loans

Loans taken from subsidiaries (refer note 29) 90,35,621 11,56,65,744

Loans taken from others - 1,00,14,794

90,36,552 1,06,24,20,574
 

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited.

Kk

given.

8 TRADE PAYABLES

Sanctioned bank overdraft facility of Rs. 14.25 cris secured against personal assets of promoters and director and corporate guarantee of

Loanstaken from Financial Institutions are secured against shares & securities placed as collateral by customers to whom loans has been

 

 

 

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises* 41,363 75,422

Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 53,38,133 61,99,851

53,79,496 62,75,273
 

Based oninformation received by the Companyfromits suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) DevelopmentAct, 2006 and relied uponbythe auditors; details of amount due to such vendorsis as below:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SNo Particulars

(i) Principal Amount Outstanding 41,363 75,422

(ii) Interest due on above and unpaid - -

(iii) Interest due and payablefor the period of delay - -

(iv) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid a -

9 OTHER CURRENTLIABILITIES

Current Maturities of long term borrowings 3,10,00,000

Payable for Statutory dues 28,60,235 63,07,045

Payable towards partly paid Investment - 2,96,43,040

Otherliability 10,59,100 11,61,197

Interest Accrued but not due on debentures - 98, 85,488

Equity Stock Option Premium - 80,100

39,19,335 7,80,76,870

10 SHORTTERM PROVISIONS

Provision for interest on debentures - 35,66,190

Provision against standard loan assets - 22,50,000

Provision for employee benefit expenses 1,13,138 63,872

1,13,138 58,80,062
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~~ Standalone Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

 

6 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

As at March

cee

(Amountin @)

As at March

31,2018

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Provision for employee benefit expenses 6,27,040 8,63,675

6,27,040 8,63,675

7 SHORTTERM BORROWINGS

Secured loans

Bank overdraft* 931 -

Loans taken from financial institutions** - 93,67,40,036

Unsecured loans

Loans taken from subsidiaries (refer note 29) 90,35,621 11,56,65,744

Loans taken from others - 1,00,14,794

90,36,552 1,06,24,20,574
 

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited.

Kk

given.

8 TRADE PAYABLES

Sanctioned bank overdraft facility of Rs. 14.25 cris secured against personal assets of promoters and director and corporate guarantee of

Loanstaken from Financial Institutions are secured against shares & securities placed as collateral by customers to whom loans has been

 

 

 

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises* 41,363 75,422

Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 53,38,133 61,99,851

53,79,496 62,75,273
 

Based oninformation received by the Companyfromits suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) DevelopmentAct, 2006 and relied uponbythe auditors; details of amount due to such vendorsis as below:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SNo Particulars

(i) Principal Amount Outstanding 41,363 75,422

(ii) Interest due on above and unpaid - -

(iii) Interest due and payablefor the period of delay - -

(iv) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid a -

9 OTHER CURRENTLIABILITIES

Current Maturities of long term borrowings 3,10,00,000

Payable for Statutory dues 28,60,235 63,07,045

Payable towards partly paid Investment - 2,96,43,040

Otherliability 10,59,100 11,61,197

Interest Accrued but not due on debentures - 98, 85,488

Equity Stock Option Premium - 80,100

39,19,335 7,80,76,870

10 SHORTTERM PROVISIONS

Provision for interest on debentures - 35,66,190

Provision against standard loan assets - 22,50,000

Provision for employee benefit expenses 1,13,138 63,872

1,13,138 58,80,062
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Standalone Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2019 31,2018

(Amountin &)

12 NON-CURRENTINVESTMENTS

(a) Trade investments in unquoted equity shares fully paid-up
 

 
Subsidiary companies- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5,050,000 (PY - 5,050,000 shares of 10/- each of Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 5,05,00,000 5,05,00,000

8,017,800 (PY - 6,650,000) shares of =10/- each of Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 44,14,00,000 39,14,00,000

Nil (PY-1,400,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited ' - 5,00,00,000

1,110,000 (PY - 2,110,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Portfolio Management

Services Private Limited 2 1,10,88,877 2,10,78,857

50,00,000 (PY - 50,00,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Consultancy

ServicesPrivate Limited 3,01,00,000 3,01,00,000

10,000 (PY - 10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000

10,000 (PY -10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 75,394 75,394

100,000 (PY -100,000) shares of =10/- each of Choice Peers International Private Limited 10,00,000 10,00,000

8,560,000 (PY -110,60,000) shares of 10/- each of Choice Finserve Private Limited 3 15,52,56,420 2,06,00,000

10,000 (PY - 10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000

10,000 (PY - 10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Retails Solutions Private Limited 100 100
 

 
(b) Other investments in quoted equity shares fully paid-up

Associate company-
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil (PY - 5,952,850) shares of %10/- each of Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited * - 14,87,92,305

Other Company

Nil (PY - 4,50,000) shares of 210/- each of Kisan Mouldings Limited ° - 5,35,05,000

(c) Other investments in unquoted equity sharesfully paid-up

Nil (PY - 4,00,000) shares of 210/- each of Gini & Jony Limited ° - 5,05,60,000

Nil (PY - 523,980) shares of 10/- each Jaatvedas Construction CompanyLimited ° - 12,99,47,040

Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments

68,96,20,791 94,77,58,696

Aggregate bookvalueof-

Quotedfully paid-up investments - 20,22,97,305

Unquotedfully paid-up investments 68,96,20,791 74,54,61,391

Aggregate marketvalueof-

Quotedfully paid-up investments - 20,59,68,050
 

1. During the year Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited (CMBPL) has merged with Choice Equity Broking Private Limited (CEBPL)

pursuantto the schemeof merger dated September06, 2018 approved by National Company Law Tribunal. Consequently the company

has been allotted 1,367,800 shares of CEBPLin place of 1,400,000 shares of CMBPLon October 01,2018.

2. The Companyhas sold 1,000,000 shares in Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Private Limited to Choice Equity Broking Private

Limited at Rs 10/-per share ata consideration of Rs 100 lacs vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 30,2019

3. The Companyhasinvested in 9,000,000 shares of Choice Finserv Private Limited at valuation of Rs. 20 per share on June 30, 2018.

Further the Companyhassold its 2,500.000 shares at a consideration of Rs. 500 lacs at Rs. 20 per share in Choice FinservPrivate Limited to

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 30, 2019.

4. During the year the Companyhas sold its investment in Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited of 30,00,000 equity shares at a consideration

of Rs. 750 lacs vide Share Purchase Agreementdated March 30,2019.

5. The Companyhassoldits investment in Kisan Moulding Private Limited of 450,000 equity shares at a consideration of Rs. 535.05 lacs vide

a Share Purchase Agreementdated March 30,2019.

6. The Company hassold its investment in Gini and Jony Private Limited @ Rs. 126.40 per share on August 18,2018 and Jaatvedas

Construction CompanyPrivate Limited @ Rs. 248 per share on June 30, 2018 to Choice Finserv Private Limited.

13 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
 

Unsecured, considered good
 

 

 

 

 

Security deposits 17,28,250 26,82,696

MATCredit Entitlement 75,11,277 58,89,277

AdvanceTax (net of provisions)* 77,78,250 69,19,265

1,70,17,777 1,54,91,238
 

*The above advancetaxis net off provision of Rs. 32,29,000 for assessment year 2019-20.
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Standalone Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2019 31,2018

(Amountin &)

12 NON-CURRENTINVESTMENTS

(a) Trade investments in unquoted equity shares fully paid-up
 

 
Subsidiary companies- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5,050,000 (PY - 5,050,000 shares of 10/- each of Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 5,05,00,000 5,05,00,000

8,017,800 (PY - 6,650,000) shares of =10/- each of Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 44,14,00,000 39,14,00,000

Nil (PY-1,400,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited ' - 5,00,00,000

1,110,000 (PY - 2,110,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Portfolio Management

Services Private Limited 2 1,10,88,877 2,10,78,857

50,00,000 (PY - 50,00,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Consultancy

ServicesPrivate Limited 3,01,00,000 3,01,00,000

10,000 (PY - 10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000

10,000 (PY -10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 75,394 75,394

100,000 (PY -100,000) shares of =10/- each of Choice Peers International Private Limited 10,00,000 10,00,000

8,560,000 (PY -110,60,000) shares of 10/- each of Choice Finserve Private Limited 3 15,52,56,420 2,06,00,000

10,000 (PY - 10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000

10,000 (PY - 10,000) shares of 210/- each of Choice Retails Solutions Private Limited 100 100
 

 
(b) Other investments in quoted equity shares fully paid-up

Associate company-
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil (PY - 5,952,850) shares of %10/- each of Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited * - 14,87,92,305

Other Company

Nil (PY - 4,50,000) shares of 210/- each of Kisan Mouldings Limited ° - 5,35,05,000

(c) Other investments in unquoted equity sharesfully paid-up

Nil (PY - 4,00,000) shares of 210/- each of Gini & Jony Limited ° - 5,05,60,000

Nil (PY - 523,980) shares of 10/- each Jaatvedas Construction CompanyLimited ° - 12,99,47,040

Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments

68,96,20,791 94,77,58,696

Aggregate bookvalueof-

Quotedfully paid-up investments - 20,22,97,305

Unquotedfully paid-up investments 68,96,20,791 74,54,61,391

Aggregate marketvalueof-

Quotedfully paid-up investments - 20,59,68,050
 

1. During the year Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited (CMBPL) has merged with Choice Equity Broking Private Limited (CEBPL)

pursuantto the schemeof merger dated September06, 2018 approved by National Company Law Tribunal. Consequently the company

has been allotted 1,367,800 shares of CEBPLin place of 1,400,000 shares of CMBPLon October 01,2018.

2. The Companyhas sold 1,000,000 shares in Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Private Limited to Choice Equity Broking Private

Limited at Rs 10/-per share ata consideration of Rs 100 lacs vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 30,2019

3. The Companyhasinvested in 9,000,000 shares of Choice Finserv Private Limited at valuation of Rs. 20 per share on June 30, 2018.

Further the Companyhassold its 2,500.000 shares at a consideration of Rs. 500 lacs at Rs. 20 per share in Choice FinservPrivate Limited to

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 30, 2019.

4. During the year the Companyhas sold its investment in Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited of 30,00,000 equity shares at a consideration

of Rs. 750 lacs vide Share Purchase Agreementdated March 30,2019.

5. The Companyhassoldits investment in Kisan Moulding Private Limited of 450,000 equity shares at a consideration of Rs. 535.05 lacs vide

a Share Purchase Agreementdated March 30,2019.

6. The Company hassold its investment in Gini and Jony Private Limited @ Rs. 126.40 per share on August 18,2018 and Jaatvedas

Construction CompanyPrivate Limited @ Rs. 248 per share on June 30, 2018 to Choice Finserv Private Limited.

13 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
 

Unsecured, considered good
 

 

 

 

 

Security deposits 17,28,250 26,82,696

MATCredit Entitlement 75,11,277 58,89,277

AdvanceTax (net of provisions)* 77,78,250 69,19,265

1,70,17,777 1,54,91,238
 

*The above advancetaxis net off provision of Rs. 32,29,000 for assessment year 2019-20.
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(Amountin @)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

eeefel FY e- PHL VElcot Haelcota
31,2019 31,2018

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date -

Related Parties (Refer note 29) 1,38,81,001 1,78,91,773

Others (Refer note 29) 20,650 -

1,39,01,651 1,78,91,773

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash on Hand - 43,574

Cheques In Hand 5,35,05,000 -

Bank Balances-

In current accounts 62,07,878 31,52,151

Cash & Cash Equivalents (as per "AS-3 Cash Flow Statements") 5,97,12,878 31,95,725

Other Bank Balances (Earmarked - unpaid dividend accounts) 8,09,878 8,87,386

6,05,22,756 40,83,111

16 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Secured, considered good

Loans against shares & securities - 50,62,83,364

Unsecured, considered good

Loans & advancesto related parties (Refer note 29) - 18,68,19,605

Balance with governmentauthorities

GST input receivable 27,314 36,330

Loans & advances to others 17,74,411 20,70,52,726

Advances to vendors 1,99,054 51,28,247

Loan to Employees 57,077 -

Prepaid expenses 22,31,789 52,89,166

42,89,646 91,06,09,439

17 OTHER CURRENTASSETS

Margin Money - 1,84,867

Other Receivables from Related parties (Refer note 29) 6,76,000 -

6,76,000 1,84,867

18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Income from business support services 7,70,35,837 11,90,84,255

Interest income -

subsidiaries 22,06,426 47,05,643

others 4,36,87,318 10,06,53,506

Profit on sale of subsidiaries & associate 46,95,385 3,16,154

Other Operating Revenue 80,100 1,600

Sale of shares & securities - 16,41,645

12,77,05,066 22,64,02,803

19 OTHER INCOME

Credit balances written back 13,48,003 -

Interest on IT refund 6,30,530

Realised gain on derivatives - 17,71,148

Miscellaneous Income - 72,770

Profit on sale of fixed assets 20,650

19,99,183 18,43,918

20 CHANGESIN INVENTORIES

Shares & Securities

At the beginning of the year - 16,65,555

Less : At the end of the year - -

- 16,65,555
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

elated6 For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and incentives 1,16,72,405 2,90,19,116

Staff welfare expenses 86,014 4,16,733

Contribution to provident fund & other funds 63,245 5,82,819

1,18,21,664 3,00,18,668

22 FINANCE COST

Interest on borrowings from

- financial institution 2,64,73,826 7,42,88,652

- related parties 2,41,99,309 67,38,679

- others 7,39,726 63,21,863

Interest on Debentures 43,49,405 1,15,09,924

Other borrowing costs 6,18,052 -

5,63,80,318 9,88,59,119

23 OTHER EXPENSES

Communication expenses 67,43,564 83,13,081

Rent 58,55,682 84,86,651

Electricity Charges 51,36,470 66,82,738

Canteen Expenses 40,17,061 37,58,059

Computer Expenses 28,13,525 29,81 ,892

Legal and professional 26,78,775 59,37,461

Provision on Standard loan assets / (Written Back) (22,50,000) 13,12,196

Repairs & maintenance 18,83,973 45,93,677

Rates & taxes 16,82,591 17,98,796

Printing and stationery 9,57,535 18,76,181

Business Promotion 7,95,450 31,35,961

Director sitting fees 5,50,000 10,50,000

CSR Expenses 3,36,987 11,61,661

Traveling & Conveyance expenses 1,84,768 42,98,847

Insurance Expenses 58,014 1,06,164

Commission & Brokerage - 1,35,000

Bank charges 6,944 12,677

Miscellaneous expenses* 43,09,625 41,47,006

3,57,60,964 5,97,88,048

* Miscellaneous expenses includes Auditor's remuneration as below :

As auditors 18,00,000 19,20,000

Other matters 9,75,000 -

Out of Pocket Expenses 72,076 -

28,47,076 19,20,000

24 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders 1,60,64,383 2,30,12,578

Weighted average numberof equity shares 2,00,04,800 1,83,88,362

Basic Earnings Per Share 0.80 1.25

Face value per Share 10 10

Profit after adjusting interest on potential equity shares 1,60,64,383 2,30,12,578

Weighted average numberof equity share after

considering potential equity shares 2,00,04,800 2,00,04,800

Diluted Earnings per Share 0.80 1.15
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(Amountin @)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

eeefel FY e- PHL VElcot Haelcota
31,2019 31,2018

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date -

Related Parties (Refer note 29) 1,38,81,001 1,78,91,773

Others (Refer note 29) 20,650 -

1,39,01,651 1,78,91,773

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash on Hand - 43,574

Cheques In Hand 5,35,05,000 -

Bank Balances-

In current accounts 62,07,878 31,52,151

Cash & Cash Equivalents (as per "AS-3 Cash Flow Statements") 5,97,12,878 31,95,725

Other Bank Balances (Earmarked - unpaid dividend accounts) 8,09,878 8,87,386

6,05,22,756 40,83,111

16 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Secured, considered good

Loans against shares & securities - 50,62,83,364

Unsecured, considered good

Loans & advancesto related parties (Refer note 29) - 18,68,19,605

Balance with governmentauthorities

GST input receivable 27,314 36,330

Loans & advances to others 17,74,411 20,70,52,726

Advances to vendors 1,99,054 51,28,247

Loan to Employees 57,077 -

Prepaid expenses 22,31,789 52,89,166

42,89,646 91,06,09,439

17 OTHER CURRENTASSETS

Margin Money - 1,84,867

Other Receivables from Related parties (Refer note 29) 6,76,000 -

6,76,000 1,84,867

18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Income from business support services 7,70,35,837 11,90,84,255

Interest income -

subsidiaries 22,06,426 47,05,643

others 4,36,87,318 10,06,53,506

Profit on sale of subsidiaries & associate 46,95,385 3,16,154

Other Operating Revenue 80,100 1,600

Sale of shares & securities - 16,41,645

12,77,05,066 22,64,02,803

19 OTHER INCOME

Credit balances written back 13,48,003 -

Interest on IT refund 6,30,530

Realised gain on derivatives - 17,71,148

Miscellaneous Income - 72,770

Profit on sale of fixed assets 20,650

19,99,183 18,43,918

20 CHANGESIN INVENTORIES

Shares & Securities

At the beginning of the year - 16,65,555

Less : At the end of the year - -

- 16,65,555
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

elated6 For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and incentives 1,16,72,405 2,90,19,116

Staff welfare expenses 86,014 4,16,733

Contribution to provident fund & other funds 63,245 5,82,819

1,18,21,664 3,00,18,668

22 FINANCE COST

Interest on borrowings from

- financial institution 2,64,73,826 7,42,88,652

- related parties 2,41,99,309 67,38,679

- others 7,39,726 63,21,863

Interest on Debentures 43,49,405 1,15,09,924

Other borrowing costs 6,18,052 -

5,63,80,318 9,88,59,119

23 OTHER EXPENSES

Communication expenses 67,43,564 83,13,081

Rent 58,55,682 84,86,651

Electricity Charges 51,36,470 66,82,738

Canteen Expenses 40,17,061 37,58,059

Computer Expenses 28,13,525 29,81 ,892

Legal and professional 26,78,775 59,37,461

Provision on Standard loan assets / (Written Back) (22,50,000) 13,12,196

Repairs & maintenance 18,83,973 45,93,677

Rates & taxes 16,82,591 17,98,796

Printing and stationery 9,57,535 18,76,181

Business Promotion 7,95,450 31,35,961

Director sitting fees 5,50,000 10,50,000

CSR Expenses 3,36,987 11,61,661

Traveling & Conveyance expenses 1,84,768 42,98,847

Insurance Expenses 58,014 1,06,164

Commission & Brokerage - 1,35,000

Bank charges 6,944 12,677

Miscellaneous expenses* 43,09,625 41,47,006

3,57,60,964 5,97,88,048

* Miscellaneous expenses includes Auditor's remuneration as below :

As auditors 18,00,000 19,20,000

Other matters 9,75,000 -

Out of Pocket Expenses 72,076 -

28,47,076 19,20,000

24 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders 1,60,64,383 2,30,12,578

Weighted average numberof equity shares 2,00,04,800 1,83,88,362

Basic Earnings Per Share 0.80 1.25

Face value per Share 10 10

Profit after adjusting interest on potential equity shares 1,60,64,383 2,30,12,578

Weighted average numberof equity share after

considering potential equity shares 2,00,04,800 2,00,04,800

Diluted Earnings per Share 0.80 1.15
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25 Contingentliabilities & Capital Commitments:

A_ ContingentLiabilities* (Amountin &)

 

 

 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2019 2018

1) Income tax demand contested by the Company 19,34,494 19,34,494

19,34,494 19,34,494
 

*The Companydoesnot expect any outflow of economic resourcesin respect of above.

Particulars

(Amountin 2)

 

*Corporate guarantees issued to Banks &
Financial Institutions on behalf of subsidiaries-

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2019 2018

 

84,92,44,954 1,05,38,73,165
 

* The above represents corporate guaranteeutilised for Choice Equity Broking Private Limited is Rs. 545,921,022, for Choice Finserv
Private Limited is Rs. 193684654/-, for Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited is Rs. 8,238,645/- and for Choice Consultancy Services

Private Limited is Rs. 101,400,633/-. Howeverthe overall sanction amountis Rs. 2,618,800,000/-.

B Capital Commitments- Nil

26 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars

Foreign Travelling

(Amountin &)

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2019 2018

- 9,86,383
 

27 Employeebenefit plans:

The Companyhasclassified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

1. Defined Contribution Plan

During the year, the Companyhasincurred and recognised the following amounts in the StatementofProfit and Loss: (Amountin ®)

 

 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 42,141 2,86,856

Employer's Contribution to ESIC 21,104 2,95,963

Total 63,245 5,82,819
 

2. Defined benefit plans

The Companyoffers the gratuity as employee benefit schemesto its employees. The Companyoperates funded postretirement defined
plans for Gratuity. The plan is funded with LIC under New Group Cash Accumulation Plan. Details for which wasasfollows:

Expenses Recognised in the Statementof Profit & Loss

(Amountin 2)

For the yearended For the year ended

 

Components of employer expense

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Current service cost 73,627 4,50,078

Interest on obligation 71,947 77,082

Expected return on plan assets - -

Curtailment cost / (credit) - -

Settlement cost / (credit) - -

Recognised Past service cost vested 38,772 3,79,277

Actuarial losses/(gains) (3,53,266) 17,240

Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss (1,68,920) 9,23,677

Fundedstatusof the plan

 

(Amountin )

For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

 

 

 

 

Present value of unfundedobligation - 9,66,318

Presentvalue of funded obligation 7,53,728 -

Fair value of plan assets (13,551) -

Unrecognised pastservice costs - (38,772)

Netliability recognised in the Balance Sheet 7,40,177 927,546
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Table showing changein fair value of defined benefits obligation:

(Amountin &)

For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2018

 

March 31, 2019

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 9,66,318 10,67,311

Nettransfer in (out) obligation - (10,11,173)

Service cost 73,627 4,50,078

Interest cost 71,947 77,082

Past Service Cost - 4,18,049

Actuarial (gain) / loss (3,58,164) 17,240

Benefits paid - (52,269)

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 7,53,728 966,318
 

Table showing Reconciliation of Plan Assets

Openingvalue of plan assets

(Amountin &)

For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

 

 

 

 

Actuarial gain / (loss) (4,898) -

Contribution by employer 18,449 -

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 13,551 -
 

Experience Adjustments

(Amountin @)

As at March 31,  AsatMarch31, As at March 31,

 

 

 

 

 

2019 2018 2017

Experience adjustments onplan liabilities (3,62,420) 50,740 22,523

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumptions - - -

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to changein financial assumptions 4,256 (33,500) 80,434

Experience adjustments on plan assets 4,898 - -

Net Actuarial loss/(gain) for the year (3,53,266) 17,240 1,02,957
 

Experience A

(Amountin &)

As at March 31,

 

 

 

 

 

2016 2015

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 1,00,325 (56,334)

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumptions -

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to changein financial assumptions (6,038) 44,336

Experience adjustments on plan assets -

Net Actuarial loss/(gain) for the year 94,287 (11,998)
 

As on 31.03.2019Actuarial assumptions

(Amountin &)

As on 31.03.2018

 

 

 

Discountrate 7.65% p.a. 7.70% p.a.

Expected return on plan assets 7.65% p.a. Not Applicable

Salary escalation 6.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a.
 
Withdrawal Rates

to 1% at older ages

5% at younger ages reducing 5% at younger ages reducing

to 1% at older ages
 

Note:- (i) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Governmentof India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations. The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into accounttheinflation, seniority,

promotion, increments and otherrelevant factors. The above informationis certified by the actuaries and relied uponby auditors.

Note:- (ii) The compositionofthe plan assets has not been provided by the Insurance Company.

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT2019 | 102



Standalone Financials Standalone Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAS AT MARCH31, 2019 (Amountin @)
28 Schedule as required in terms of paragraph 18 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company-Non Systemically Important Non- Assets side Amount Outstanding

Deposit taking Company(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Refer Note 30)
(5) Break-up of investments - 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
  
  
 

 
 

  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  
 

 
 

  
  
 

  

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Amountin ®) Current investments-

ee " ; 1) Quoted -
Liabilities side Amount Outstanding Amount Overdue (i) Shares (a) Equity NIL

(b) Preference NIL
ii) Debent d bond NIL

(1) Loans & advancesavailed by the non-banking financial companyinclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid: aa Uniteofmutaal fonds s NIL

(iv) Governmentsecurities NIL
(a) Debentures Secured NIL (v) Others(please specify) NIL

Unsecured NIL NIL 2) Unquoted -

(otherthan falling within the meaning of public deposits*) (i) Shares S) equity ST
: reference

(b) Deferred credits NIL NIL (ii) Debentures and bonds NIL

(c) Term loans NIL NIL (iii) Units of mutual funds NIL

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing NIL NIL (iv) Government securities NIL

(e) Commercial paper NIL NIL (v) Others (please specify) NIL

(f) Public deposits NIL NIL Long term investments -

(g) Other loans(specify nature) NIL NIL 1) Quoted-

Bank overdraft 931 NIL (i) Shares °) Equity NIL
P. NIL

Financial institutions loan against shares & securities - NIL (ii) Debentures and bonds. ) Preference NIL

Related parties 90,35,621 NIL (iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
Total - 90,36,552 NIL (iv) Governmentsecurities NIL

(v) Others (please specify) NIL

*As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) 2) Unquoted . :
Directions, 1998. (i) Shares (a) Equity NIL

(b) Preference NIL

(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid) : (ii) Debentu res and bonds NIL
(iii) Units of mutual funds NIL

(iv) Governmentsecurities NIL
(a) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures NIL NIL (v) Others (please specify) NIL

(b) Inthe form of partly secured debenturesi.e. debentures where there

is a shortfall in the value of security (c) Other public deposits NIL NIL
NIL NIL (6) Borrower group-wiseclassification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Category Amountnetof provisions*
Secured Unsecured Total

Assets side Amount Outstanding 1. Related parties*

(3) Break-up of loans and advancesincludingbills receivables (other than those included in (4) below): (a) Subsidiaries NIL - -
S d (b) Companiesin the same group NIL NIL NIL

(a) Secure (c) Otherrelated parties NIL NIL NIL

(b) Unsecured NIL

NIL 2. Other than related parties
Total - - -

(4) Break-up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFCactivities:

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors: (7) Investor group-wiseclassification ofall investments (current and long term)in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
(a)Fi ial | NIL Category Marketvalue / Break-up Bookvalue
avrinancial lease or fair value or NAV (Net of provisions)

(b) Operating lease Unquoted

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors: 1. Related parties**
: (a) Subsidiaries - -

(a) Assets on hire NIL (b) Companiesin the same group 89,42,28,217 68,96,20,791
(b) Repossessed assets NIL (c) Other related parties NIL NIL

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFCactivities: 2. Other than related parties*** NIL NIL

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed NIL Total- 89,42,28,217 68,96,20,791

(b) Loans other than (a) above NIL . -
(8) Other information Amount

(i) Gross non-performing assets
(a) Related parties** NIL

(b) Other than related parties NIL

(ii) Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties** NIL

(b) Other than related parties NIL

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL
 

*Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

** As per accounting standard of ICAI.

*** Unquoted investments are disclosed at Break-up Value & Fair Value unless Fair Value of the investmentsare available
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29(i) Related Party Disclosure:

Details of Related Parties -

Description of Relationship

a. Subsidiary Companies

Namesof Related Parties

(Amountin &)

March March

31,2019 31,2018

Choice Capital Advisors Pvt. Ltd. v A
N

 
Choice Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. v
 

Choice Equity Broking Pvt. Ltd. v
 

Choice Merchandise Broking Pvt. Ltd. (Merged with CEBPL)
 

Choice Consultancy ServicesPvt. Ltd. 
Choice Wealth ManagementPvt.Ltd. a

N

 
Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Private Limited

(Formerly known as Choice Insurance Brokers Pvt.Ltd.)

x SE
S]

4)
4)

4
1
8

 
Choice E-CommercePrivate Limited(till March 26, 2018) 
Choice Peers International Private Limited 
Choice Finserv Private Limited 
Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited 
Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited S|

4]
4]

8

Q|
|
S
]

4
9
S

 
 
b. Associate Companies* Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited (APIVL) SN

 
Choice Realty Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary of APIVL) SN 

 
(SS Key ManagementPersonnel 

(KMP) and their relatives Kamal Poddar(Managing Director) 
Santosh Poddar (Relative of KMP) 
Manju Poddar (Relative of KMP) 
Arun Poddar (Relative of KMP) 
Sonu Poddar (Relative of KMP) 
MeenuBajaj (Relative of KMP) 
Hemlata Poddar (Non-executive Director & Relative of KMP) 
Ajay Kejriwal (Executive Director) 
Babita Kejriwal (Relative of KMP) 
Rajendra Kejriwal (Relative of KMP) 
Maltidevi Kejriwal (Relative of KMP) 
Vijay Kejriwal (Relative of KMP) 
Manisha Dattani (Relative of KMP) 
Manoj Singhania (CFO) 
Shweta Chaudhary(Relative of KMP) 
Savita Singhania (Relative of KMP) 
Murarilal Singhania (Relative of KMP) 
Meena Singhania (Relative of KMP)
 

Karishma Shah (Company Secretary) 
Praful Shah (Relative of KMP) 
Falguni Shah (Relative of KMP) N

I
N
N
N
N
N

N
S
I
S

N
E
S
T
S
S
E
S
S

SN

N
I
N
N
N
N
N

N
S
I
S

S
E
S
E

SE
SE
S
E
S
S

SN

 

 
d. Individuals owning directly or Kamal Poddar- Holding 12.50% of Capital in CIL 

indirectly interest in voting power Hemlata Poddar- Holding 4.25% of Capital in CIL 
that gives them control & their relatives Sunil Patodia - Holding 5.50% of Capital in CIL 

Vinita Patodia - Holding 7.87% of Capital in CIL 
Anil Patodia - Holding 5.50% of Capital in CIL 
Archana Patodia - Holding 7.87% of Capital in CIL 
Arun Poddar- Holding 10.50% of Capital in CIL 
Sonu Poddar- Holding 6.25% of Capital in CIL 
Shreya Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL 
Suyash Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL 
Aastha Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL 
AyushPatodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL N

I
N
E

E
V
E
R
C
I
E
E

AI
SI

SI
SE

S
E
S
S
A
I
S

S
S

 

 
e. Enterprises over which(c) & (d) S. K. Patodia & Associates x X

K

 
are able to exercise significant The Byke Hospitality Ltd. N

X

N
C

 
influence Hotel Relax Pvt. Ltd. X
K

P
N

 

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Accompanying notesto the financial statements

29(i) Related Party Disclosure:

Details of Related Parties-

Description of Relationship Namesof Related Parties

Standalone Financials

(Amountin &)

March WEY cea)

31,2019 31,2018

Manbhari Biofuel Pvt. Ltd. v v
 

S. K. Patodia Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd. \ v
 

Shree Shakambhari Exims Private Limited

(Formerly known as Upton Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.)

\ v

 
Aqua PumpsPvt. Ltd.
 

Wheresmypandit.com Pvt Ltd
 

Gravotix Technology Private Limited
 

Motormistri.com Private Limited 
Thoughts Consultants Jaipur Pvt. Ltd. in JV with

Choice Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd.

N
I
N
E
S

N
I
N
E
S
E
N
N

 
VSC Consulting Private JV with Choice Consultancy

Services Private Limited (w.e.f January 15, 2018)

\ \

 
Infra Dev Consultants in JV with Choice Consultancy

Services Pvt. Ltd.

\

 
Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited
 

Samank Apparels Private Limited 
Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited
 

Mumbai Vaish Seva Sansthan
 

Farmer's Evolvement Foundation 
Blazing Star Properties Private Limited

S
E
N
T

SN
N
N
S
N

S
E
N
T

N
N
N
N

 
Anant Incense Enterprise (Partnership name,

entered by Aastha Patodia)
 

Closhoerize (Partnership name, entered by Shreya Patodia) \

 
De Starvings Couriers LLP
 

Choice Strategic Advisors LLP
 

Lions Club of Mumbai Choice 
Lions Mumbai Choice Foundation 
Rupang Properties Private Limited 
Anil Patodia HUF 
Sunil Patodia HUF 
Arun Poddar HUF 
Kamal Poddar HUF S

E
N
T

S
N
E
S
N
I
N

SY
S
S
N

S
E
N
N

 
*During the year the Companyhassold its stake in Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited.
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31,2018 (Amountin ®) (ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31,2018 (Amountin ®)

Particulars Subsidiaries Associates KMP Relative Enterprises Total Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Nad Relative Enterprises Total

of KMP overwhich (c) of KMP over which(c)

& (d) are able & (d) are able

to exercise to exercise

significant significant
influence influence

Transactions Advance amount repaid

Equity investmentsin Samank ConsumerProductsPrivate Limited - - - - 4,10,00,000 4,10,00,000

Choice Finserv Private Limited 18,00,00,000 - - - - 18,00,00,000 - - - - 4,10,00,000 4,10,00,000

18,00,00,000 - - : - _18,00,00,000
Transferof assets.

Sale of Equity investmentin following companies Choice Finserv Private Limited 6,76,000 - - - - 6,76,000

to Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 6,76,000 : : : : 6,76,000

Choice Finserv Private Limited 4,53,43,580 - - - -  4,53,43,580 Revenuefrom Operations

Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesPrivate Limited 99,89,980 - - - : 99,89,980 Income from Business Support Services

5,53,33,560 = = = -5.53.33,560 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 2,67,55,900 - - - -  2,67,55,900
Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 9,21,700 - - - - 9,21,700

Loan Takenfrom - Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 58,15,700 - - - - _58,15,700
Kamal Poddar : ~_1,10,00,000 : ~__1,10,00,000 Choice Corporate ServicesPrivate Limited 6,17,900 - - - - 6,17,900

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 36,00,000 - - . - 36,00,000 Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 1,44,84,600 - - - -  1,44,84,600
Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 43,37,70,635 - - - - 43,37,70,635 The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - - 85,14,737 85,14,737

Choice Finserv Private Limited 21,20,92,477 - - - - 21,20,92,477 S K Patodia & Associates - - - - 1,94,92,000 1,94,92,000

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 1,00,52,965 - - - -  1,00,52,965 Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - - - 4,33,300 4,33,300

65,95,16,077 -_1,10,00,000 - - 67,05,16,077 4,85,95,800 - - -  2,84,40,037 _7,70,35,837

Loan Repaid - Interest on Loans

Kamal Poddar - - 1,10,00,000 - -  1,10,00,000 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 20,444 - - - - 20,444

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 93,69,920 - - - - 93,69,920 Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 15,83,523 - - - - 15,83,523

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 46,06,05,445 - - - - 46,06,05,445 Choice Finserv Private Limited 6,02,459 - - - - 6,02,459

Choice Finserv Private Limited 20,30,56,856 - - - - 20,30,56,856 Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - - 10,98,513 10,98,513

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 1,00,52,965 - - - -  1,00,52,965 22,06,426 - - - 10,98,513 33,04,939

68,30,85,186 - 1,10,00,000 - - 69,40,85,186
Brokerage & DP Charges

Loan Givento - Choice Equity Broking Private Limited - - - - - -

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 6,55,65,079 - - - -  6,55,65,079 - - - - - -

Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 1,43,95,713 - - - - 1,43,95,713

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 68,30,080 - - - - 68,30,080 Finance Costs

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited* 9,71,15,190 - - - -  9,71,15,190 Interest on Loans
Choice Finserv Private Limited 9,05,20,000 - - - -  9,05,20,000 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 74,10,237 - - - - 74,10,237

Choice PeersInternational Private Limited 1,29,01,689 : : : - 1,29,01,689 Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 50,054 - - - - 50,054

Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 4,52,29,786 - - - - 4,52,29,786 Choice Finserv Private Limited 1,67,39,018 - - : -  1,67,39,018

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 2,71,00,000 - - - -  2,71,00,000 Other Borrowing Costs

Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesPrivate Limited 25,50,000 - - - - 25,50,000 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited - - - : - -

Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited 3,00,452 - - - - 3,00,452 2,41,99,309 : : : -__2,41,99,309
Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - - - -

36,25,07,989 . . . - 36,25,07,989 Employee Benefit Expenses

Director Remuneration - -  42,00,000 - - 42,00,000

Loan Repaymentreceived from - Salary & Allowances

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 8,57,12,114 - - - - 8,57,12,114 Manoj Singhania . -__15,01,507 . . 15,01,507

Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 2,08,00,612 - - - -  2,08,00,612 Karishman Shah : -____9,82,879 : : 9,82,879
Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 68,30,080 : : : : 68,30,080 - -__ 66,84,386 : : 66,84,386
Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 9,71,15,190 - - - -  -9,71,15,190

Choice FinservPrivate Limited 9,05,20,000 - - - - 9,05,20,000 Other Expenses
Choice Peers International Private Limited 2,73,91,284 - - - -  .2,73,91,284 Lions Club of Mumbai Choice ° ° ° ° 50,000 50,000

Choice Techlab SolutionsPrivate Limited 6,26,78,683 - - - -  6,26,78,683 Lions Mumbai Choice Foundation : : : : 1,64,000 1,64,000
Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 4,53,25,000 - - - - 4,53,25,000 - - - : 2,14,000 2,14,000

Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesPrivate Limited 29,13,165 - - - - 29,13,165

Choice Retails Solutions Private Limited 10,00,452 - - - - 10,00,452

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - - 2,59,80,000 2,59,80,000

44,02,86,580 - - - 2,59,80,000 46,62,66,580
 

 
Advancereceived

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - - 4,10,00,000 4,10,00,000

- s : - 4,10,00,000  4,10,00,000
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED
CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
  
  
  
 

 

 
 

  

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
  
  
  

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amountin ®) (ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31,2019 (Amountin ®)

BUT STLEleLlateLord eS oy Tastes Subsidiaries Associates KMP Relative Enterprises ore]
of KMP over which(c) Coo 4) oDYCcTenalla (29)

& (d) are able &(d) are able

to exercise to exercise

Eire aieLal significant
influence influence

Balances outstanding at the end of the year Transactions
Equity investments in

Short Term Borrowings Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 3,00,00,000 - - - -  3,00,00,000
Choice Finserv Private Limited 90,35,621 . . . 7 90,35,621 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 10,00,00,000 - - - - 10,00,00,000

90,35,621 90,35,621 Choice Finserv Private Limited 2,00,00,000 - - - -  2,00,00,000

Trade receivables - Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Pvt Ltd 1,60,00,000 - - - -  1,60,00,000

- - - - — Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited 100 - - - - 100
Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 57,06,116 - - - - 57,06,116 Aqua PumpsInfra VenturesLimited - 4,97,55,000 - - -  4,97,55,000

Choice Wealth Management Private Limited 1,83,048 - - - - 1,83,048 16,60,00,100 4,97,55,000 . . - 21,57,55,100

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 1,41,752 - - - - 1,41,752

Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 1,36,764 - - - - 1,36,764 Loan Taken from -

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 19,69,938 - - - - 19,69,938 Kamal Poddar - - 9,88,46,290 - - 9,88,46,290

The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - - 23,25,991 23,25,991 Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 63,00,000 - - - - 63,00,000

S K Patodia & Associates - - - - 33,02,204 33,02,204 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 23,89,49,087 - - - - 23,89,49,087

Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - - - 1,15,188 1,15,188 Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 11,38,74,230 : : : - 11,38,74,230
81,37,618 7 7 57,43,383  1,38,81,001 35,91,23,317 - 9,88,46,290 - - 45,79,69,608

Loan Repaid -

Trade Payables Kamal Poddar - - 9,88,46,290 - -  9,88,46,290
Kamal Poddar - - 25,589 - - 25,589 Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 5,30,080 - - - - 5,30,080
Manoj Singhania . . 1,19,211 . . 1,19,211 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 23,89,49,087 - - - - 23,89,49,087

Karishma Shah : : 86,898 : - 86,898 Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 39,78,406 - - - - 39,78,406
7 -___2,31,698 : : 2,31,698 24,34,57,573 - 9,88,46,290 - - 34,23,03,863

Other Current Assets Loan Givento -

Choice Finserv Private Limited 6,76,000 - - - - 6,76,000 Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 9,42,00,000 - - - -  9,42,00,000

6,76,000 - - - - 6,76,000 Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 1,35,68,882 - - - -  1,35,68,882

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 1,32,00,000 - - - -  1,32,00,000

NonCurrent Investments Choice E-Commerce Private Limited 2,52,70,000 - - - - 2,52,70,000

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 44,14,00,000 - - - - 44,14,00,000 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited” — 21,75,93,231 - - - ~_21,75,93,231

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 5,05,00,000 - - - - 5,05,00,000 Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 5,56,34,367 . . . ~__5,56,34,367
- - - —— nar nr ChoiceFinserv Private Limited 2,00,00,000 - - - -  2,00,00,000

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 3,01,00,000 - - - - 3,01,00,000 ChoicePeers International Private Limited 80,95,000 7 7 7 7 80,95,000

Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Private Limited 1,10,88,877 - - - -  1,10,88,877 Choice Techlab SolutionsPrivate Limited 1,32,68,186 . . . -  1,32,68,186

Choice FinservPrivate Limited 15,52,56,420 - - - - 15,52,56,420 Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,85,00,000 - - - - 1,85,00,000

Choice Peers International Private Limited 10,00,000 - - - - 10,00,000 Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesPrivate Limited 3,75,000 - - - - 3,75,000

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,00,000 - - - - 1,00,000 ChoiceRetail Solutions Private Limited 7,00,000 : : : - 7,00,000
Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 1,00,000 - - - - 1,00,000 Samank ConsumerProductsPrivate Limited : : : : 6,59,80,000 _6,59,80,000

Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 75,394 - - - - 75,394 48,04,04,666 = = = 6,59,80,000 _54,63,84,666

Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited 100 - - - - 100 L .
oan Repaymentreceived from -

68,96,20,791 : : - ~_ 68,96,20,791 Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 7,51,54,001 - - - -  7,51,54,001
Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 1,12,40,896 - - - -  1,12,40,896

* Choice International Limited and Choice Equity Broking Private Limited have entered into an agreementto grant & obtain loan from each other up to Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 1,32,00,000 . . . -__1,32,00,000

amountof Rs.650,000,000/- @ 14% p.a. During the current period, the companyhas donegross transaction aggregating of Rs. 2,558,265,378/- towards Choice E-Commerce Private Limited 4,37,82,426 : : : > 4,37,82,426
paymentandRs.2,531,430,568/- towardsreceipts. Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 13,45,32,217 - - - - 13,45,32,217

* Choice International Limited and Choice Finserv Private Limited have entered into an agreementof grant & obtain loan from each other up to amount areice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 6,17,97,231 - - - ~__ 6.17,97,231
: ° : ; oice Finserv Private Limited 2,00,00,000 - - - -  2,00,00,000

of Rs. 500,000,000/- @ 14% p.a..During the current period, the companyhas donegrosstransaction aggregating of Rs. 605,686,936/- towards payment Choice P Int tional Private Limited 8.00,000 - - - - 8.00,000
: oice Peers International Private Limite 00, 100,

and Rs. 614,722,557/- towardsreceipts. Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 44,20,911 - - - - 44,20,911

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 2,75,000 - - - - 2,75,000

Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesPrivate Limited 11,835 - - - - 11,835

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - - 4,00,00,000  4,00,00,000

36,52,14,517 - - - 4,00,00,000 40,52,14,517

Revenue from Operations

Income from Business Support Services-

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 3,67,13,610 - - - -  3,67,13,610

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 1,14,37,527 - - - - 1,14,37,527

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 15,81,463 - - - - 15,81,463

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 89,49,800 - - - - 89,49,800

Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 3,48,61,489 - - - -  3,48,61,489

The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - - 85,30,954 85,30,954

S K Patodia & Associates - - - - 1,70,09,412 —1,70,09,412

9,35,43,889 - - - 2,55,40,366 11,90,84,255
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amountin 2) ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amountin 2)

Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Na Relative Enterprises Total
of KMP over which(c)

& (d) are able

Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Nate Relative Enterprises Total
of KMP over which(c)

& (d) are able

to exercise to exercise

significant
influence

significant
influence  

(ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 

  

  

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Private Limited 2,10,78,857 - - - -  2,10,78,857

Interest on Loans Choice Finserv Private Limited 2,06,00,000 - - - -  2,06,00,000

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 40,44,718 - - - - 40,44,718 Choice Peers International Private Limited 10,00,000 - - - - 10,00,000

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 6,60,925 - - - - 6,60,925 Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,00,000 - - - - 1,00,000

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - - 51,10,537 51,10,537 Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 1,00,000 - - - - 1,00,000

47,05,643 - - - 51,10,537 98,16,180 Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 75,394 - - - - 75,394

Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited 100 - - - - 100

Brokerage & DP Charges Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited - 14,87,92,305 - - - 14,87,92,305

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 21,850 - - - - 21,850 56,49,54,351  14,87,92,305 - - - 71,37,46,656

21,850 - - - - 21,850

Short Term Loans & Advances

Finance Costs Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 2,01,47,035 - - - - 2,01,47,035

Interest on Loans Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 64,04,899 - - - - 64,04,899

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 25,14,686 - - - - 25,14,686 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 8,30,61,014 - - - - 8,30,61,014

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 42,23,993 - - - - 42,23,993 Choice Peers International Private Limited 1,44,89,595 - - - - 1,44,89,595

Other Borrowing Costs Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesPrivate Limited 3,63,165 - - - - 3,63,165

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 21,116 - - - - 21,116 Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited 7,00,000 - - - - 7,00,000

67,59,795 - - - - 67,59,795 Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 1,74,48,897 - - - - 1,74,48,897

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,82,25,000 - - - - 1,82,25,000

Employee Benefit Expenses Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - 2,59,80,000 2,59,80,000

Director Remuneration - - 42,00,000 - - 42,00,000 16,08,39,605 - - - 2,59,80,000 18,68,19,605

Salary &Allowances *The Companyhas providedLine of Credit facility to Choice Equity Broking Private Limited of Rs. 250,000,000/- during the currentperiod, the company

Mano) Singhania - ~ 14,53,231 - - 14,53,231 has done grosstransactions aggregatingof Rs. 3,746,391,946/- and of Rs. 3,663,330,932/- —
Karishma Shah - - 7,76,909 - - 7,76,909
Savita Singhania . . -  3,65,176 . 3,65,176 ** The Companyhas provided Line of Credit facility to Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited of Rs. 150,000,000/- during the current period, the

: ~ 64,30,140  3,65,176 - 67,95,316 companyhas donegrosstransactions aggregating of Rs. 1,811,253,086/- and of Rs. 1,695,194,395/-.

Balances outstandingatthe end of the year 30 "The Companyvide their letter dated August 20, 2018 had requested the Reserve Bank ofIndia (RBI) for cancellation of Certificate of Registration
Trade receivables- (CoR) held in the name of the Company M/s. "" Choice International Limited "". However, the Company hadreceived instructions from the RBI to

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 77,12,050 - - - - 77,12,050 reduceits Financial Assets below 50 % of the Company's Total Assets to proceed with the surrender of NBFClicense held in the nameof the

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 34,17,171 . . . . 34,17,171 Companybefore March 31, 2019 vide their Letter dated December 21,2018.

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 6,72,391 - - - - 6,72,391 Adhering to the Instructions received from the RBI, the Company has reducedits Financial Assets below 50% ofits Total Assets before March 31,
Choice Consultancy ServicesPrivate Limited 59,81,491 . . . . 59,81,491 2019. The Companyshall now submit the auditedfinancial statements to the RBI, who may proceed with our requestfor cancellation of CoR in the

—______ nameofthe Companyorfurtherinstruct the Companyfor anyfurther action to continue with the cancellation.”
The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - - 11,724 11,724

S K Patodia & Associates - - - - 96,946 96,946 31 Pursuantto surrenderingits license. the main Business of the Companyis investing and financing to the Subsidiaries and providing support services

1,77,83,103 - - - 1,08,670  1,78,91,773 to the Group Companies. The Companyis in processof further reducing its existing investing and financing exposures to Companies other than
Subsidiaries. Furtherall activities are carried out within India. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting Standard (AS)-

Trade Payables 17 on “Segment Reporting" prescribed underSection 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, Segment Disclosure is not applicable.

Kamal Poddar - ~_3:75,050 - - 3,75,050 32 With regard to the Supreme Court judgement dated February 28, 2019 to considerall emoluments (universally, necessarily and ordinarily) as basic

Manoj Singhania . - 118,587 - - 1,18,587 wagesfor the purpose of contribution to Provident fund (PF), the Company has beenlegally advised that the judgementwill be applicable
Karishma Shah - - 55,290 - - 55,290 prospective from March 2019 and accordingly the Companyhas made additional provisionofPFliability in the books ofAccounts.

- - 5,48,927 - - 5,48,927
33. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.

Short term borrowings For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 10,98,95,824 - - - - 10,98,95,824

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 57,69,920 - - - - 57,69,920 Sd/- Sd/-

11,56,65,744 . . . > 11,56,65,744 Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

Managing Director Director

Non Current Investments (DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 39,14,00,000 - - - - 39,14,00,000

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 5,05,00,000 - - - - 5,05,00,000 Sd/- Sd/-

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 5,00,00,000 - - - -  5,00,00,000 Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah
Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 3,01,00,000 - - - - 3,01,00,000 Chief Financial Officer CompanySecretary
 

Mumbai: May 29, 2019
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(ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 

  

  

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Private Limited 2,10,78,857 - - - -  2,10,78,857

Interest on Loans Choice Finserv Private Limited 2,06,00,000 - - - -  2,06,00,000

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 40,44,718 - - - - 40,44,718 Choice Peers International Private Limited 10,00,000 - - - - 10,00,000

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 6,60,925 - - - - 6,60,925 Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,00,000 - - - - 1,00,000

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - - 51,10,537 51,10,537 Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 1,00,000 - - - - 1,00,000

47,05,643 - - - 51,10,537 98,16,180 Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 75,394 - - - - 75,394

Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited 100 - - - - 100

Brokerage & DP Charges Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited - 14,87,92,305 - - - 14,87,92,305

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 21,850 - - - - 21,850 56,49,54,351  14,87,92,305 - - - 71,37,46,656

21,850 - - - - 21,850

Short Term Loans & Advances

Finance Costs Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 2,01,47,035 - - - - 2,01,47,035

Interest on Loans Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 64,04,899 - - - - 64,04,899

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 25,14,686 - - - - 25,14,686 Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 8,30,61,014 - - - - 8,30,61,014

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 42,23,993 - - - - 42,23,993 Choice Peers International Private Limited 1,44,89,595 - - - - 1,44,89,595

Other Borrowing Costs Choice Portfolio ManagementServicesPrivate Limited 3,63,165 - - - - 3,63,165

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 21,116 - - - - 21,116 Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited 7,00,000 - - - - 7,00,000

67,59,795 - - - - 67,59,795 Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 1,74,48,897 - - - - 1,74,48,897

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 1,82,25,000 - - - - 1,82,25,000

Employee Benefit Expenses Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - 2,59,80,000 2,59,80,000

Director Remuneration - - 42,00,000 - - 42,00,000 16,08,39,605 - - - 2,59,80,000 18,68,19,605

Salary &Allowances *The Companyhas providedLine of Credit facility to Choice Equity Broking Private Limited of Rs. 250,000,000/- during the currentperiod, the company

Mano) Singhania - ~ 14,53,231 - - 14,53,231 has done grosstransactions aggregatingof Rs. 3,746,391,946/- and of Rs. 3,663,330,932/- —
Karishma Shah - - 7,76,909 - - 7,76,909
Savita Singhania . . -  3,65,176 . 3,65,176 ** The Companyhas provided Line of Credit facility to Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited of Rs. 150,000,000/- during the current period, the

: ~ 64,30,140  3,65,176 - 67,95,316 companyhas donegrosstransactions aggregating of Rs. 1,811,253,086/- and of Rs. 1,695,194,395/-.

Balances outstandingatthe end of the year 30 "The Companyvide their letter dated August 20, 2018 had requested the Reserve Bank ofIndia (RBI) for cancellation of Certificate of Registration
Trade receivables- (CoR) held in the name of the Company M/s. "" Choice International Limited "". However, the Company hadreceived instructions from the RBI to

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 77,12,050 - - - - 77,12,050 reduceits Financial Assets below 50 % of the Company's Total Assets to proceed with the surrender of NBFClicense held in the nameof the

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 34,17,171 . . . . 34,17,171 Companybefore March 31, 2019 vide their Letter dated December 21,2018.

Choice Wealth ManagementPrivate Limited 6,72,391 - - - - 6,72,391 Adhering to the Instructions received from the RBI, the Company has reducedits Financial Assets below 50% ofits Total Assets before March 31,
Choice Consultancy ServicesPrivate Limited 59,81,491 . . . . 59,81,491 2019. The Companyshall now submit the auditedfinancial statements to the RBI, who may proceed with our requestfor cancellation of CoR in the

—______ nameofthe Companyorfurtherinstruct the Companyfor anyfurther action to continue with the cancellation.”
The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - - 11,724 11,724

S K Patodia & Associates - - - - 96,946 96,946 31 Pursuantto surrenderingits license. the main Business of the Companyis investing and financing to the Subsidiaries and providing support services

1,77,83,103 - - - 1,08,670  1,78,91,773 to the Group Companies. The Companyis in processof further reducing its existing investing and financing exposures to Companies other than
Subsidiaries. Furtherall activities are carried out within India. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting Standard (AS)-

Trade Payables 17 on “Segment Reporting" prescribed underSection 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, Segment Disclosure is not applicable.

Kamal Poddar - ~_3:75,050 - - 3,75,050 32 With regard to the Supreme Court judgement dated February 28, 2019 to considerall emoluments (universally, necessarily and ordinarily) as basic

Manoj Singhania . - 118,587 - - 1,18,587 wagesfor the purpose of contribution to Provident fund (PF), the Company has beenlegally advised that the judgementwill be applicable
Karishma Shah - - 55,290 - - 55,290 prospective from March 2019 and accordingly the Companyhas made additional provisionofPFliability in the books ofAccounts.

- - 5,48,927 - - 5,48,927
33. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.

Short term borrowings For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 10,98,95,824 - - - - 10,98,95,824

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 57,69,920 - - - - 57,69,920 Sd/- Sd/-

11,56,65,744 . . . > 11,56,65,744 Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

Managing Director Director

Non Current Investments (DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 39,14,00,000 - - - - 39,14,00,000

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 5,05,00,000 - - - - 5,05,00,000 Sd/- Sd/-

Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited 5,00,00,000 - - - -  5,00,00,000 Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah
Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 3,01,00,000 - - - - 3,01,00,000 Chief Financial Officer CompanySecretary
 

Mumbai: May 29, 2019
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TO THE MEMBERSOF CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Choice International Limited (“the Holding Company”)
and its subsidiaries, (Holding Companyandits subsidiaries together
referred to as“the Group”) which includes the Group's share of loss
inits associate, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet asat

31st March 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and the

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended, anda

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and which includesjointly controlled operation of the
Group accounted on proportionatebasis.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, and other auditors on separate financial
statements jointly controlled operation, subsidiaries and associate
referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the mannerso required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as

amended (“Accounting Standards”), and other accounting principles

generally acceptedin India, of the consolidatedstate of affairs of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and their consolidated profit and their

consolidated cash flowsforthe year ended on thatdate.

BASIS FOROPINION

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statementsin
accordancewith the Standards on Auditing specified undersection
143 (10) of the Act (Sas). Our responsibilities under those Standards

are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

togetherwith the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements underthe provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we havefulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms oftheir reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs(a) and (b)
of the Other Matters section below,is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

KEYAUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of mostsignificance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. We have determined that
there are no key audit matters to be communicatedin our report.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSANDAUDITOR’S REPORTTHEREON

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the Board
Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements,

standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

The Board Report is expected to be madeavailable to us after the
date ofthis auditor's report

Ouropinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,

our responsibility is to read the other information, compare with the
financial statements of the jointly controlled operation, subsidiaries,
and associate audited by the otherauditors, to the extentit relates to

theseentities and, in doing so, place reliance on the workof the other

auditors and consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it
relates to the jointly controlled operation, subsidiaries, and associate,

is traced from their financial statements audited by the other
auditors.

When weread the Board Report, if we conclude that there is a

material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the

matter to those charged with governanceas required under SA 720
‘The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
cash flowsofthe Group includingits Associate in accordancewith the
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companiesincluded in the Group andofits associate are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisionsofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
andits associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whetherdueto fraud or error, which have been usedfor the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company,as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group andofits
associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and
of its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the managementeither intends
to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
doso.

The respective Board of Directors of the companiesincluded in the
Group and ofits associate are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group and ofits associate.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

reportthat includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordancewith SAswill always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expectedto influence the economic decisionsof users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to thoserisks,
and obtain audit evidencethatis sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatementresulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Undersection 143(3)(I) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Holding Company has adequateinternal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
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TO THE MEMBERSOF CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Choice International Limited (“the Holding Company”)
and its subsidiaries, (Holding Companyandits subsidiaries together
referred to as“the Group”) which includes the Group's share of loss
inits associate, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet asat

31st March 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and the

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended, anda

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and which includesjointly controlled operation of the
Group accounted on proportionatebasis.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, and other auditors on separate financial
statements jointly controlled operation, subsidiaries and associate
referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the mannerso required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as

amended (“Accounting Standards”), and other accounting principles

generally acceptedin India, of the consolidatedstate of affairs of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and their consolidated profit and their

consolidated cash flowsforthe year ended on thatdate.

BASIS FOROPINION

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statementsin
accordancewith the Standards on Auditing specified undersection
143 (10) of the Act (Sas). Our responsibilities under those Standards

are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

togetherwith the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements underthe provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we havefulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms oftheir reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs(a) and (b)
of the Other Matters section below,is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

KEYAUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of mostsignificance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. We have determined that
there are no key audit matters to be communicatedin our report.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSANDAUDITOR’S REPORTTHEREON

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the Board
Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements,

standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

The Board Report is expected to be madeavailable to us after the
date ofthis auditor's report

Ouropinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,

our responsibility is to read the other information, compare with the
financial statements of the jointly controlled operation, subsidiaries,
and associate audited by the otherauditors, to the extentit relates to

theseentities and, in doing so, place reliance on the workof the other

auditors and consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it
relates to the jointly controlled operation, subsidiaries, and associate,

is traced from their financial statements audited by the other
auditors.

When weread the Board Report, if we conclude that there is a

material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the

matter to those charged with governanceas required under SA 720
‘The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
cash flowsofthe Group includingits Associate in accordancewith the
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companiesincluded in the Group andofits associate are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisionsofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
andits associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whetherdueto fraud or error, which have been usedfor the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company,as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group andofits
associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and
of its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the managementeither intends
to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
doso.

The respective Board of Directors of the companiesincluded in the
Group and ofits associate are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group and ofits associate.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

reportthat includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordancewith SAswill always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expectedto influence the economic decisionsof users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to thoserisks,
and obtain audit evidencethatis sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatementresulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Undersection 143(3)(I) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Holding Company has adequateinternal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
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controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidenceobtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going
concern. If we concludethat a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusionsare based onthe audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However,future events or conditions
may cause the Group andits associate to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair
presentation.

e¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities or business activities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors. For the entities or business activities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have

been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makesit
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatementsin the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the
Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with themall relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable,related safeguards.

OTHER MATTERS

Wedid not audit the financial statementsof:

(a) a jointly controlled operation, whosefinancial statementsreflect
(in proportion to group’s share) total assets of Rs.3,012,531 as at
31st March 2019 andtotal revenue of Rs.924,440 for the year

ended on that date, as considered in the respective

standalone financial statements of a subsidiary company, and as
considered in the consolidated financial statements;

seven subsidiaries, whosefinancial statements reflect total assets

of Rs.217,805,501 as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of

Rs.160,686,057 and net cash outflows amounting to

Rs.9,319,634 for the year ended on that date, as considered in

the consolidated financial statements; and

(c) the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 1,241,099 forthe year ended

31st March, 2019, as considered in the consolidated financial

statements,in respect of one associate,

whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements,in so far asit relates

to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of said jointly

c
controlled operation, these subsidiaries, and associate, is based

solely onthe reportsofthe other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidatedfinancial statements above and our
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below,is not
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance
onthe work doneby otherauditors.

REPORTON OTHER LEGALAND REGULATORYREQUIREMENTS

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and

on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the
separate financial statements jointly controlled operations,
subsidiaries, and associate referred to in the Other Matters

section above wereport, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations whichto the best of our knowledgeandbelief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, returns and the reports of the other

auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of

Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statementdealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements

comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Companyas on 31st March, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and,
subsidiary companies and associate company none of the
directors of the Group companies and its associate company
incorporatedin India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to ourseparate Report in “Annexure A” whichis
based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding company,
subsidiary companies and associate company companies

incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be includedin the Auditor's
Report in accordancewith the requirements of section 197(16) of

the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Companyto its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's
Report in accordancewith Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amendedin our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of
pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of
the Group andits associate;

ii) The Group and its associate did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii) There has been no delayin transferring amounts, required to
be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

by the Holding Companyandits subsidiary companies and
associate company companiesincorporatedin India.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

Sd/-
Shrenik Baid

Partner

(Membership No. 103884)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2019

Consolidated Audit Report

ANNEXURE“A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Choice International Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting underClause(i) of Sub-section 3

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Companyas of and for the year ended March 31,2019, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Choice International Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its
subsidiary companies, which are companiesincorporatedin India, as
of that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL
FINANCIALCONTROLS

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding companyandits
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on theinternal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential
componentsofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the

respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on theinternal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company,its
subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are
companiesincorporatedin India, based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing proceduresto obtain audit evidence
about the adequacyof the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessedrisk. The proceduresselected
depend onthe auditor's judgement, including the assessmentof the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

dueto fraud or error.

Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporatedin India, in terms of
their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below,is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system overfinancial reporting of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companiesincorporatedin India.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

OVERFINANCIALREPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
proceduresthat (1) pertain to the maintenance of recordsthat, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLSOVERFINANCIAL REPORTING

Becauseofthe inherentlimitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
managementoverride of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periodsare subjectto the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporatedin India, have,in all

material respects, an adequateinternal financial controls system over
financial reporting and suchinternal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

OTHER MATTERS

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(I) of the Act on the

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to seven
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporatedin India,is
based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companiesincorporatedin India.

A jointly controlled operation of the Company, which is not a
Company incorporated in India, to whom reporting on internal
financial controls system over financial reporting is not applicable
and hencenoreporting under theinternal financial controls system
overfinancial reporting has been made.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

Shrenik Baid
(Membership No. 103884)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2019
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controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidenceobtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going
concern. If we concludethat a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusionsare based onthe audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However,future events or conditions
may cause the Group andits associate to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair
presentation.

e¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities or business activities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors. For the entities or business activities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have

been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makesit
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatementsin the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the
Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with themall relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable,related safeguards.

OTHER MATTERS

Wedid not audit the financial statementsof:

(a) a jointly controlled operation, whosefinancial statementsreflect
(in proportion to group’s share) total assets of Rs.3,012,531 as at
31st March 2019 andtotal revenue of Rs.924,440 for the year

ended on that date, as considered in the respective

standalone financial statements of a subsidiary company, and as
considered in the consolidated financial statements;

seven subsidiaries, whosefinancial statements reflect total assets

of Rs.217,805,501 as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of

Rs.160,686,057 and net cash outflows amounting to

Rs.9,319,634 for the year ended on that date, as considered in

the consolidated financial statements; and

(c) the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 1,241,099 forthe year ended

31st March, 2019, as considered in the consolidated financial

statements,in respect of one associate,

whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements,in so far asit relates

to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of said jointly

c
controlled operation, these subsidiaries, and associate, is based

solely onthe reportsofthe other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidatedfinancial statements above and our
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below,is not
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance
onthe work doneby otherauditors.

REPORTON OTHER LEGALAND REGULATORYREQUIREMENTS

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and

on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the
separate financial statements jointly controlled operations,
subsidiaries, and associate referred to in the Other Matters

section above wereport, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations whichto the best of our knowledgeandbelief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, returns and the reports of the other

auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of

Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statementdealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements

comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Companyas on 31st March, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and,
subsidiary companies and associate company none of the
directors of the Group companies and its associate company
incorporatedin India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to ourseparate Report in “Annexure A” whichis
based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding company,
subsidiary companies and associate company companies

incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be includedin the Auditor's
Report in accordancewith the requirements of section 197(16) of

the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Companyto its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's
Report in accordancewith Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amendedin our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of
pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of
the Group andits associate;

ii) The Group and its associate did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii) There has been no delayin transferring amounts, required to
be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

by the Holding Companyandits subsidiary companies and
associate company companiesincorporatedin India.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

Sd/-
Shrenik Baid

Partner

(Membership No. 103884)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2019
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ANNEXURE“A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Choice International Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting underClause(i) of Sub-section 3

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Companyas of and for the year ended March 31,2019, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Choice International Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its
subsidiary companies, which are companiesincorporatedin India, as
of that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL
FINANCIALCONTROLS

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding companyandits
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on theinternal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential
componentsofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the

respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on theinternal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company,its
subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are
companiesincorporatedin India, based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing proceduresto obtain audit evidence
about the adequacyof the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessedrisk. The proceduresselected
depend onthe auditor's judgement, including the assessmentof the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

dueto fraud or error.

Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporatedin India, in terms of
their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below,is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system overfinancial reporting of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companiesincorporatedin India.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

OVERFINANCIALREPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
proceduresthat (1) pertain to the maintenance of recordsthat, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLSOVERFINANCIAL REPORTING

Becauseofthe inherentlimitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
managementoverride of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periodsare subjectto the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporatedin India, have,in all

material respects, an adequateinternal financial controls system over
financial reporting and suchinternal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

OTHER MATTERS

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(I) of the Act on the

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to seven
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporatedin India,is
based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companiesincorporatedin India.

A jointly controlled operation of the Company, which is not a
Company incorporated in India, to whom reporting on internal
financial controls system over financial reporting is not applicable
and hencenoreporting under theinternal financial controls system
overfinancial reporting has been made.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

Shrenik Baid
(Membership No. 103884)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2019
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Particulars

| Equity & Liabilities

As at March 31, 2019

Consolidated Financials

(Amountin @)

As at March 31, 2018

 

 
1. Shareholders’ funds 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

(a) Share Capital 2 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 1,46,59,94,242 1,46,17,92,196

1,66,60,42,242 1,66,18,40,196
2. Non - CurrentLiabilities
(a) Long -Term Borrowings 4 4,39,85,840 4,93,59,116

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 3,73,00,000 3,02,06,676

(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 6 2,49,46,438 1,43,24,702

(d) Long - Term Provisions 7 1,47,12,626 96,95,835

12,09,44,904 10,35,86,329
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Short - Term Borrowings 8 1,61,06,59,147 1,68,67,00,690

(b) Trade Payables 9

(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 6,13,589 4,85,930

(ii) Others 9,15,66,878 9,80,75,172

(c) Other Current Liabilities 10 1,15,37,01,609 69,96,53,650

(d) Short - Term Provisions 11 1,01,62,404 3,32,22,354

2,86,67,03,627 2,51,81,37,796

TOTAL 4,65,36,90,773 4,28,35,64,321

Il Assets

1. Non - Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 12
(i) Tangible assets (Net) 84,71,37,365 76,42,17,608

(ii) Intangible assets (Net) 13,43,64,080 1,33,57,744

(iii) Intangible assets under development 24,42,719 4,19,70,517
98,39,44,164 81,95,45,869

(b) Goodwill on Consolidation 2,95,266 2,95,266

(c) Non - Current Investments 13 23,49,79,715 46,64,22,638

(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 14 34,81,500 40,13,762

(e) Long - Term Loans and Advances 15 10,02,04,527 8,32,13,604

(f) Other Non - Current Assets 16 27,43,054 30,23,963

1,32,56,48,226 1,37,65,15,102
2. Current Assets

(a) Inventories 17 24,95,24,673 17,46,60,044
(b) Trade Receivables (Net) 18 66,98,35,397 1,16,71,93,480
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 19 24,23,09,318 62,01,93,418
(d) Short - Term Loans and Advances 20 1,88,13,56,529 87,63,25,182
(e) Other Current Assets 21 28,50,16,630 6,86,77,095

3,32,80,42,547 2,90.70,.49,219
TOTAL 4,65,36,90,773 4.28,.35,64,321

Notes 1 to 42 forms part of Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018

Sd/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

Sd/-
Shrenik Baid

Partner

Mem.No. :103884

Mumbai: May 29,2018

Managing Director Director
(DIN-01518700)

Sd/- Sd/-
Manoj Singhania
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai: May 29, 2019

(DIN-03051841)

Karishma Shah
CompanySecretary
Mumbai: May 29, 2019
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(a) Share Capital 2 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 1,46,59,94,242 1,46,17,92,196

1,66,60,42,242 1,66,18,40,196
2. Non - CurrentLiabilities
(a) Long -Term Borrowings 4 4,39,85,840 4,93,59,116

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 3,73,00,000 3,02,06,676

(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 6 2,49,46,438 1,43,24,702

(d) Long - Term Provisions 7 1,47,12,626 96,95,835

12,09,44,904 10,35,86,329
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Short - Term Borrowings 8 1,61,06,59,147 1,68,67,00,690

(b) Trade Payables 9

(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 6,13,589 4,85,930

(ii) Others 9,15,66,878 9,80,75,172

(c) Other Current Liabilities 10 1,15,37,01,609 69,96,53,650

(d) Short - Term Provisions 11 1,01,62,404 3,32,22,354

2,86,67,03,627 2,51,81,37,796

TOTAL 4,65,36,90,773 4,28,35,64,321

Il Assets

1. Non - Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 12
(i) Tangible assets (Net) 84,71,37,365 76,42,17,608

(ii) Intangible assets (Net) 13,43,64,080 1,33,57,744

(iii) Intangible assets under development 24,42,719 4,19,70,517
98,39,44,164 81,95,45,869

(b) Goodwill on Consolidation 2,95,266 2,95,266

(c) Non - Current Investments 13 23,49,79,715 46,64,22,638

(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 14 34,81,500 40,13,762

(e) Long - Term Loans and Advances 15 10,02,04,527 8,32,13,604

(f) Other Non - Current Assets 16 27,43,054 30,23,963

1,32,56,48,226 1,37,65,15,102
2. Current Assets

(a) Inventories 17 24,95,24,673 17,46,60,044
(b) Trade Receivables (Net) 18 66,98,35,397 1,16,71,93,480
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 19 24,23,09,318 62,01,93,418
(d) Short - Term Loans and Advances 20 1,88,13,56,529 87,63,25,182
(e) Other Current Assets 21 28,50,16,630 6,86,77,095

3,32,80,42,547 2,90.70,.49,219
TOTAL 4,65,36,90,773 4.28,.35,64,321

Notes 1 to 42 forms part of Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018

Sd/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

Sd/-
Shrenik Baid

Partner

Mem.No. :103884

Mumbai: May 29,2018

Managing Director Director
(DIN-01518700)

Sd/- Sd/-
Manoj Singhania
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai: May 29, 2019

(DIN-03051841)

Karishma Shah
CompanySecretary
Mumbai: May 29, 2019
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CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Amountin @)

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 
  
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOFPROFIT AND LOSS (Amountin @) A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Netprofit before extra-ordinary items and tax 4,52,13,288 15,75,76,379

Particulars Neyt= For the year ended For the year ended Adjustmentsusiments for Amovisai 3.58.35.915 0 7702.718
No. epreciation and Amortisation 798,35, 17,02,

WeeeA WUT AE) Finance costs 20,31,81,188 20,56,07,202
| Revenue from Operations 22 1,27,05,89,165 1,42,92,82,311 Balanceswritten off 11,47,781 14,76,290
Il Other Income 23 4,35,02,247 8,95,16,779 Lossonsale of Property, Plant & Equipment 9,53,872 -
Ill Total Revenue(I + Il) 1,31,40,91,412 Provision for Standard loan assets (79,000) 908

1.51,.87.99.090 Provision for Gratuity 1,05,396 13,63,873

IV Expenses a Profit on sale of Investments 1,25,29,797 39,23,080

Purchases 24 27,04,00,208 30,83,06,316 interest income Bayoo) (2,02,63,945)
Changesin Inventories 25 (7,48,64,629) (8,33,84,520) On. at  rofitb fore Working Capital ch x 84 15 oe (1,00,47,937)

Operating Expenses 26 21,82,55,561 29,77,27,700 Ceeeee apt changes ceed 36,73,38,568
Employee Benefits Expenses a oeeaaeons “Oe - (Increase) in Trade Receivables 49,62,10,304 (4,04,27,045)
ForesCont mortsation 38 2031811 88 20.56.07202 - (Increase) in loans & advances and assets (Current & Non Current) (1,23,16,64,583) (45,00,44,147)

inance Costs apie fs a WONT: - (Increase) in Inventories (7,48,64,629) (8,33,84,520)
Other Expenses 29 196,56,3 20,36,64,111 - Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables & provisions (Current & Non Current) (99,46,825) 5,49,00,721
Total Expenses 1,26,88,78,124 1,36,12,22,711 - Increase in Otherliabilities (Current & Non Current) 47,33,29,636 23,30,11,591

_ Cash generated from operations (8,85,20,804) 8,13,95,168
V_ Profit Before Tax(III-IV) 4,52,13,288 15,75,76,379 Incometax paid (Net) (3,16,22,393) (4,07,80,832)

VI Tax Expense: Net cash flow from/(usedin) from Operating Activities (12,01,43,197) 4,06,14,336
(a) Current Tax Expense 1,48,06,415 5,48,14,125

(b) Earlier Years Tax Expense (1,02,84,872) 43,82,612 B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
(c) MAT Credit (2,52,560) (1,21,28,670) Interest received 3,32,60,380 2,03,53,621

(d) Deferred Tax 76,25,586 (98,29,937) Dividend Income 10,37,500 1,00,47,937
1,18,94,569 3,72,38,130 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment(including CWIP) (20,11,99,864) (5,45,78,187)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 90,780 3,092
VII Profit After Tax (V-VI) 3,33,18,719 12,03,38,249 Sale/(Purchase) of Investments in other companies 5,35,05,000 (20,07,35,322)

Sale of Investment in Associates 14,88,21,250 -
VIII Share of Profit in Associates (12,12,154) 21,00,552 Movementin other bank balances (net) (Earmarked and Lien) 27,11,01,669 2,27,192

IX Loss on Disposal of Associate 2,79,04,519 . Net cash flow (used in) Investing Activities 30,66,16,715 (22,46,81,668)

X Profit for the Year (VII+VIII+IX) 42,02,046 12,2438,801 C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
30 Securities Premium on Equity Shares a 30,00,00,000

: ; Financecosts paid (21,18,41,128) (19,57,21,714)XI E Per E hare (Face Value 10 P Pp wheShare) er Equity Share (Face Value 10 Per oer 654 Dividend & dividend distribution tax paid - (10,19,182)
~ : : Movementin borrowings from related parties (Short-Term and Long-Term) 1,41,220 1,85,12,426(1) Basic (2) 0.21 6.02 g p g

(2) Diluted @) : : Movementin borrowings from others (Short-Term and Long-Term) (8,15,56,040) 27,00,46,770

Netcash flow from Financing Activities (29,32,55,948) 39,18,18,301

MoresTt42 formspart of Consolidated Financial Netincrease/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (10,67,82,430) 20,77,50,969
nts.

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,29,19,536 3,52,75,207
In termsof our report attached Add - On Purchaseof Subsidiary - 79,776

Less- On Sale of Subsidiary : 1,86,415
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,61,37,106 24,29,19,536

Components of Cash and Bank Balances
Cash in Hand 1,92,827 2,/3,128
Chequesin Hand 5,35,05,000 -
Balance with Banks 8,24,39,279 24.26 46 408

Total(a) 13,61,37,106 24,29,19,536

Other Bank Balances
In Term deposits (under Lien) 10,53,62,334 37,63,86,495
In Earmarked accounts 8,09,878 8,87,386
Total(b) 10,61,72,212 37,72,73,881

Cash andBankBalances(Total(a)+Total(b)) (Refer Note 19) 24,23,09,318 62,01,93,418

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors Note:- The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared underthe ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow
Chartered Accountants Statements notified under the Companies EActounting Standards) Rules, 2006.
F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018 Notes 1 to 42 formspart of Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sd/- Sd/- . In terms of our report attached.

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Managing Director Director Chartered Accountants

(DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841) F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018 Sd/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

Sd/- Managing Director Director
Shrenik Baid Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- (DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)

Partner Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah Shrenik Baid Sd/- Sd/-
Mem.No. :103884 Chief Financial Officer CompanySecretary Partner Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah

Mem.No. :103884

Mumbai: May 29, 2019
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai: May 29, 2019

Mumbai: May 29, 2019 Mumbai: May 29, 2019 Mumbai: May 29, 2019 CompanySecretary
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOFPROFIT AND LOSS (Amountin @) A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Netprofit before extra-ordinary items and tax 4,52,13,288 15,75,76,379

Particulars Neyt= For the year ended For the year ended Adjustmentsusiments for Amovisai 3.58.35.915 0 7702.718
No. epreciation and Amortisation 798,35, 17,02,

WeeeA WUT AE) Finance costs 20,31,81,188 20,56,07,202
| Revenue from Operations 22 1,27,05,89,165 1,42,92,82,311 Balanceswritten off 11,47,781 14,76,290
Il Other Income 23 4,35,02,247 8,95,16,779 Lossonsale of Property, Plant & Equipment 9,53,872 -
Ill Total Revenue(I + Il) 1,31,40,91,412 Provision for Standard loan assets (79,000) 908

1.51,.87.99.090 Provision for Gratuity 1,05,396 13,63,873

IV Expenses a Profit on sale of Investments 1,25,29,797 39,23,080

Purchases 24 27,04,00,208 30,83,06,316 interest income Bayoo) (2,02,63,945)
Changesin Inventories 25 (7,48,64,629) (8,33,84,520) On. at  rofitb fore Working Capital ch x 84 15 oe (1,00,47,937)

Operating Expenses 26 21,82,55,561 29,77,27,700 Ceeeee apt changes ceed 36,73,38,568
Employee Benefits Expenses a oeeaaeons “Oe - (Increase) in Trade Receivables 49,62,10,304 (4,04,27,045)
ForesCont mortsation 38 2031811 88 20.56.07202 - (Increase) in loans & advances and assets (Current & Non Current) (1,23,16,64,583) (45,00,44,147)

inance Costs apie fs a WONT: - (Increase) in Inventories (7,48,64,629) (8,33,84,520)
Other Expenses 29 196,56,3 20,36,64,111 - Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables & provisions (Current & Non Current) (99,46,825) 5,49,00,721
Total Expenses 1,26,88,78,124 1,36,12,22,711 - Increase in Otherliabilities (Current & Non Current) 47,33,29,636 23,30,11,591

_ Cash generated from operations (8,85,20,804) 8,13,95,168
V_ Profit Before Tax(III-IV) 4,52,13,288 15,75,76,379 Incometax paid (Net) (3,16,22,393) (4,07,80,832)

VI Tax Expense: Net cash flow from/(usedin) from Operating Activities (12,01,43,197) 4,06,14,336
(a) Current Tax Expense 1,48,06,415 5,48,14,125

(b) Earlier Years Tax Expense (1,02,84,872) 43,82,612 B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
(c) MAT Credit (2,52,560) (1,21,28,670) Interest received 3,32,60,380 2,03,53,621

(d) Deferred Tax 76,25,586 (98,29,937) Dividend Income 10,37,500 1,00,47,937
1,18,94,569 3,72,38,130 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment(including CWIP) (20,11,99,864) (5,45,78,187)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 90,780 3,092
VII Profit After Tax (V-VI) 3,33,18,719 12,03,38,249 Sale/(Purchase) of Investments in other companies 5,35,05,000 (20,07,35,322)

Sale of Investment in Associates 14,88,21,250 -
VIII Share of Profit in Associates (12,12,154) 21,00,552 Movementin other bank balances (net) (Earmarked and Lien) 27,11,01,669 2,27,192

IX Loss on Disposal of Associate 2,79,04,519 . Net cash flow (used in) Investing Activities 30,66,16,715 (22,46,81,668)

X Profit for the Year (VII+VIII+IX) 42,02,046 12,2438,801 C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
30 Securities Premium on Equity Shares a 30,00,00,000

: ; Financecosts paid (21,18,41,128) (19,57,21,714)XI E Per E hare (Face Value 10 P Pp wheShare) er Equity Share (Face Value 10 Per oer 654 Dividend & dividend distribution tax paid - (10,19,182)
~ : : Movementin borrowings from related parties (Short-Term and Long-Term) 1,41,220 1,85,12,426(1) Basic (2) 0.21 6.02 g p g

(2) Diluted @) : : Movementin borrowings from others (Short-Term and Long-Term) (8,15,56,040) 27,00,46,770

Netcash flow from Financing Activities (29,32,55,948) 39,18,18,301

MoresTt42 formspart of Consolidated Financial Netincrease/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (10,67,82,430) 20,77,50,969
nts.

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,29,19,536 3,52,75,207
In termsof our report attached Add - On Purchaseof Subsidiary - 79,776

Less- On Sale of Subsidiary : 1,86,415
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,61,37,106 24,29,19,536

Components of Cash and Bank Balances
Cash in Hand 1,92,827 2,/3,128
Chequesin Hand 5,35,05,000 -
Balance with Banks 8,24,39,279 24.26 46 408

Total(a) 13,61,37,106 24,29,19,536

Other Bank Balances
In Term deposits (under Lien) 10,53,62,334 37,63,86,495
In Earmarked accounts 8,09,878 8,87,386
Total(b) 10,61,72,212 37,72,73,881

Cash andBankBalances(Total(a)+Total(b)) (Refer Note 19) 24,23,09,318 62,01,93,418

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors Note:- The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared underthe ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow
Chartered Accountants Statements notified under the Companies EActounting Standards) Rules, 2006.
F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018 Notes 1 to 42 formspart of Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sd/- Sd/- . In terms of our report attached.

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Managing Director Director Chartered Accountants

(DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841) F.R.No. : 117366W/W-100018 Sd/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal

Sd/- Managing Director Director
Shrenik Baid Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- (DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)

Partner Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah Shrenik Baid Sd/- Sd/-
Mem.No. :103884 Chief Financial Officer CompanySecretary Partner Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah

Mem.No. :103884

Mumbai: May 29, 2019
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai: May 29, 2019

Mumbai: May 29, 2019 Mumbai: May 29, 2019 Mumbai: May 29, 2019 CompanySecretary
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Consolidated Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE1: SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

Background

Choice International Limited (“CIL" / the “Company”) is

incorporated in India as a public limited company and

registered with Reserve Bank of India as Non-Deposit Taking

Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Services

Company. The Company is engagedin financial services

business comprising of lending, investments and advisory

services.

Choice International Ltd. ("the holding company"), including

its subsidiary companies and associate, providesserviceslike

Broking & Distribution, Investment Banking, Financial

services to Business Advisory, Regulatory Compliances to

Government authorities & other corporate entities, Retail

Loan distribution, Mutual Fund distribution, technical

services and other ancillary services.

A. Basis of Consolidation

(i) The consolidated financial statements relate to Choice

International Ltd. ("the holding company") , its subsidiary

companies and associate, which together constitute the

group.

(ii) The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) of the Group

have been prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India(Indian GAAP) to
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") and

Guidelines issued by Reserve Bankof India. The CFS have
been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
conversion. The accounting policies adopted in the
preparationofthe financials Statements are consistent.

(iii) The Group adopts the accrual conceptin the preparation of
the accounts. The preparation of CFS requires the
Managementto make estimates & assumptions considered
in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including

contingentliabilities) as of date of the CFS and the reported
income and expenses during the reporting period.
Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the CFS are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Any changes in
estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future

C List of Consolidating Entities

period.

B_ Principles of consolidation

(i) The financial statements of the Company and its
Subsidiaries have been consolidated as a single
economic entity to show the economic resources
controlled bythe Group and then ona line-by-line basis
by adding together the book values of like items of
assets,liabilities, income and expenses,after eliminating

intra-group balances and unrealised profit/(losses) on
intra-group transactions and are presentedto the extent
possible, in the same manner as the Company's
Standalone Financial Statements.

(ii) The Accounting Policies of the Consolidation Entities

(note 1C) have been adjusted as necessary so as to
ensure consistent accounting within the Group.

(iii) The difference between the cost of investment in the

subsidiary, over the net assets at the time of acquisition
of shares in the subsidiary is recognized in the
consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital
Reserve as the case may be.

(iv) Investment in associate company has been accounted
for by using the equity method, whereby an investmentis
initially recoreded at cost and the carrying amountis
adjusted thereafter for post-acquistion change in the
Group's share of net assets of the associate comapnies.
The carrying amount of the investment in associate
companyis reduced to recognise any decline in value if
any, is made for each investement individually. The
unrealised profits/losses on transactions with associate
company are eliminated by adjusting the carrying
amountof investments.

(v) The accounts of the Companyreflect its share of the
Assets,Liabilities, Income and Expenditureofthe Jointly
controlled operations which are accounted onthe basis
of the audited accounts of the Joint ventures on line-by-
line basis with similar items in the Company's accounts to
the extent of the participating interest of the Company as
per the Joint Venture Agreements.

(vi) The financial statements of the subsidiaries, jointly
controlled operations and associate used in the
consolidated Financial Statements are drawn up to the
samereporting date as that of the Company.i.e. March
31,2019.

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements consist of the Companyand the following entities:

Nameofthe Entity

Subsidiaries

Country of Ownership as on

Incorporation March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Choice Capital Advisors Pvt. Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Equity Broking Pvt. Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Merchandise Broking Pvt. Ltd.(merged with CEBPL)* India 0.00% 100.00%

Choice Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Wealth ManagementPvt.Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Pvt. Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Peers International Pvt. Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Finserv Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Techlab Solutions Pvt Ltd India 100.00% 100.00%

Choice Retail Solutions Pvt Ltd India - 100.00%

Associates India 100.00% :
Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited**

Jointly Controlled Operations India 0.00% 39.35%

Thought Consultants Jaipur P Lin JV with Choice Consultancy

Services P L India 50.00% 50.00% 

CHUICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

*The Board of Directors of Choice Equity Broking Private

Limited("CEBPL") and Choice Merchandise Broking Private

Limited (“CMBPL") (both being wholly owned subsidiaries of

Choice International Limited (CIL)) at their meeting held on

December8, 2017 (for CEBPLand CMBPL)and February 12,2018

(for CIL) had approved, the merger of CMBPL, on an ongoing

basis into CEBPL, pursuantto andin termsof the provisionsof the

Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from

time totime.

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) of Mumbai

Bench,vide its order dated September 06, 2018 approved the

Scheme(Order) with an appointed date of April 01,2017. In terms

of the Scheme, CMBPL & CEBPLfiled Form No. INC-28 along with

copy of the Order with the office of ROC, Mumbai. The ROC

approval was received on October 01, 2018 and October 15,

2018 respectively post which the Scheme cameinto effect.

**During the year the company has sold its investment in

associate.

D_ Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in

conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to

make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent

liabilities) and the reported income and expensesduring the

year. The Managementbelieves that the estimates used in

preparation of the consolidated financial statements are

prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to

these estimates and the differences between the actual

results and the estimates are recognized in the periodsin

whichthe results are known materialize.

E  Cashand cash Equivalents

Cash comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with

banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances, highly

liquid investments that are readily convertible in cash and

which are are subjectedto insignificant risk of changein value

F Cash flowstatement

Cashflow are reported using the indirect method, whereby

profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of the

transactions on non-cash nature and anydeferrals or accruals

of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow

from operating, investing and financing activities of the

companyare segregated basedon available information.

For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash

equivalents includes fixed deposits which are freely

remissible but excludes interest accrued on fixed deposits.

G_ Inventories

Inventories of shares and securities are valued at cost (on

FIFO basis) or the net realisable whicheveris lower by taking

the value ofall the scripts of the shares cummulatively. Cost

includesall incidental cost of acquisition.

H_ Revenuerecognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that

economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue

can bereliably measured. In addition, the following criteria

mustbe metbefore revenueis recognized:

(i) Interest and other dues on Lending is recognized on

Consolidated Financials

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

accrual basis, except in case of Non-Performing Assets

(NPA‘s), wherein incomeis recognized on realisation of the

same. NPA‘s are determined in accordance with the

Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank ofIndia.

(ii) Income on services provided in the nature of Business

Support Services ("BSS") is recognized on an accrual basis

on completion of services as enumerated in the BSS policy

of the Company.

(iii) Profit or Loss on sale of investments is determined based on

weighted averagecost of investments and is recognized on

trade datebasis.

(iv) Interest on fixed deposits and other income are recognized

onaccrual basis.

(v) Dividend income is recognized once the unconditional

rightto receive dividend is established.

(vi) Brokerage incomein relation to stock broking activity is

recognised ontrade datebasis.

(vii) Gain/Losses on dealing in securities are recongnised on

trade date basis.

(viii) Incomefrom servicesin the nature of Advisory services and

other services fee based income is recognised on an

accrual basis on completion of services as enumeratedin

the milestone specified in the relevant contracts entered

with / work orders issued by the respectiveclients.

(ix) Revenue on time and material contracts are recognized as

related services are performed and revenuefrom the end of

the last billing to the Balance sheet date is recognized as

unbilled revenue.

| Employee benefits

(i) Short-term: Short-term employee benefits are

recognised as an expenseat the undiscounted amount

expected to be paid overthe period of services rendered

by the employees to the Company. TheseincludesSalary,

Compensated leave encashment, Bonus,etc."

(ii) Long-term: The Companyhasboth defined-contribution

and defined-benefit plans. The defined contribution

plans are financed by the company and in the case of

some defined contribution plans by the Company along

with its employees.

- Defined-contribution Plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the

cost of providing benefits is determined using the

Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations

being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial

gains and losses are recognised in the Statementof Profit

and Loss in the period in which they occur. Past service

cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the

benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on

a straight-line basis over the average period until the

benefits become vested. The retirement benefit

obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents

the present value of the defined benefit obligation as

adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced

by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting

from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus

the present value of available refunds and reductionsin

future contributions to the schemes."
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- Defined-benefit Plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the

cost of providing benefits is determined using the

Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations

being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial

gains and losses are recognisedin the StatementofProfit

and Lossin the period in which they occur. Past service

cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the

benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on

a straight-line basis over the average period until the

benefits become vested. The retirement benefit

obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents

the present value of the defined benefit obligation as

adjusted for unrecognisedpast service cost, as reduced

by the fair value of schemeassets. Any asset resulting

from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus

the presentvalue of available refunds and reductionsin

future contributions to the schemes.

Finance Cost

Interest cost is recognised as expensesin the period in

which the cost is incurred. Other finance Charges

includes origination fees and other ancillary costs with

respect to funds mobilised by the Company which are

amortised overthe tenure of such borrowings

Earningsper share

Basic earnings pershareis calculated by dividing the Net

Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company by weighted average

numberof equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the

Net Profits / (Loss) for the period attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company by weighted average

number of equity shares determined by assuming

conversion on exercise of conversion rights for all

potential dilutive securities.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation has been provided on the straight-line

methodas perthe useful life prescribed in Schedule II to

the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of computer

software which are amortized overa period offive years

exceptCIL, in which computer softwares are amortised

over a period of 6.17 year and Software developed and

used in CEBPLis amortised over a period of 10 years,in

accordance with the Accounting Standard 26

"Accounting for Intangible Assets". Depreciation on

addition to fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis

from the date of addition.

The estimated useful life of intangible assets and the

amortization period are reviewed at the end of each

financial year and amortization method is revised to

reflect the changed pattern. Goodwill arised on

acquisition of Business from other entities are being

amortise over a period of 5 Year.

M Property, Plant & Equipment

Tangible assets

Property, Plant & Equipment are carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairmentlosses,if any.

The costof Property, Plant & Equipmentincludesinterest

on borrowingsattributable to acquisition of qualifying

Property, Plant & Equipment up to the date the assetis

readyforits intended use and other incidental expenses

incurred up to that date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized whenit is probable that

the future economic benefits that are attributable to the

assetswill flow to the enterprise and thecostof the assets

can be measuredreliably. Intangible assets are carried at

cost less accumulated amortization and impairment

losses,if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprisesits

purchaseprice, including any import duties and other

taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from

the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable

expenditure on making the asset ready forits intended

use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Revaluation ofAssets:

Land is accounted for using revaluation model as per

Revised Accounting Standard - 10. The fair value of the

Company's freehold land as at March 31, 2018 have been

arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by an

independent registered appraiser not related to the

Company with appropriate qualifications and relevant

experience in the valuation of land at relevant locations.

The Fair value was determined based on a Sales

Comparison Method. Revaluation Surplus is credited to

revaluation surplus in Shareholder’s equity.

Subsequently, such Land will be carried at fair value

based on periodic valuations by an independent

registered appraiser.

N Accounting forTaxes on income

Current tax is the amountof tax payable on the taxable

incomefor the year as determined in accordance with the

provisions of the IncomeTax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with

the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the

form of adjustment to future incometax liability, is

considered as an assetif there is convincing evidencethat

the Companywill pay normal income tax. Accordingly,

MATis recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet when

it is probable that future economic benefit associated

withit will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences, being

the differences between the taxable income and the

accounting incomethat originate in one period and are

capable of reversal in one or more subsequentperiods.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax

laws enacted or substantially enacted as at the reporting

date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing

differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed

depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognized

only if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient

future taxable income available to realise such assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for timing differences

of other itemsonly to the extent that reasonable certainty

exists that sufficient future taxable income will be

available against which these can be realised. Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to

taxes on incomelevied by the same governing tax laws

and the Companyhasa legally enforceable right for such

set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance

Sheetdatefor their realisability.

O Provision and Contingencies

A Provision is recognised when the Company has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a

past event andit is probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of

which reliable estimate can be made.A disclosure for a

contingentliability is made when there is a possible

obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably

will not, require an outflow of resources. Wherethereis a

possible obligation or a present obligation but the

likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision

or disclosure as specified in Accounting Standard 29 -

“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets” is made. Contingent Assets are neither

recognised nor disclosed in the Standalone Financial

Statements.

P_ Provisioning under Prudential Norms

(i) NPAs are identified and categorised according to the

Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Provisions are made against sub-standard, doubtful and

loss assets at the rates prescribed in the RBI guidelines,

unless an accelerated provision / write-off is warranted on

a case to case basis where additional risks are identified

bythe Management

(ii) Provisioning for NPAs is dependent upon,inter alia,

whether the NPA is secured or unsecured. Loans are

considered as secured, where the Company hasvalid

recourse to assets / recovery by Pledge of shares, units,

othersecurities.

(iii) Provision for Standard Assets is made at 0.25% on the

outstanding standard assets in accordance with RBI

guidelines.

(iv) Impairment in the investment portfolio is provided , as

per the Guidelines issued by the RBI, unless an

accelerated provision / write-off is warranted on a case to

case basis.

Q Investments

Investments, whichare readily realizable and intended to

be held for not more than oneyear from the date on which

such investments are made, are classified as current

investments, all other investments are classified as non-

current investments. Investments are valued in

accordance with the RBI guidelines and Accounting

Standard-13 on “Accounting for investments”.

Long-term investments (excluding investment

properties), are carried individually at cost less provision

for diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such

investments.

Quoted current investments are valued at lower of cost

and market value of investments on a category basis.

Unquotedcurrent investments are valued at lowerof cost

and breakup value/fair value of investments in

accordancewith RBI Guidelines"

Impairmentof assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at

each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment.If

any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable

amountof such assets is estimated and impairmentis

recognized, if the carrying amount of these assets

exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable

amountis the greater of the netselling price and their

value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the

future cash flows to their present value based on an

appropriate discountfactor. Whenthereis indication that

an impairment loss recognized for an asset in earlier

accounting periods no longer exists or may have

decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is

recognized in the Statementof Profit and Loss, exceptin

case of revaluedassets.

Foreign CurrencyTransactions

(i) Foreign currencytransactions and balances

"Initial Recognition

Foreign currencytransactionsare recordedattherates of

exchange prevailing on the date of the transactions.

Conversion

Foreign Currency monetary items are restated using the

exchangerate prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign

Currency non-monetary items, which are measured in

termsof historical cost, are reported using the exchange

rate at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Exchange Differences

Foreign Currency Short-Term Monetary Items

The exchangedifference on foreign currency short-term

monetary items are recognised as incomeor as expenses
inthe period in whichtheyarise.

Foreign Currency Long-Term Monetary Items

The group has exercised the option of amortising /

capitalising the exchange differencearising on long-term

foreign currency monetary items as given Ministry of

Corporate Affairs (MCA) Notification No. G.S.R 914(E)

dated December29, 2011
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CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amountin @)

(Amountin @)

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Particulars As at March As at March ieTaos CeaLca PC aELc
31,2019 31,2018 31, 2019 31,2018

2 SHARE CAPITAL 3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(a) Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital reserve
Opening Balance 3,52,13,100 3,04,57,000

Authorised Capital Add : Transferred from statementof profit & loss 39,54,000 47,56,100

20,100,000 (PY 20,100,000) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 20,10,00,000 20,10,00,000 Closing Balance 3,91,67,100 3,52,13,100

Issued Capital General reserve -

20,004,800 (PY 20,004,800) Equity Shares of €10/- each 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000 Opening Balance 9,52,000 9,52,000
Add : Transferred from statement of profit & loss : -

Subscribed and Paid up Capital Closing Balance 952,000 9,52,000
20,004,800 (PY 20,004,800) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each fully paid-up 20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000 :

20,00,48,000 20,00,48,000 Capitalreserve-
Opening Balance 869,500 8,69,500

Rights, preferences andrestrictions attached to each class of shares - Add: Transferred from statementof profit & loss . .
The Companyhasonly one class of share capital, i.e., equity shares having face value of 710/- per share. Each holderof equity share is Closing Balance 869,500 8,69,500
entitled to one vote per share. The Shareholdersare entitled to interim dividendif proposed bythe Board ofDirectors. The Final dividend
is subjectto approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. Securities premium reserve -

Opening Balance 33,92,17,300
(b) Reconciliation of numberof shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year. lee : on disposal of subsidiary 63,921is -

No.of sharesat the beginningof the year 20,00,48,000 1,00,04,800 ace. Received on shares issued during the year . 20,00,00,000

Add: shares issued during the year - 1,00,00,000 osing Palance 63,92,17,300 fey

No. of shares at the end of the year 20,00,48,000 2,00,04,800 :
Revaluation Reserve -

. ° . Opening Balance 41,70,22,090 -
(c) Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares asat the end of the year Add : Addition during the year** . 41,70,22,090

Closing Balance 41,70,22,090 41,70,22,090
Kamal Poddar Promoter

25,00,011 25,00,011 . :
9% 12.50% Surplus in statementof profit & loss-

12.50% 90% Opening Balance 36,85,18,206 22,62,22,106
Add Profit for the year 42,02,046 12,24,38,801

Arun Kumar Poddar Promoter 2,100,000 2,100,000 Less :Pre acquisition loss of subsidiary c 9,43,464
10.50% 10.50% Add: Reversal of loss due to cessation of subsidiary : 2,55,56,863

Less : Transfer to statutory reserve 39,54,000 47,56,100

Vinita Sunil Patodia Promoter 15.75,000 15,75,000 Closing Balance 36,87,66,252 36,85,18,206

7.87% 7.87% 1,46,59,94,242 1,46,17,92,196

Archana Anil Patodia Promoter 15.75,000 15,75,000 **The managementhascreateda statutory reserve of %3,954,000./- (PY- ¥4,756,100/-) as per the provisions of section 45-IC of Reserve
‘ 7 Ee 7.87% Bank of India Act, 1934.

eee . **Pursuant to the Revised AS 10 "Accounting for Fixed Assets", During the previous year ,the Companyhasrevalued freehold landsatfair
market value, under revaluation model. Pursuant to the foregoing, property, plant & equipmentincreased by Rs. 417,022,090/- and

Sonu Poddar Promoter 12,50,000 12,50,000 Reserves & Surplus increased by Rs. 417,022,090/-.
9

6.25% 6.25% 4 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Sunil Kumar Patodia Promoter 11,00,000 11,00,000 Secured loans
5.50% 5.50% Non Convertible Debentures*

Nil (PY- 310) Index linked non convertible, redeemable debentures of Rs. 100,000 each - 3,10,00,000

. . (Note -1)

Anil C Patodia Promoter 11,00,000 1 ¥,00,000 Less : Current maturities of long term borrowings - (3,10,00,000)

5.50% 5.50% Term loan from bank (Note-2) 5,00,53,626 5,57,62,194
Less : Current maturities of long term borrowings (60,67,786) (64,03,078)

Azura Projects Private Limited 12,85,026 12,85,026 4,39,85,840 4,93,59,116

6.42% 6.42%
Note-1: Non Convertible Debentures referred above are issued on private placement basis which are secured against loans &

Florence Securities Pvt. Ltd. 9,35,684 9,35,684 advances. The debenturesare index linked.
4.68% 4.68% Note-2 (i) The outstanding amountloan of Rs. 523,464 (PY-Rs.1,746,680) was taken from ICICI Bank Limited andis secured by way of

first charge on Vehicle at Mumbai. The said loan carries interest at 10.14% p.a. and it is payable in Equated Monthly
Instalments ("EMI") of Rs.112,053till July 2019 and last instalment of Rs.88,209 payable in August 2019.

(ii) The outstanding amountloan of Rs.26,473,110 (PY- Rs.30,238,579) was taken from Axis Bank Limited and is secured by

wayoffirst charge on office premises at Mumbai. The said loan carries interest @ 1 Year MCLR +1.75% (presently at 10%).
The loanis repayable monthly ending in October 2026.

(iii) The outstanding amountloan of Rs.1,003,959 (PY- Rs.Nil) was taken from HDFC Bank andis secured by wayoffirst charge
on Vehicle at Mumbai. The loan is repayable monthly ending in December 2023.

(iv) The outstanding amountof loan of Rs. 1,295,022/-(PY-Rs. 1,889,046) was taken from ICICI Bank and is secured by way of

first charge on Vehicle at Mumbai. The loanis repayable in monthly principal instalments and interest, ending in February,
2021.

(v) The outstanding amount of loan of Rs. 20,758,071/-(PY -Rs. 21,887,889) was taken from ICICI Bank and is secured by way

offirst charge on Office Premises at Delhi. The loan is repayable in monthlyprincipal installments and interest, ending in
May, 2030.
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5 DEFERREDTAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars

Deferred tax liability -

(Amountin &)

As at March Movement As at March

31,2018 coyAetcls 31,2019

 
On difference between book balance & tax balance of Property, Plant 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Consolidated Financials

S No Particulars

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

(i) Principal Amount Outstanding 6,13,589 4,85,930

(ii) Interest due on above and unpaid - -

(iii) Interest due and payablefor the period of delay - -

(iv) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

10 OTHER LONG TERMLIABILITIES

Current Maturities of long term borrowings 60,67,786 3,74,03,078

Interest accrued but not due 12,25,548 98,85,488

Advances from customers 1,04,49,51,153 51,05,79,495

Statutory dues 4,53,34,493 3,80,33,544

Otherliabilities 1,04,22,629 7,25,28,905

Payable towardscapital assets 3,96,00,000 -

Equity Stock Option Premium - 80,100

Franchisee & Other Deposits 61,00,000 -

Margin moneydeposit - 15,00,000

Payable towardspartly paid investment - 2,96,43,040

1,15,37,01,609 69,96,53,650

11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provisionfor tax (net of taxes paid) 9,794 2,71,21,956

Provision for interest on debentures - 35,66,190

Provision on standard assets 24,07,073 23,01,677

Provision for employee benefit expenses 77,45,537 2,32,531

1,01,62,404 3,32,22,354
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

& Equipment 3,50,82,215 (67,61,785) 4,18,44,000

Deferred tax asset-
Provision for Employee benefit expenses (24,22,539) 10,50,461 (34,73,000)

Provision for Doubtful debts (9,12,000) (2,34,000) (6,78,000)
Provision for Expenses (9,22,000) (5,29,000) (3,93,000)
Provision for Standard Loan Assets (6,19,000) (6,19,000) :

3,02,06,676 (70,93,324) 3,73,00,000

(Amountin &)

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2019 31,2018

6 OTHER LONG TERMLIABILITIES

Franchisee & DP Deposits 2,19,46,438 1,13,09,702

Other Security Deposits 30,00,000 30,15,000

2,49,46,438 1,43,24,702

7 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefit expenses 1,47,12,626 96,95,835

1,47,12,626 96,95,835

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured loans

Loans taken from financial institutions* 62,29,06,883 1,10,58,87,269

Bank Overdraft ** 42,49,95,054 56,98,18,494

Unsecured loans 50,94,53,934 _

Commercial Papers*** 5,21,81,923 -

Loanstaken from financial institutions - 1,00,14,794

Loans taken from others 11,21,353 9,80,133 
Loanstaken from related parties (Refer Note No.38) 

1,61,06,59,147 1,68,67,00,690

*Loans taken from Financial Institutions are secured against shares & securities placed as collateral by customers,directors, relatives of

director and fellow subsidiary.

**Bank Overdraft is secured against hypothecation of receivables, term deposits, shares & securities and personal assets of promoters &

directors.

***The Companyhas outstanding Commercial Papers aggregating face value of Rs 544,500,000/- (net proceeds Rs. 501,170,101/- and

interest accrued thereonRs. 8,283,832/-) [Previous year Rs. Nil (net proceedsRs Nil and interest accrued but not due thereon RsNil)]. The

Commercial Papers carry interest 10% p.a. and are repayable within a period ranging from 272 days to 366 days from the date of

allotment.

 

9 TRADE PAYABLES
 

 

 

 

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 6,13,589 4,85,930

Dueto Others 9,15,66,878 9,80,75,172

9,21,80,467 9,85,61,102
 

Based on information received by the Group from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

(MSME) DevelopmentAct, 2006 and relied uponby auditor,details of amount due to such vendorsis as below:
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Consolidated Financials Consolidated Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars As at March

(Amountin &)

As at March

(Amountin @)

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Particulars As at March As at March
cee) CRE ERE 31, 2018

13 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 17 INVENTORIES

Stock-in-trade 24,95,24,673 17,46,60,044

(a) Other investments in quoted equity shares fully paid-up Shares & securities

Associate company- 24,95,24,673 17,46,60,044

Nil (PY - 5,952,850) shares of %10/- each of Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited - 17,79,37,923

Other company-
op phn 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

1,000,000 (PY - 1,000,000) shares of €10/- each of The Byke Hospitality Limited 5,00,96,906 5,00,96,906 Secured, considered qood*

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 47,83,713 71,77,953
22,023 (PY - 22,023) shares of 10/- each of Lawreshwar Polymers Limited 1,91,610 1,91,610 Others 47,42,09,830 1,02,69,90,129

980 (PY - 980) shares of %10/- each of GSL Securities Limited. 5,740 5,740 g dered Fr
ra Unsecured, considered goo

150,000 (PY-150,000) sh f F1/- h of Vak Limited 41,78,419 41,78,419
Nil (PY.a 000)sh )s eI) .oe Ke Vewidic, - d* 5 35.05.000 Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 4,58,26,928 2,73,46,925

i -450, shares o - each of Kisan Mouldings Limite = 35,05. Others 14,50,14,926 10,56,78,473

Otherinvestments in unquoted equity sharesfully paid-up Unsecured, considered doubtful

523,980 (PY- 523,980) shares of 710/- each Jaatvedas Construction CompanyPrivate Limited 12,99,47,040 12,99,47,040 Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date 15,06,433 46,68,524

400,000 (PY - 400,000) shares of 10/- each of Gini & Jony Limited 5,05,60,000 5,05,60,000 Others 24,08,836 -
Less- Provision for doubtful debts (39,15,269) (46,68,524)

Total _ oo 23,49,79,715 46,64,22,638 66,98,35,397 1.16,71,93,480

Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments

23,49,79,715 46,64,22,638 * Secured against securities given as collateral by the customers.

(b) Aggregate bookvalueof-

Quotedfully paid-up investments 5,44,72,675 25,67,69,980 19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash & Cash Equivalents

Aggregate marketvalueof- Cash on Hand 1,92,827 2,73,128
Quotedfully paid-up investments 2,80,50,000 39,64,42,590 Chequesin hand 5,35,05,000 -
 

* During the year the Companyhassoldits holding in Kisan Moulding Private Limited @ Rs.118.90 pershare.

(Amountin @)
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14 DEFERREDTAXASSETS(NET)

Particulars Nora Vi Elcel Movement As at March Cash & Cash Equivalents (as per "AS-3 Cash Flow Statements") 13,61,37,106 24,29,19,536

cE cae, OtherBank Balances
The major componentsof deferred taxliabilities / assets (net) as Term deposits held against bank guarantees 10,53,62,334 37,63,86,495

recognisedin the financial statementsis as follows: In earmarked accounts 8,09,878 8,87,386

Deferred tax asset Cash & Bank Balances 24,23,09,318 62,01,93,418

Employee benefits 67,700 2,31,000 2,978,700 * Fixed Deposits are underLien with Banksfor Bank Guarantees(with maturity of more than of 3 Months butless than 12 Months)
Business loss & unabsorbed depreciation 41,08,404 (14,72,004) 26,36,400

Provision for standard loan assets - 6,26,000 6,26,000 20 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Secured, considered good 25,56,12,522 50,62,83,364

Deferred tax liability (1,62,342) 82,742 (79,600) Loans against shares & securities

Depreciation and amortisation 40,13,762 (5,32,262) 34,81,500
= Unsecured, considered good

(Amountin &) Loans givento related parties (Refer Note No.38) 2,38,52,254 -

Particulars ONEa ETc ONEa ETc) Loans & Advancesto others 55,54,11,202 28,85,70,744
Crh 31,2018 Advances to employees 70,18,604 47,75,452

15 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES Balance with revenue authorities 57,91,956 41,96,777

Other Advances 34,86,687 95,57,872

Unsecured, considered good Prepaid expenses 1,89,32,386 2,23,54,687

Security deposits 4,40,54,418 3,27,73,696 Security deposit 74,91,723 2,98,70,723

Advancetaxes (net of provisions) 3,77,43,372 3,24,22,925 Margin money 1,00,37,59,195 92,06,890

MATCredit Entitlement 1,82,59,197 1,65,09,277 MATCredit Entitlement - 15,08,670

Loans & advances to others - 7,05,000

Prepaid Expenses 1,47,540 8,02,706 1,88,13,56,529 87,63,25,182
21 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

10,02,04,527 8,32,13,604 Margin money : - 1,84,867
Accruedinterests on deposits 61,75,063 -

Unbilled Revenue 4,10,66,296 4,61,97,865

16 OTHER NON-CURRENTASSETS Receivables from Exchanges 19,13,37,835 60,14,262
Retention money 24,20,581 46,89,709

Fixed Deposits (underlien with maturity more than 12 months) 25,00,000 30,23,963 Other Currentassets 4,40,16,855 1,15,90,392

Accrued Interest on above FD 2,43,054

28,50,16,630 6,86,77,095
27,43,054 30,23,963
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Particulars As at March

(Amountin &)

As at March

(Amountin @)
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523,980 (PY- 523,980) shares of 710/- each Jaatvedas Construction CompanyPrivate Limited 12,99,47,040 12,99,47,040 Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date 15,06,433 46,68,524

400,000 (PY - 400,000) shares of 10/- each of Gini & Jony Limited 5,05,60,000 5,05,60,000 Others 24,08,836 -
Less- Provision for doubtful debts (39,15,269) (46,68,524)

Total _ oo 23,49,79,715 46,64,22,638 66,98,35,397 1.16,71,93,480

Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments

23,49,79,715 46,64,22,638 * Secured against securities given as collateral by the customers.

(b) Aggregate bookvalueof-

Quotedfully paid-up investments 5,44,72,675 25,67,69,980 19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash & Cash Equivalents

Aggregate marketvalueof- Cash on Hand 1,92,827 2,73,128
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* During the year the Companyhassoldits holding in Kisan Moulding Private Limited @ Rs.118.90 pershare.
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14 DEFERREDTAXASSETS(NET)

Particulars Nora Vi Elcel Movement As at March Cash & Cash Equivalents (as per "AS-3 Cash Flow Statements") 13,61,37,106 24,29,19,536
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The major componentsof deferred taxliabilities / assets (net) as Term deposits held against bank guarantees 10,53,62,334 37,63,86,495

recognisedin the financial statementsis as follows: In earmarked accounts 8,09,878 8,87,386

Deferred tax asset Cash & Bank Balances 24,23,09,318 62,01,93,418

Employee benefits 67,700 2,31,000 2,978,700 * Fixed Deposits are underLien with Banksfor Bank Guarantees(with maturity of more than of 3 Months butless than 12 Months)
Business loss & unabsorbed depreciation 41,08,404 (14,72,004) 26,36,400
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Secured, considered good 25,56,12,522 50,62,83,364
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Crh 31,2018 Advances to employees 70,18,604 47,75,452

15 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES Balance with revenue authorities 57,91,956 41,96,777

Other Advances 34,86,687 95,57,872

Unsecured, considered good Prepaid expenses 1,89,32,386 2,23,54,687

Security deposits 4,40,54,418 3,27,73,696 Security deposit 74,91,723 2,98,70,723

Advancetaxes (net of provisions) 3,77,43,372 3,24,22,925 Margin money 1,00,37,59,195 92,06,890

MATCredit Entitlement 1,82,59,197 1,65,09,277 MATCredit Entitlement - 15,08,670

Loans & advances to others - 7,05,000

Prepaid Expenses 1,47,540 8,02,706 1,88,13,56,529 87,63,25,182
21 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

10,02,04,527 8,32,13,604 Margin money : - 1,84,867
Accruedinterests on deposits 61,75,063 -

Unbilled Revenue 4,10,66,296 4,61,97,865
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Amountin <
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amountin )
Particulars For the yearended For the year ended ,

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Particulars For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sales of Shares & Securities 20,80,13,356 26,24,18,010 29 OTHER EXPENSES

Interest income 13,04,45,556 10,20,77,768

Income from lease and support services 2,84,40,037 2,55,40,366 Travelling & Conveyance expenses 2,95,76,100 3,62,84,492

Brokerage income 38,62,44,083 33,55,69,792 Legal and professional 1,15,70,907 2,63,73,714

DelayPaymentCharges 537536932 Teneapaa Marketing & advertisement expenses 3,04,47,328 1,15,46,255

Service Charges 4,21,94,760 7,75,56,470 Business promotion expenses 71,30,958 2,50,60,784

Other operating revenues 1,69,73,602 2,52,02,063 Communication expenses 1,74,50,090 1,67,47,133
Rent including lease rentals 1,76,52,409 1,51,30,444

1,27,05,89,165 1,42,92,82,311 Repairs & Maintenance 1,22,51,839 1,18,63,750

Electricity Charges 85,86,754 84,09,673

23 OTHER INCOME Claims & dispute expenses 49,70,945 72,73,194

DividendIncome Seen 0000 Printing and stationery 52,27,474 52,86,103

Interest Income on deposits 3,59,74,879 2,02,63,945 Provision for doubtful debts 6,73,374 46,68,524
Interest on Loans 28,30,035 - Canteen Expenses 40,17,061 37,58,059

Interest on IT Refund 6,30,530 - Rates & Taxes 20,60,677 29,27,918
Miscellaneous income 7,70,119 23,47,281 Bad Debts 1,23,257 24,31,150

Profit on sale of investment 10,225 5,64,14,450 Sundry bal itt ff 21.01.653 ;
Profit on sale of fixed assets 20,650 - unary Balance Written o ae

Sundry balance written back 20,88,309 203,166 Provision on standard loan assets 1,05,396 13,63,873

CSR Expenses 3,36,987 11,61,661

4,35,02,247 8,95,16,779 Bank charges 11,46,108 10,82,657

Commission & Brokerage - 5,00,717

Insurance Charges 58,014 5,40,411

24 PURCHASES Miscellaneous Expenses* 2,41,68,983 2,12,53,601
Shares & Securities 27,04,00,208 30,67,02,916

Solar Plant c 16,03,400 17,96,56,314 20,36,64,111

27,04,00,208 30,83,06,316 * Miscellaneous expensesincludes Auditor's remuneration as below:

As auditors 53,00,000 48,42,700

25 CHANGESIN INVENTORIES Taxation matters 1,55,000 65,000

Shares & Securities Othermatters 10,52,076 -

At the beginning of the period 17,46,60,044 9,29,31,779

Less : At the end of the period 24,95,24,673 17,63,16,299
30 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

(7,48,64,629) (8,33,84,520)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 42,02,046 12,03,38,249

26 OPERATING EXPENSES Weighted average numberof equity shares 2,00,04,800 1,83,88,362
Professional Service charges 7,18,30,070 19,12,27,919

Computer & software expenses 1,94,28,206 1,35,21,743 . .
Depository Charges 56,60,796 21.71.555 Basic Earnings Per Share 0.21 6.54

Membership & subscription fees 17,78,439 10,65,454

Sub-brokerage / Referral fees 11,18,26,291 8,52,77,417 Face value per Share 10 10

Lease line expenses 39,88,624 13,37,973
Other operating expenses 37,43,135 31.25 639 Profit after adjusting interest on potential equity shares 42,02,046 12,03,38,249

21,82,55,561 29,77,27,700 Weighted average numberof equity shareafter 2,00,04,800 2,00,04,800

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES Dilutive Earnings per Share 0.21 6.02
Salaries, allowances and incentives 42,42,89,790 39,10,25,951

Staff welfare expenses 21,36,322 21,73,327

Contribution to Provident & other funds 99,87,455 83,99,906

43,64,13,567 40,15,99,184

28 FINANCE COST

Interest on Borrowings-

Bank 5,84,48,603 4,32,49,049

Financial Institutions 10,02,58,923 11,83,33,098

Commercial papers 85,46,307 -

Debenures 43,49,405 -

Others 37,29,168 64,55,187

Other borrowing costs 2,78,48,782 3,75,69,867

20,31,81,188 20,56,07,202 
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Amountin <
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amountin )
Particulars For the yearended For the year ended ,

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Particulars For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sales of Shares & Securities 20,80,13,356 26,24,18,010 29 OTHER EXPENSES

Interest income 13,04,45,556 10,20,77,768

Income from lease and support services 2,84,40,037 2,55,40,366 Travelling & Conveyance expenses 2,95,76,100 3,62,84,492

Brokerage income 38,62,44,083 33,55,69,792 Legal and professional 1,15,70,907 2,63,73,714

DelayPaymentCharges 537536932 Teneapaa Marketing & advertisement expenses 3,04,47,328 1,15,46,255

Service Charges 4,21,94,760 7,75,56,470 Business promotion expenses 71,30,958 2,50,60,784

Other operating revenues 1,69,73,602 2,52,02,063 Communication expenses 1,74,50,090 1,67,47,133
Rent including lease rentals 1,76,52,409 1,51,30,444

1,27,05,89,165 1,42,92,82,311 Repairs & Maintenance 1,22,51,839 1,18,63,750

Electricity Charges 85,86,754 84,09,673

23 OTHER INCOME Claims & dispute expenses 49,70,945 72,73,194

DividendIncome Seen 0000 Printing and stationery 52,27,474 52,86,103

Interest Income on deposits 3,59,74,879 2,02,63,945 Provision for doubtful debts 6,73,374 46,68,524
Interest on Loans 28,30,035 - Canteen Expenses 40,17,061 37,58,059

Interest on IT Refund 6,30,530 - Rates & Taxes 20,60,677 29,27,918
Miscellaneous income 7,70,119 23,47,281 Bad Debts 1,23,257 24,31,150

Profit on sale of investment 10,225 5,64,14,450 Sundry bal itt ff 21.01.653 ;
Profit on sale of fixed assets 20,650 - unary Balance Written o ae

Sundry balance written back 20,88,309 203,166 Provision on standard loan assets 1,05,396 13,63,873

CSR Expenses 3,36,987 11,61,661

4,35,02,247 8,95,16,779 Bank charges 11,46,108 10,82,657

Commission & Brokerage - 5,00,717

Insurance Charges 58,014 5,40,411

24 PURCHASES Miscellaneous Expenses* 2,41,68,983 2,12,53,601
Shares & Securities 27,04,00,208 30,67,02,916

Solar Plant c 16,03,400 17,96,56,314 20,36,64,111

27,04,00,208 30,83,06,316 * Miscellaneous expensesincludes Auditor's remuneration as below:

As auditors 53,00,000 48,42,700

25 CHANGESIN INVENTORIES Taxation matters 1,55,000 65,000

Shares & Securities Othermatters 10,52,076 -

At the beginning of the period 17,46,60,044 9,29,31,779

Less : At the end of the period 24,95,24,673 17,63,16,299
30 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

(7,48,64,629) (8,33,84,520)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 42,02,046 12,03,38,249

26 OPERATING EXPENSES Weighted average numberof equity shares 2,00,04,800 1,83,88,362
Professional Service charges 7,18,30,070 19,12,27,919

Computer & software expenses 1,94,28,206 1,35,21,743 . .
Depository Charges 56,60,796 21.71.555 Basic Earnings Per Share 0.21 6.54

Membership & subscription fees 17,78,439 10,65,454

Sub-brokerage / Referral fees 11,18,26,291 8,52,77,417 Face value per Share 10 10

Lease line expenses 39,88,624 13,37,973
Other operating expenses 37,43,135 31.25 639 Profit after adjusting interest on potential equity shares 42,02,046 12,03,38,249

21,82,55,561 29,77,27,700 Weighted average numberof equity shareafter 2,00,04,800 2,00,04,800

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES Dilutive Earnings per Share 0.21 6.02
Salaries, allowances and incentives 42,42,89,790 39,10,25,951

Staff welfare expenses 21,36,322 21,73,327

Contribution to Provident & other funds 99,87,455 83,99,906

43,64,13,567 40,15,99,184

28 FINANCE COST

Interest on Borrowings-

Bank 5,84,48,603 4,32,49,049

Financial Institutions 10,02,58,923 11,83,33,098

Commercial papers 85,46,307 -

Debenures 43,49,405 -

Others 37,29,168 64,55,187

Other borrowing costs 2,78,48,782 3,75,69,867

20,31,81,188 20,56,07,202 
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NOTE 31 : OTHER NOTES FORMINGPARTOFFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amountin @)

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

31 ContingentLiabilities not providedfor: (Amountin 2) Fundedstatus of the plan assets Noy) As on
; March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars PCHm Fleet) NHL VET cole
31, 2019 31, 2018 Present Value of unfunded obligation - 1,04,16,238

" Present Value of funded obligation 2,30,18,546 -

hy) cancefled bycies contestee pytne Company ias a Fair value of plan assets (5,78,571) -
ii) Casesfiled by client with the exchange 45, - -

1,934,494 24,79,494 Unrecognised past service costs (4,48,821) (1,01,55,900)

Netasset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 2,19,91,154 1,04,16,238
 *The Group does not expect any outflow of economic resourcesin respect of the above.

(Amountin &)

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2019 31,2018

(Amountin &)

Table showing Reconciliation of Plan Assets For the yearended For the year ended

 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

 

Bank Guaranteesissuedto -

 
 
 

       

Corporate guarantees issued to Banks & Financial Institutions on behalf of 84,92,44,954 1,25,38,73,165 Openingvalueof plan assets - -

subsidiaries- Actuarial gain / (loss) (1,14,186) -

32 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Amountin &) Contribution by employer 6,92,757 -

Name of Company As on As on Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 5,78,571 -
 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Amountin @)

Foreign Travelling 7,57,175 19,26,783 Experience Adjustments PHMLc As at March
7,57,175 19,26,783 31,2016 ee PyAOn Es} 

 

33 Employee benefit plans:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
 
 

 

 
 

The Group hasclassified the various benefits provided to employeesas under: Experience adjustmentson plan liabilities 10,034 (2,70,765)
pUetined contrfoufion Plan dand dthefoll h tProfitand (A tin) Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumptions - -

i i i i i i : mountinDuring the year, the Grouphasincurred and recognised the following amounts in the Statementof Profit and Loss ou Actuarial loss/(gain) dueto changein financial assumptions 1,11,740 274,399

ielade As on As on Experience adjustments onplan assets - -

MCAal MCRaea Net Actuarial loss/(gain) for the year 1,21,774 3,634

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund 61,80,397 39,26,099 ;
: rr (Amountin 2)

Employers' Contribution to ESIC 37,98,586 37,11,160

Total 99,78,983 76,37,259 Experience Adjustments NHL aE lcota NHLa ETcot As at March

31,2019 31, 2018 cu yA0h
Defined benefit plans
The Group offers the gratuity as employee benefit schemesto its employees: Experience adjustments onplan liabilities (31,35,109) 3,14,798 (63,434)

Thefollowing table sets out the fundedstatusofthe Gratuity and the amountrecognisedin the financial statements: (Amountin 2) Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumptions 0 - -

eee ee eS Actuarial loss/(gain) due to changein financial assumptions 1,58,605 (4,12,093) 4,50,320

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Experience adjustments on plan assets 1,14,186 - -

Net Actuarial loss/(gain) for the year (28,62,318) (97,295) 3,86,886
Components of employer expense

Current service cost 56,03,869 36,39,999

Interest on obligation 7,81,211 4,38,633 Actuarial assumptions As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018

Expectedreturn on plan assets - 7 Discount rate 7.65% p.a. 7.70% p.a.

Curtailment cost / (credit) . Expected return on plan assets 7.65% p.a. Not Applicable

Settlement cost / (credit) ° - Salary escalation 6.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a.

Recognised Past Service cost vested collar 6,09,751 . 5% at youngerages reducing to 5% at youngerages reducing to
Actuarial losses/(gains) (28,62,318) (97,298) Withdrawal Rates 1% at older ages 1% at older ages
Total expense recognised in the Statementof Profit & Loss 37,35,006 45,91,085
 

Note:-The discountrate is based on the prevailing market yields of Governmentof India securities as at the Balance Sheetdate for the
estimated term of the obligations. The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority,

(Amountin @)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table showing changein fair value of As on As on promotion,increments and other relevant factors. The above informationis certified by the actuaries and relied uponby auditors.

defined benefits obligation: March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Openingfair value of defined benefit obligation 1,05,39,935 60,05,286

NetTransfer In (out) Obligation 90,70,033 (2,65,492)

Service cost 56,03,869 36,39,999

Interest cost 7,81,211 4,38,633

Actuarial (gain) / loss (29,76,504) (97,298)

Past Service Costs - 12,87,614

Benefits paid - (4,68,807)

Closing defined benefit obligation 2,30,18,544 1,05,39,935
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31 ContingentLiabilities not providedfor: (Amountin 2) Fundedstatus of the plan assets Noy) As on
; March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars PCHm Fleet) NHL VET cole
31, 2019 31, 2018 Present Value of unfunded obligation - 1,04,16,238

" Present Value of funded obligation 2,30,18,546 -

hy) cancefled bycies contestee pytne Company ias a Fair value of plan assets (5,78,571) -
ii) Casesfiled by client with the exchange 45, - -

1,934,494 24,79,494 Unrecognised past service costs (4,48,821) (1,01,55,900)

Netasset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 2,19,91,154 1,04,16,238
 *The Group does not expect any outflow of economic resourcesin respect of the above.

(Amountin &)

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2019 31,2018

(Amountin &)

Table showing Reconciliation of Plan Assets For the yearended For the year ended

 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

 

Bank Guaranteesissuedto -

 
 
 

       

Corporate guarantees issued to Banks & Financial Institutions on behalf of 84,92,44,954 1,25,38,73,165 Openingvalueof plan assets - -

subsidiaries- Actuarial gain / (loss) (1,14,186) -

32 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Amountin &) Contribution by employer 6,92,757 -

Name of Company As on As on Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 5,78,571 -
 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Amountin @)

Foreign Travelling 7,57,175 19,26,783 Experience Adjustments PHMLc As at March
7,57,175 19,26,783 31,2016 ee PyAOn Es} 

 

33 Employee benefit plans:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
 
 

 

 
 

The Group hasclassified the various benefits provided to employeesas under: Experience adjustmentson plan liabilities 10,034 (2,70,765)
pUetined contrfoufion Plan dand dthefoll h tProfitand (A tin) Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumptions - -

i i i i i i : mountinDuring the year, the Grouphasincurred and recognised the following amounts in the Statementof Profit and Loss ou Actuarial loss/(gain) dueto changein financial assumptions 1,11,740 274,399

ielade As on As on Experience adjustments onplan assets - -

MCAal MCRaea Net Actuarial loss/(gain) for the year 1,21,774 3,634

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund 61,80,397 39,26,099 ;
: rr (Amountin 2)

Employers' Contribution to ESIC 37,98,586 37,11,160

Total 99,78,983 76,37,259 Experience Adjustments NHL aE lcota NHLa ETcot As at March

31,2019 31, 2018 cu yA0h
Defined benefit plans
The Group offers the gratuity as employee benefit schemesto its employees: Experience adjustments onplan liabilities (31,35,109) 3,14,798 (63,434)

Thefollowing table sets out the fundedstatusofthe Gratuity and the amountrecognisedin the financial statements: (Amountin 2) Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumptions 0 - -

eee ee eS Actuarial loss/(gain) due to changein financial assumptions 1,58,605 (4,12,093) 4,50,320

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Experience adjustments on plan assets 1,14,186 - -

Net Actuarial loss/(gain) for the year (28,62,318) (97,295) 3,86,886
Components of employer expense

Current service cost 56,03,869 36,39,999

Interest on obligation 7,81,211 4,38,633 Actuarial assumptions As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018

Expectedreturn on plan assets - 7 Discount rate 7.65% p.a. 7.70% p.a.

Curtailment cost / (credit) . Expected return on plan assets 7.65% p.a. Not Applicable

Settlement cost / (credit) ° - Salary escalation 6.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a.

Recognised Past Service cost vested collar 6,09,751 . 5% at youngerages reducing to 5% at youngerages reducing to
Actuarial losses/(gains) (28,62,318) (97,298) Withdrawal Rates 1% at older ages 1% at older ages
Total expense recognised in the Statementof Profit & Loss 37,35,006 45,91,085
 

Note:-The discountrate is based on the prevailing market yields of Governmentof India securities as at the Balance Sheetdate for the
estimated term of the obligations. The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority,

(Amountin @)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table showing changein fair value of As on As on promotion,increments and other relevant factors. The above informationis certified by the actuaries and relied uponby auditors.

defined benefits obligation: March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Openingfair value of defined benefit obligation 1,05,39,935 60,05,286

NetTransfer In (out) Obligation 90,70,033 (2,65,492)

Service cost 56,03,869 36,39,999

Interest cost 7,81,211 4,38,633

Actuarial (gain) / loss (29,76,504) (97,298)

Past Service Costs - 12,87,614

Benefits paid - (4,68,807)

Closing defined benefit obligation 2,30,18,544 1,05,39,935
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SUBSIDIARIES

Thought Consultant Jaipur P Lin JV with CCSPL

Total

ladete

Liabilities

Assets

Income

Expenditure

Choice International Limited (Standalone)

2 3) 3 =) ° St
.

2) fe) 3 se] 3) =} <

QO ° 5 n o = ® ou oO a 7 5 ® 5 Q,
.
2 wn

Choice Equity Broking Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Wealth ManagementPvt.Ltd.

Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Capital Advisors Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Techlab Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Retail Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Peers International Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Finserv Private Limited

Consolidated Adjustments and Eliminations

Consolidated NetAssets/ Profit After Tax

Joint Ventures (as per Consolidation Method)

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

 

Net Asset

Amount

1,38,70,70,416

66,13,90,058

(3,86,27,683)

2,06,89,913

7,65,90,198

(25,45,169)

68,61,845

(6,22,284)

(54,21,346)

10,62,73,328

20,47,30,856

11,00,602

2,41,74,90,735

75,14,48,493

1,66,60,42,242

CaR-e

Less Total Liabilities

Total Assets

As % of

Net Assets

83.26%

39.70%

-2.32%

1.24%

4.60%

-0.15%

0.41%

-0.04%

-0.33%

0.07%

145.10%

45.10%

100.00%

35 Disclosure as perSchedule Ill of CompaniesAct, 2013 related to Consolidated Financial Statements

6.38%

12.29%

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March

31,2019

19,11,930

30,12,531

9,24,440

3,41,189

382.30%

526.07%

-434.34%

27.42%

11.63%

69.43%

13.37%

105.16%

117.99%

88.11%

8.90%

916.81%

816.81%

100.00%

Consolidated Consolidated

0.79%

Profit or (Loss)

Profit/(Loss)

March

(Amountin &)

36. Theaggregate amountofassets,liabilities, income and expenditure oftheJointly Controlled Operation included in CFSis as follows:

31,2018

Amount

(in <)

1,60,64,384

2,21,05,535

(1,82,51,186)

33,268

11,52,041

4,88,847

29,17,296

5,61,691

44,18,842

49,58,055

37,02,321

3,73,868

3,85,24,965

3,43,22,917

42,02,048

41,41,631

48,68,364

1,35,89,297

1,29,98,029        
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SUBSIDIARIES

Thought Consultant Jaipur P Lin JV with CCSPL

Total

ladete

Liabilities

Assets

Income

Expenditure

Choice International Limited (Standalone)

2 3) 3 =) ° St
.

2) fe) 3 se] 3) =} <

QO ° 5 n o = ® ou oO a 7 5 ® 5 Q,
.
2 wn

Choice Equity Broking Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Wealth ManagementPvt.Ltd.

Choice Portfolio ManagementServices Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Capital Advisors Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Techlab Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Retail Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Peers International Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd.

Choice Finserv Private Limited

Consolidated Adjustments and Eliminations

Consolidated NetAssets/ Profit After Tax

Joint Ventures (as per Consolidation Method)

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

 

Net Asset

Amount

1,38,70,70,416

66,13,90,058

(3,86,27,683)

2,06,89,913

7,65,90,198

(25,45,169)

68,61,845

(6,22,284)

(54,21,346)

10,62,73,328

20,47,30,856

11,00,602

2,41,74,90,735

75,14,48,493

1,66,60,42,242

CaR-e

Less Total Liabilities

Total Assets

As % of

Net Assets

83.26%

39.70%

-2.32%

1.24%

4.60%

-0.15%

0.41%

-0.04%

-0.33%

0.07%

145.10%

45.10%

100.00%

35 Disclosure as perSchedule Ill of CompaniesAct, 2013 related to Consolidated Financial Statements

6.38%

12.29%

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March

31,2019

19,11,930

30,12,531

9,24,440

3,41,189

382.30%

526.07%

-434.34%

27.42%

11.63%

69.43%

13.37%

105.16%

117.99%

88.11%

8.90%

916.81%

816.81%

100.00%

Consolidated Consolidated

0.79%

Profit or (Loss)

Profit/(Loss)

March

(Amountin &)

36. Theaggregate amountofassets,liabilities, income and expenditure oftheJointly Controlled Operation included in CFSis as follows:

31,2018

Amount

(in <)

1,60,64,384

2,21,05,535

(1,82,51,186)

33,268

11,52,041

4,88,847

29,17,296

5,61,691

44,18,842

49,58,055

37,02,321

3,73,868

3,85,24,965

3,43,22,917

42,02,048

41,41,631

48,68,364

1,35,89,297

1,29,98,029        
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Consolidated Financials Consolidated Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
38 Related Party Disclosure :
(i) Details of Related Parties -

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amountin %) 38 (ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31,2019
(Amountin &)

Particulars Associates KMP Relative Enterprises over TotalNamesof Related Parties WEY celal MarchDescription of

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
  
  
 
  
  

  
  
 
 

Relationship 31,2019 31,2018 of KMP_ which (c) & (d) are
a. Associate Companies Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited (APIVL) V LBRTT

Choice Realty Pvt.Ltd. (Subsidiary of APIVL) V significant

b. Key Management Kamal Poddar (Managing Director) V V influence
Personnel (KMP) and Hemlata Poddar (Non-executive Director) Vv J

their relatives Arun Poddar (Relative of KMP) V J Loan/Advance taken from

Sonu Poddar (Relative of KMP) V J Loan Takenfrom -

Santosh Kumar Poddar (Relative of KMP) V J Kamal Poddar 2,20,00,000 : : 2,20,00,000
Manju Poddar (Relative of KMP) V J 2,20,00,000 - - 2,20,00,000
Meenu Poddar (Relative of KMP) V J Loan Repaid-

AlayKejriwal (Executive ouecten _ 4 4 Kamal Poddar 2,20,00,000 - - 2,20,00,000
alti Rajendra Kejriwal (Relative of Director . .

Babita Ajay Kejriwal (Relative of Director) v Vv 7 2,20,00,000 2,20,00,000
Vijay Rajendra Kejriwal (Relative of Director) V J Loan Given . a
Rajendrakumar Kejriwal (Relative of Director) J J Samank Apparels Private Limited - - 88,18,227 88,18,227

Manoj Singhania (CFO) V J S K Patodia & Associates - - 1,75,34,027 1,75,34,027

Savita Singhania (Relative of KMP) V J - - 2,63,52,254 2,63,52,254

Karishma Shah (CompanySecretary) V v Loan Repaymentreceived from -
Praful Shah (Relative of KMP) v v Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - 2,59,80,000 2,59,80,000

Falguni Shah (Relative of KMP) v V S K Patodia & Associates - - 25,00,000 25,00,000
- - 2,84,80,000 2,84,80,000

c. Individuals owning Kamal Poddar- Holding 12.50% of Capital in CIL Vv v
directly or indirectly Hemlata Poddar- Holding 4.25% of Capital in CIL V v Advancesreceived
interest in voting power Sunil Patodia - Holding 5.50% of Capital in CIL Vv J Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - 41,00,000 41,00,000
that gives them control & Vinita Patodia - Holding 7.87% of Capital in CIL V V - - 41,00,000 41,00,000
their relatives Anil Patodia - Holding 5.50% of Capital in CIL V J

ArchanaPatodia - Holding 7.87% of Capital in CIL V J Advances amountrepaid
- 3 co

ou Podar - Nolan £38otCantinc | ) Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - 41,00,000 41,00,000

Shreya Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL V V - - 41,00,000 41,00,000
Suyash Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL V V Revenuefrom Operations

Aastha Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL J V Income from Business Support Services-
Ayush Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL v v The Byke Hospitality Limited - - 85,14,737 85,14,737

S K Patodia & Associates - - 1,94,92,000 1,94,92,000

Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - 4,33,300 4,33,300

d. Enterprises over which S. K. Patodia & Associates J J Incomefrom Brokerage & Other Charges

(b) &(c) are able to The Byke Hospitality Ltd. V J Ajay Rajendra Kejriwal 538 - - 538

exercise significant Hotel Relax Pvt. Ltd. V J Ajay R Kejriwal (HUF) - - 3,657 3,657
influence Manbhari BiofuelPvt. Ltd. Vv v Malti Rajendra Kejriwal - 1,160 - 1,160

S. K. Patodia Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd. 4 s Babita Ajay Kejriwal . 308 . 308

Shree Shakambhari Exims Private Limited 7 : -

(Formerly knownas UptonInfrastructure Pvt. Ltd.) Vijay Rajendra Kejriwal “ 3,304 ° 3,304
Aqua PumpsPvt. Ltd. J J Rajendra kumar Kejriwal - 3,473 - 3,473

Wheresmypandit.com Pvt. Ltd. J n] Kamal Poddar 7,07,341 - - 7,07,341

Gravotix TechnologyPrivate Limited V V Kamal Poddar (HUF) - - 472 472
Motormistri.Com Private Limited V J Arunkumar Poddar - 592 - 592

Thoughts Consultants Jaipur P Lin JV with Choice Consultancy Services P L v v Hemlata Kamal Poddar - 496 - 496
VSC Consulting Private JV with Choice Consultancy V J Santosh Kumar Poddar . 5,885 . 5,885
Services Private Limited (w.e.f January 15,2018) : ‘ ,

Infra Dev Consultants in JV with Choice Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd. V - Manju Poddar = 236 = 236y
Samank ConsumerProductsPrivate Limited V V Meenu Poddar . 11,228 - 11,228
Samank Apparels Private Limited V V Vijay R Kejriwal Huf - : 11,517 11,517
Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited V V Santosh Kumar Poddar Huf - - 2,436 2,436

(Formerly known as Satyan Insurance Brokers Private Limited) 7,07,879 26,682 2,84,58,119 2,91,92,680

Farmer's Evolvement Foundation V J Professional Service Charges

Mumbai Vaish Seva Sansthan J V The Byke Hospitality Limited - - 2,00,00,000 —_2,00,00,000
Blazing Star Properties Private Limited Vv V : _—
AnantIncense Enterprise ( Partnership entered by Aastha Patodia) V V Samank Consumer Products Private Limited = - 3,00,000 3,00,000
Closhoerize (Partnership entered by Shreya Patodia) V V SK Patodia & Associates - - 75,40,000 75,40,000
De Starvings Couriers LLP V V : - 2,78,40,000 2,78,40,000
Choice Strategic Advisors LLP V -
Lions Mumbai Choice Foundation Vv : OtherIncome
RupangProperties Private Limited v - Dividend Income - - 10,00,000 10,00,000
Ajay Kejriwal HUF J J Rent | 1,20,000 1,20,000Vijay Kejriwal HUF J J ent Income : = aS rae
Anil Patodia HUF J J - - 11,20,000 11,20,000
Sunil Patodia HUF V V Interest on Loans
Santosh Poddar HUF V J Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - 10,98,513 10,98,513

Arun Poddar HUF Vv V Samank Apparels Private Limited - - 20,252 20,252
Kamal Poddar HUF J Vv S K Patodia & Associates - - 37,808 37,808

- - 11,56,573 11,56,573
*During the year the Companyhassoldits stake in Aqua PumpsInfra Ventures Limited.  
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Consolidated Financials

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
38 (ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

Particulars

Employee Benefit Expenses

Associates KMP Relative

of KMP

Enterprises over
which(c) & (d) are

able to exercise

significant
influence

(Amountin &)

Total

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Director Remuneration - 42,00,000 - - 42,00,000

Salary & Allowances

Manoj Singhania - 15,01,507 - - 15,01,507

Karishma Shah - 9,82,879 - - 9,82,879

Ajay Kejriwal - 21,00,000 - - 21,00,000

Vijay Kejriwal - -  10,20,000 - 10,20,000

- 87,84,386  10,20,000 - 98,04,386

Other Expenses

S K Patodia & Associates - - - 1,77,000 1,77,000

Lions Mumbai Choice Foundation - - - 28,94,000 28,94,000

Lions Club of Mumbai Choice - - - 50,000 50,000

- - - 31,21,000 31,21,000

Secuirties Pledeged for loan

Kamal Poddar - 8,37,000 - - 8,37,000

Hemlata Poddar - 94,86,000 - - 94,86,000
Arun Poddar - - 1,59,03,000 - 1,59,03,000

- 1,03,23,000 1,59,03,000 - 2,62,26,000

Balancesoutstanding at the endof the year

Short Term Borrowings

Arun Poddar - - - 9,80,133 9,80,133
- - - 9,80,133 9,80,133

Short Term Loans & Advances

Samank Apparels Private Limited - - - 88,18,227 88,18,227

S K Patodia & Associates - - - 1,50,34,027 1,50,34,027

- - - 2,38,52,254 2,38,52,254

Trade receivables-

The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - 2,65,25,991 2,65,25,991

S K Patodia & Associates - - - 33,02,204 33,02,204

Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - - 1,26,988 1,26,988

Santosh Kumar Poddar - - 30,268 - 30,268

Hemlata Kamal Poddar - - 1,015 - 1,015

Kamal Poddar - 93,41,784 - - 93,41,784

Meenu Poddar - - 1,819 - 1,819

Arunkumar Poddar (HUF) - - - 1,355 1,355

Kamal Poddar (HUF) - - - 2,019 2,019

Manju Poddar - - 236 - 236

Ajay Rajendra Kejriwal - 11 - - 11

Babita Kejariwal - - 235 - 235

Vijay R Kejriwal Huf - - 1,75,490 1,75,490

- 93,41,795 33,573 3,01,34,047 3,95,09,414

Trade Payables

Kamal Poddar - 25,589 - - 25,589

Manoj Singhania - 1,19,211 - - 1,19,211

Karishma Shah - 86,898 - - 86,898

S K Patodia & Associates - - - 2,98,460 2,98,460

- 2,31,698 - 2,98,460 5,30,158

OtherCurrentLiabilities

Vijay Rajendra Kejriwal - - 7,409 - 7,409

Rajendrakumar Kejriwal - - 539 - 539

Santosh Kumar Poddar Huf - - 26,175 - 26,175

Maltidevi Kejriwal - - 23 - 23

- - 34,146 : 34,146

Other NonCurrentLiabilities

Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - - 30,00,000 30,00,000

- - - 30,00,000 30,00,000 

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Consolidated Financials

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 (ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31,2018

Particulars

Loan/Advancetaken from

Associates Na Relative

of KMP

(Amountin &)

Enterprises over

which(c) & (d) are

able to exercise

significant
influence

Total

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kamal Poddar 9,88,46,290 - - 9,88,46,290

Arun Poddar 3,00,000 - - 3,00,000

9,91,46,290 - - 9,91,46,290

Loan repaid

Kamal Poddar 9,88,46,290 - - 9,88,46,290

9,88,46,290 - - 9,88,46,290

Loan Given to

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - 6,59,80,000 6,59,80,000

- - 6,59,80,000 6,59,80,000

Loan repaymentreceived from

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - 4,00,00,000 4,00,00,000

- - 4,00,00,000 4,00,00,000

Revenuefrom Operations

Professional Service Charges

SK Patodia & Associates - - 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000

Gravotix Technology Private Limited 6,38,065 6,38,065

Income from Business Support Service

The Byke Hospitality Limited - - 85,30,954 85,30,954

SK Patodia & Associates - - 1,70,09,412 1,70,09,412

Interest on Loans

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - 51,10,537 51,10,537

Income form Brokerage

Ajay Kejriwal 7,153 - - 7,153
Malti Rajendra Kejriwal - 1,807 - 1,807

Babita Ajay Kejriwal - 3,398 - 3,398

Vijay Rajendra Kejriwal - 2,682 - 2,682

Rajendrakumar Kejriwal - 21,888 - 21,888

Ajay R Kejriwal Huf - - 4,824 4,824

Kamal Poddar 81,428 - - 81,428

Arunkumar Poddar - 590 - 590
Hemlata Kamal Poddar - 4,795 - 4,795
Santosh Kumar Poddar - 230 - 230

Manju Poddar - 230 - 230

Meenu Poddar - 981 - 981

Kamal Poddar HUF - - 472 472

88,581 36,601 4,62,94,264 4,64,19,446

Other Income

Rent Income

Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - 1,20,000 1,20,000

Dividend Income

The Byke Hospitality Limited - - 10,00,000 10,00,000

- - 11,20,000 11,20,000

Employee Benefit Expenses

Director Remuneration

Kamal Poddar 45,00,000 - - 45,00,000

Salaries & Allowances

Manoj Singhania 14,53,231 - - 14,53,231

Karishma Shah 7,76,909 - - 7,76,909

Ajay Kejriwal 14,30,200 - - 14,30,200

Sonu Poddar - 77,229 - 77,229

Savita Singhania - 3,65,176 - 3,65,176

Babita Kejriwal - 9,67,740 - 9,67,740

Vijay Kejriwal - 7,20,000 - 7,20,000

81,60,340  21,30,145 - 1,02,90,485

Other Expenses

Mehek Kejriwal - 60,000 : 60,000

Harsh Kejriwal - 60,000 : 60,000

- 1,20,000 - 1,20,000
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Consolidated Financials AGM NOTICE

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 (ii): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

 

  

Particulars Associates KMP Relative Enterprises over Total
of KMP_ which (c) & (d) are

able to exercise  

significant
influence

 
  

 

Balance outstanding at the end of year  
 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - - 30,00,000 30,00,000

- - - 30,00,000 30,00,000

Short Term Borrowings

Arun Poddar - - 9,80,133 - 9,80,133

- - 9,80,133 - 9,80,133

Trade Payables

Kamal Poddar - 5,82,350 - - 5,82,350

Manoj Singhania - 1,18,587 - - 1,18,587

Karishma Shah - 55,290 - - 55,290

Vijay Kejriwal - - 55,731 - 55,731

Ajay Kejriwal - 134,284 - - 1,34,284
Harsh Kejriwal - - 5,000 - 5,000

MehakKejriwal - - 5,000 - 5,000

SK Patodia & Associates - - - 80,250 80,250

- 8,90,511 65,731 80,250 10,36,492
 

Short Term Loans & Advances

Samank ConsumerProducts Private Limited - - - 2,59,80,000 2,59,80,000

- - - 2,59,80,000 2,59,80,000

 

 

 

Trade Receivables  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - 11,724 11,724

SK Patodia & Associates - - - 96,946 96,946

Hemlata Kamal Poddar - - 519 - 519

Arunkumar Poddar - - 1,933 - 1,933

- - 2,453 1,08,670 1,11,123

OtherCurrentLiabilities

Santosh Kumar Poddar - - 1,420 - 1,420

Vijay Rajendra Kejriwal - - 71 - 71

Rajendrakumar Kejriwal - - 372 - 372

Ajay R Kejriwal Hut - - - 12 12

- - 1,863 12 1,875
 

39 With regard to the Supreme Courtjudgementdated February 28, 2019 to considerall emoluments (universally, necessarily and ordinarily)
as basic wagesfor the purpose of contribution to Provident fund (PF), the Group has been legally advised that the judgementwill be
applicable prospective from March 2019 and accordingly the Company has made additional provision of PF liability in the books of
Accounts.

40 "The Companyvidetheir letter dated August 20, 2018 had requested the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for cancellation of Certificate of
Registration (CoR) held in the name of the Company M/s. "" Choice International Limited "". However, the Company had received
instructions from the RBI to reduceits Financial Assets below 50 % of the Company's Total Assets to proceed with the surrender of NBFC
license held in the name of the Company before March 31, 2019 vide their Letter dated December21, 2018. Adhering to the Instructions
received from the RBI, the Company has reducedits Financial Assets below 50% ofits Total Assets before March 31, 2019. The Company
shall now submit the audited financial statements to the RBI, who may proceed with our requestfor cancellation of CoR in the nameofthe
Companyorfurther instructthe Companyfor any further action to continue with the cancellation."

41 The Board of Directors of CEBPLat its meeting held on December08, 2018 had approved the purchase of equity broking business of
'‘Inditrade Capital Limited’ ("inditrade") by way of slump sale on a going concern basis. Business Transfer Agreement was entered
between CEBPLand inditrade on 18th May,2018. After receiving the necessary regulatory approvals, the equity broking business of
Inditrade wastransferred to CEBPLfrom close of business hours on 28th December,2018. Consequently,all assets and liablities of equity
broking businessof "Inditrade" have been accounted at bookvalue in the CEBPL's books of account and a goodwill of Rs 80,000,000 has

been accounted as an intangible asset, which is being amortized over a period of 5 years.

42 Previous year's figures have been regrouped reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification /
disclosure.

2
For and on behalf of Board of Directors ? O1 8 = O1 9

 
Sd/- Sd/-
KamalPoddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director
(DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)

Sd/- Sd/-
Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah
Chief Financial Officer CompanySecretary
Mumbai: May 29, 2019 Mumbai: May 29, 2019
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cnorce INTERNATIONALLIMITED

 

1.

Place: Mumbai

CHOICE HOUSE, SHREE SHAKAMBHARI CORPORATEPARK, PLOT NO 156-158,
J.
Tel No: +91 -22-6707-9999; Fax: +91-22-6707-9959

Email ld: info@choiceindia.com;

CIN No: L67190MH1993PLC071117

B. NAGAR, ANDHERI(EAST), MUMBAI 400099

Notice is hereby given that 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Choice International Limited will be held on
Friday, September27, 2019 at 12.30 P.M. at Kohinoor Continental, Andheri - Kurla Rd, J B Nagar, Andheri East, Mumbai- 400 059 to

transact the following business:

ORDINARYBUSINESS

To consider and adoptthe Audited Financial Statements (including the consolidated financial statements) of the Companyfor the
Financial Year ended March 31,2019 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Directorin place of Mrs. Ajay Kejriwal (DIN No: 03051841), whoretires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment

SPECIALBUSINESS

3. To re-appointment of Mr. Kamal Poddar (DIN No: 01518700) as Managing Director of the Company. In this regards to Consider
and, if thoughtfit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THATpursuantto provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions,if
any, of the Companies Act 2013, as amended from timeto time thereto and the Articles of Association of the Company, and such
other consents and permission as may be necessary, and subject to such modifications, variations as may be approved and
acceptable, approval of the Company be andis hereby accordedfor the reappointmentof Mr. Kamal Poddar (DIN No: 01518700)
as Managing Director of the Company, whoseoffice will not be liable to determination by retirement by rotation, for a period of
five years with effect from October 1, 2019 to September30, 2024 and payment of remunerationfor the aforesaid period on the
terms and conditions which are set out in Explanatory Statement annexed to the notice convening this meeting and on the
remuneration of RS. 60,00,000/- p.a. including perquisites/ (hereinafter referred to as “remuneration”)in all to be paid by the
Companyincluding its group Companies( restricted to the subsidiaries of the Company) with liberty to the Board of Directors
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall deemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its
powersincluding the powers conferred bythis resolution) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said remuneration. The
remuneration payable to Mr. Kamal Poddar shall be subject to review by the membersatthe ” Shareholder’s” meeting to be held
inthe year 2022.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHATthe Managing Director shall be entitled to reimbursementofall expenses incurred for the purpose of
the business of the Companyandshall not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending meeting of the Board of Director's and
Committee (s) thereof and the above mentioned remunerationwill be the total consideration payable by the Companyandits
subsidiary companies.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHATthe above mentioned remuneration will be considered as minimum remuneration payable to Mr.
Kamal Poddar, even in the absenceof or inadequacyofprofits in any Financial Year, for the entire tenure or such period as may be
approvedbythe Shareholders of the Company and/or Central Government,if required.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHATanyDirector or the CompanySecretary of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take such
steps and do all other acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable to give effectto this resolution.”

By Orderofthe Board of Directors
Date: August 30,2019 Sd/-

(Karishma Shah)

CompanySecretary

Registered Office:

Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park,

Plot No,. 156-158, J.B. Nagar,
Andheri(East),

Mumbai - 400 099

\Ena Id: info@choiceindia.com

~

 
/

NOTES

1.

10.

11.

12.

Amemberentitled to attend and vote atthe meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and voteinstead of himself
and proxy need not be a memberof the company. A person can
act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and
holding in the aggregate not more than 10 (ten) percent of the
total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A
memberholding morethan ten percentof the total share capital
of the companycarrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such personshall not act as a proxy for any
other person or shareholder.

The instrument of proxy in order to be effective, should be
deposited at the registered office of the company, duly
completed and signed, notless than Forty Eight hours before the
commencementof the meeting. A proxy form is sent herewith.
Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies,societies etc. Must

be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as
applicable.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized
representative to attend the Meeting are requested to send a
certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

The Explanatory Statementsetting out the material facts pursuant
to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),

concerning the Special Businessin the Notice is annexed hereto
and formspart of the Notice. The Profile of the Directors seeking
reappointment, as required in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is given below.

Members are requested to bring the Attendance Slip sent
herewith dulyfilled for attending the Meeting along with identity
Proof.

Interms of Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read

together with the Rules the Copy of the Annual Report
comprising of Financial Statements, Board’s Report etc. and the
Notice are being sent by electronic mode, to those members

who have registered their email ids with their respective
depository participants or with the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents of the Company, unless any memberhas requestedfor a
physical copy of the Annual Report , you may send your request
to info@choiceindia.com mentioning your Folio/ DP & Client ID.

All members are requested to intimate changes,if any, in their
registered address, immediately to the Registrar & Transfer
Agents, Sharex Dynamic( India) Private Limited or to their

depository participants in case shares are held in depository
form, so as to enable us to dispatch the future communicationsat
the correct addresses.

All documents referred to in the notice are openfor inspectionat
the registered office of companies during the working days and
office working hours.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
Company shall remain closed from September 21, 2019 to
September27,2019 (both daysinclusive).

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Members who have not
registered their e-mail addresses are hereby requested to
register the same with Registrars/ Depositories ‘and to enable
us to send the communications/ information/ Annual Reports to
the shareholders thus making the process muchfaster. In order
to receive copies of Notice of Annual General Meeting and other
communication through e-mail, Members are requested to

register their e-mail addresses with the Company by sending an
e-mail to info@choiceindia.com.

Members may note that the Company’ website is
www.choiceindia.com.

Voting throughelectronic means:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Companyis
pleased to provide membersfacility to exercise their right to vote
at the General Meeting by electronic means and the business
may be transacted through e-Voting services provided by Central

AGM Notice

Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL):

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as
under:-

(i) The voting period begins on September 24, 2018 and ends on
September 26, 2019. During this period shareholders’ of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of September 20,
2019, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSLfor voting thereafter.

(ii) The Shareholders should log on to the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com

(iii) Click on “Shareholders”tab.

(iv) Now Enter your UserID

a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. ForNSDL: 8 Character DPID followed by8 Digits Client ID,

c. Membersholding sharesin Physical Form should enterFolio
Numberregistered with the Company.

(v) Nextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any
company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and
Physical Form
 

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholdersas well as physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updatedtheir PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to
usethe first two letters of their name and the digits
of the sequence numberin the PANfield

e Incase the sequence numberis less than 8 digits
enter the applicable number of 0's before the
number afterthe first two character of the name in
Capital letters. E.g. If your name is Ramesh Kumar
with sequence number1 then enter RAQ0000001in
the PANField.
 

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat
accountor in the companyrecordsfor the said demat
accountor folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.
 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in

Bank dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Details account or inthe companyrecordsin orderto login.
OR Date

e |f both the details are not recorded with the

depository or companyplease enter the member
id/ folio numberin the Dividend Bank details field
as mentionedin instruction (iv).
 

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT”
tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach
directly the Companyselection screen. However, members
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily
enter their login password in the new passwordfield. Kindly
note that this passwordis to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other companyon which they
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSLplatform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

(x) For Membersholding shares in physical form, the details can
be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Choice International

Limited on which you chooseto vote.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(XV)

(xvi)

AGM Notice

On the voting page, you will see ”RESOLUTION

DESCRIPTION” and against the samethe option ”YES/NO" for

voting. Selectthe option YES or NO as desired.The option YES

implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO

impliesthatyou dissentto the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the

entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on,

click on ”SUBMIT”.A confirmation box will be displayed. If you
wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your

vote, click on "CANCEL"and accordingly modifyyourvote.

Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution,you will not

be allowed to modifyyourvote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by
clicking on "Clickhere to print" option on the Voting page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password
then enter the User ID and the image verification code and

click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
thesystem.

(xviii) Note forNon- Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF,
NRI etc.) and custodians are required to log on to

https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as

Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp
and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdeslcevoting®cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a compliance user should be

created usingthe admin login and passwordThe Compliance
userwould be ableto linkthe account(s)for which they wish to

vote on.

The list of accounts should be mailed to

he|pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the

accountstheywould be ableto casttheirvote.

(xix)

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of

Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the

systemforthescrutinizertoverifythesame.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting,you
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (”FAQs") and e-

voting manual available atwww.evotingindia.com, under help
section or write an email to helpdeslcevoting®cdslindia.com.

Otherlnstructions:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(M

(V)

(I)

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member. the

member shall not be allowed to change itsubsequently.

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their

shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as

on the cut-off date of September 20, 2019

M/S R. M. Mimani & Associates LLP, Company, Practicing
Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer

to scrutinize the e—voting process in a fair and transparent
manner.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period of 48 hours days from the

conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the

presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment
ofthe Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes

cast in favour or against, if any, and submit forthwith to the

Chairman ofthe Company.

The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the

Company. The Results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s

Report shall be placed on the Company’s website

www.choiceindia.com and communicated to the stock

exchanges.

Members who do not have access to e-voting facility maysend
duly completed Ballot Form enclosed with the Notice so as to

reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of

the Company, M/S R.M. Mimani &Associates LLP, Practising
Company Secretary, at the Registered Office of the Company
not later than September 25, 2019 (6.00 pm.) Ballot Form

received afterthis date will be treated as invalid.

Dehils of Director: seeking appointment] re appointment at the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on September 27,

201 9 (Pursuantto Regulation 36(3) ofSEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation 201 5.

Name ofthe

Director

Date of Birth

Age

Date oprpointment

Relationship with Directors & Key Managerial
Personnel

Expertise in specific Functional area

Kamal Poddar

(Reappointment)

January 25, 1979

November 01, 2019

Managing Director

Finance & Business Development

Ajay Kejriwal
(Reappointment)

February 11, 1979

September 27, 2019

Director

Finance & Management Practices

Qualification Chartered Accountant Chartered Accountant

Board Membershipofother Listed Companies NIL NIL

Chairman/Member of the Committee of the
NIL NIL

Board ofDIrector

a) AuditCommittee NIL Yes

b) Nomination&RemunerationCommittee NIL NIL

c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee NIL Yes

No.ofSharesheld intheCompany 25,00,011 52,000

Note:

1. Detailed profile of the above Director is given as part of the Annual Report. The Directorship, Committee Memberships and

Chairmanships does not include positions in foreign companies, position as an advisory board member and position in companies under

section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. Information pertaining to remuneration paid to the Directors who are being appointed/ re-

appointed and number of Board Meetings attended bythem duringtheyear 201 8-1 9 are provided in Corporate Governance Report.

The proposal for appointment] re-appointment and revision in terms of remuneration of Directors has been approved by the Board

pursuantto the recommendation ofthe Nomination & Remuneration Committee considering their skills, experience and knowledge and

positive outcome of performance evaluation.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

[Pursuant to Section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013]

Item No.3:

To re-appointment of Mr. Kamal Poddar(DIN No: 01518700)as Managing Director ofthe Company:

Mr. Kamal Poddar had been re-appointed as Managing Director ofthe Company on September 20, 2016 w.e.fNovember01, 2016

for a period of3 years.The term of office of Mr. Kamal Poddaras Managing Director ofthe Company is due to expire on October 31,

2019. The present proposal is to seek the Shareholders' approval for the re-appointment of Mr. Kamal Poddar the Managing

Director in terms ofthe applicable provisions ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013.The Board of Directors ofthe Company(the 'Board‘), at its

meeting held on August 30, 2019 has, subject to the approval of the Shareholders, reappointed Mr. Kamal Poddar for a further

period of5 years from October 01, 2019.

The payment of remuneration has already been approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on

August 30, 2019 & subsequently by the Board of Directors in its Board Meeting held on the same date. Therefore the Board

proposes to seek approval ofthe Shareholders ofthe Company, approving the payment of remuneration of Rs. 60 Lakh p.a. in all to

be paid by the Company including its group Companies (restricted to the subsidiaries of the Company) to Mr. Kamal Poddar as

detailed here under:

Period 5Yearswith effectfromOctober1,2019

Salary Rs. 60,00,000/—

Commission -

Medical Expenditure -

Leave Travel Assistance -

PersonalAccidentlnsurance -

Company's contribution to provident Fund -

Company’s Contribution to pension/ superannuation Fund -

Gratuity -

Encashment of leave -cartoons-.6579:
k. Company’sCar .

I. Telephone, cell phone,fax, computer system with internetfacilities and other communication equipment at residence

m. Leave -

Except Mr Kamal Poddar, none of other the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, financially or

otherwise, is in anyway concerned or interested in the aforesaid Special Resolution

The Board recommends the Resolution as mentioned in the Notice foryourapproval.

Except for Mr. Kamal Poddar, none ofthe other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KM P) ofthe Company or their relatives are

concerned or interested, financial orothenNise, in the resolution set outat Item No 3.

Place: Mumbai ByOrder ofthe Board of Directors

DatezAugust 30. 2019 Sd/—

(Karishma Shah)

CompanySecreta ry

Registered Office:

Choice House,$hree Shakambhari Corporate Park,

Plot No. 1 56-1 58.J.B. Nagar.
Andheri (East),

Mumbai -400 099

Email Id: infchhoiceindia.com
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Proxy Form
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Nurturing Financial Excellence

> Choice
 Form No. MGT-11

PROXY FORM
 [Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Managementand Administration) Rules, 2014]

 

CIN L67190MH1993PLC071117
NameoftheCompany Choice International Limited
Registered Office Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park, Plot No. 156-158, J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400099

 

 

Nameofthe Member(s)
  

Registered Address 
 

  
E-mailID
Folio No./ Client ID
 
 

 DPID:  

 

 

I/We, being the member(s)of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

Name 
 

Address
E-mail |ID Signature
 

 

 

ORFAILING HIM; 

Name 
 Address

E-mail |ID Signature
 

 

 

ORFAILING HIM;

 

Name

Address
 
 

 E-mail |D Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ourbehalf at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the company, to the
 held on Friday, September 27, 2019 at 12:03 P.M. at, Hotel Kohinoor Continental, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059 and at any adjournment

thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated herein:  
 Item no. Resolution mole Against

fe)PNAALESIS)
 

1 To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including the
consolidated financial statements) of the Companyfor the Financial Year
ended March31, 2019 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

 

 

 

 

 

thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Ajay Kejriwal (DIN No: 03051841), who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

3 To re-appointment of Mr. Kamal Poddar (DIN No: 01518700) as Managing
Director ofthe Company.

Signedthis day of 2019

Signature of shareholder: Signature of Proxy holder(s)

 Notes:

i. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less
than 48 hours before the commencementofthe Meeting.

 ii. The Proxy Form should be signed across the Revenue Stampas per specimen signature(s) registered with the Company/depository
participant.

iii. AProxy need not be a Member.
 

iv. Aperson can actas proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10 (ten) percent of
the total share capital of the companycarrying voting rights.

v. Amemberholding more than ten percent ofthe total share capital of the companycarrying voting rights may appoint a single person   
\ as proxy and such personshall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.
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AttendanceSlip

 

 

 

( \/ . |sh Choice
 Nurturing Financial Excellence

 

CHOICE INTERNATIONALLIMITED

Registered Office: Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park, Plot No. 156-158, J.B. Nagar,Andheri (East), Mumbai-400099

 Tel No.: +91-22-6707 9999| Fax: +91-22-6707 9959 | Website: www.choiceindia.com,

EmailID: info@choiceindia.com | CIN: L67190MH1993PLC071117

 

 ATTENDANCESLIP

 Please complete this AttendanceSlip and handit over atthe entrance ofthe Meeting Hall.

 Folio No./DP ID-Client|ID No.:
 

No.of Shares held:
 

 

Nameofthe Member/ Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTERS): 

 

Address of the Member:

 

EmailID:
 

 

|/We hereby record my/our presenceatthe 26th ANNUAL GENERALMEETINGof Choice International Limited
 

At Hotel Kohinoor Continental, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400099 on Friday, September 27,2019 at 12.30 PM.

 

Signature(s) of the Memberor Proxy
 

 NOTES:You are requested to bring your copy ofthe Annual Reportto the Meeting.

 

E-MAILID REGISTRATION REQUEST

 

In compliance with provisionsof Rule 18(3) prescribed in Chapter 18 of the Companies Act, 2013, all the Members of the Company who
have not registered their email id so far with the Company/RTA and those Members whohaveregistered their email but wish to update
their email-ids, are requestedtofill the below details to register or update their email-ids.

 

Email ld:
 

 

 

(Signature of Member)  
 Ne S
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